
 

AGENDA |REGULAR TOWN 

COUNCIL MEETING 
Tu es d ay ,  Oc to ber  20 ,  2020  a t  6 :00  PM  

Counc i l  C ha mb er  at  Ap e x  To wn H a l l ,  73  Hu nte r  S t ree t  

       
 Coun c i l  an d  Admin i s t r a t i on   

       

M a y o r :  J a c q u e s  K .  G i l be r t  |  M a y o r  P r o  T e m :  N i c o l e  L .  D o z i e r  

C o u n c i l  M e m b e r s :  B r e t t  D .  G a n t t ;  Au d r a  M .  K i l l i n g sw o r th ;  C h e r y l  F .  S ta l l i n g s ;  T e r r y  M a h a f f e y  

T ow n  M a n a g e r :  D r e w  Hav e n s  |  As s i s ta n t  T o w n  M a n a g e r s :  S h a w n  P u r v i s  a n d  M a r ty  S t o n e  

T ow n  C l e r k :  D o n n a  B .  H o s c h ,  M M C  |  T ow n  At to r n e y :  L a u r i e  L .  H o h e  

 

COM ME N CE ME N T  

Ca l l  to  Or der   |   I nvo c at i o n   |   P l ed ge  o f  Al l e g i anc e  

PR E S E N T AT I O N S  

PR1 Ma yor  J ac que s  K .  G i l be r t  

P re s en ta t i on  o f  th e  P roc l a ma t i on  dec la r i n g Oc to ber  22 ,  2020  as  Ar b or  D ay  i n  t he  

To wn o f  Ap e x   

PR2 Jac ques  K .  G i lbe r t ,  M ay or  

P res en ta t i on  o f  B rea s t  Canc er  Aw a rene s s  M on th  P roc la ma t i o n   

CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

A l l  C o n s e n t  A g e n d a  i t e m s  a r e  c o n s i d e r e d  r o u t i n e ,  t o  b e  e n a c t e d  b y  o n e  m o t i o n  w i t h  t h e  a d o p t i o n  o f  

t h e  C o n s e n t  A g e n d a ,  a n d  w i t h o u t  d i s c u s s i o n .  I f  a  C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  r e q u e s t s  d i s c u s s i o n  o f  a n  i t e m ,  t h e  

i t e m  m a y  b e  r e m o v e d  f r o m  t h e  C o n s e n t  A g e n d a  a n d  c o n s i d e r e d  s e p a r a t e l y .  T h e  M a y o r  w i l l  p r e s e n t  t h e  

C o n s e n t  A g e n d a  t o  b e  s e t  p r i o r  t o  t a k i n g  a c t i o n  o n  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  i t e m s  

CN1 Donn a Ho sc h ,  To wn C le r k  

Mo t i on  to  a ppr o ve  mi nu te s  o f  t he  Sep te mb er  15 ,  2020  R e gu l a r  C ounc i l  Mee t i n g  

CN2 Am a n d a Bunc e ,  Cu r re n t  P l ann i n g M an a ger  

Mo t i on  t o  ap pro ve  th e  S t a te men t  o f  the  Apex  Town  C ounc i l  pu r suan t  to  G .S .  160 A -

383  a d dres s i ng  ac t i on  on  th e  var i ous  Un i f i ed De ve lo p men t  Or d i nanc e  (U DO )  

Am e n d men ts  o f  Oc to ber  6 ,  2020 .  

CN3 She l l y  M ay o ,  P lan ner  I I  

Mo t i on  t o  ap pro ve  th e  S t a te men t  o f  the  Town  C ounc i l  f o r  R ez o n i ng C a se  #19CZ21  

Hee l an  PUD ,  Ja s on  B ar ron  fo r  M orn i n gs t a r  Law  Grou p ,  p et i t i one r ,  fo r  the  p r op er t i e s  

loc at ed  a t  8824  &  88 29  Ne w H ope  F ar m R oa d ,  3 108  &  3120  O l i ve  F ar m R o a d ,  an d 0  

Hu mi e  O l i ve  R oa d .  

CN4 L i z  Lo f t i n ,  Sen i o r  P la n ner  

- Page 1 -



Mot i on  to  approve  S tateme nt  o f  the  Town Counc i l  and Ord i nanc e fo r  R ezon i ng Cas e  

#20CZ04 ,  K obr a  T r ac t s  P UD ,  Wi the r sR a ve ne l ,  pe t i t i o ne r ,  fo r  the  p ro per ty  loc a te d a t  

7500  Green  Le ve l  Chu rc h  R oa d &  7501  J enk s  R o a d .   

CN5 Lau ren  S tau de n mai e r ,  P l ann er  I  

Mo t i on  to  ap pro ve  S t at e men t  o f  the  To wn Counc i l  a nd Or d i nanc e fo r  R e zo n i ng C as e  

#20CZ07 ,  Jef f  Roach, Peak Engineer ing/Rich Lever t  pe t i t i on e r s ,  f o r  t he  p r op er t y  

loc at ed  on  2309  O ld  US  1  H i gh wa y .  

CN6 She l l y  M ay o ,  P lan ner  I I  

Mo t i on  to  ap pro ve  S t at e men t  o f  the  To wn Counc i l  a nd Or d i nanc e fo r  R ezo n i ng C as e  

#20CZ08  Ap e x  F r i en d sh i p  E l e me nt ar y  Sc h o o l .   Be t ty  Park e r  f o r  Wa ke  C oun ty  Pu b l i c  

Sc ho o l  S ys te m,  pe t i t i o ne r ,  fo r  the  p r op er t y  l oc a te d a t  7901  Hu mi e  O l i ve  R o a d .  

CN7 Am a n d a Bunc e ,  Cu r re n t  P l ann i n g M an a ger  

Mo t i on  to  a d op t  a  R eso lu t i o n  D i rec t i n g the  To wn C le r k  to  I nve s t i g at e  Pe t i t i on  

R ec e i ve d ,  t o  ac c e p t  the  Cer t i f i c at e  o f  Su f f i c i enc y  b y  the  To wn C le r k ,  and  to  a do p t  

a  R es o lu t i on  Se t t i n g D at e  o f  Pub l i c  Hear i n g  fo r  N ove mber  4 ,  2020  on  the  Que s t i on  o f  

An n e xa t i on  –  Ap ex  To wn Cou nc i l ’ s  i n ten t  t o  anne x  Lec te r  M ar i e  At w a t e r ,  Donn a  M .  

At w a t e r  a nd  Je ro me  K ennet h  At w a te r  HE I R S  (K i n g s  Gr an t )  p r op er t y  c on ta i n i ng  11 .275  

ac res  loc a te d a t  2504 ,  2508 ,  2512 ,  2516  a n d 2600  M t .  Z i on  C hu rc h  R o a d ,  An nex a t i on  

#693  i n t o  the  To wn ’s  c orp ora te  l i mi t s .  

CN8 Col leen  Mer ay s  

Mo t i on  t o  ap pro ve  th e  S pec i a l  Even t  Pe r mi t  an d To wn Co -S po ns o r sh i p  re ques t  fo r  t he  

2020  Chanuk ah  Fe s t i va l  on  Sun da y ,  Dec e m ber  13 ,  2020 ,  f r o m 5 :0 0  PM t o  7 :00  PM i n  

the  Ap ex  De po t  P ark i ng L o t  a nd  P a t i o .  

CN9 Col leen  Mer ay s  

Mo t i on  to  a ppr o ve  a men di ng  t he  Spec i a l  E ven t  Pe r mi t  f o r  the  Amer i c an  L eg i o n  F a l l  

Car  Sh ow  or i g i n a l l y  sc hedu le d fo r  S a tu rd a y ,  N o ve mber  3  t o  S atu r da y ,  N o ve mb er  7 ,  

2020  f ro m 8 :00  AM  t o  2 :00  PM  i n  th e  Tow n H a l l  Park i n g Lo t .   

CN10 Mi c hae l  Dea t on  

Mo t i on  to  a ppr o ve  an  Ame n d men t  to  t he  C onse rv at ion  Ea se ment  R u t h  Ho l l eman 

P ro per t y  a nd au th or i ze  th e  Town  M ana g er  t o  s i gn  a l l  re l a te d doc u men ts  on  beh a l f  

o f  the  To wn .   

CN11 Jo se  M ar t i nez ,  D i rec t o r  

Mo t i on  to  a ppr o ve  an d aut hor i ze  the  To wn  Man a ger  to  exec u te  t he  s a me fo r  an  

Enc ro ac h men t  Ag ree men t  be tw een the  To wn an d pr o per ty  o wn er s ,  Jo shu a R .  K l a t t  

an d E l i za be th  T .  K l a t t  (G r an tees ) ,  re g ard i n g  Wake  C oun ty ,  NC P I N#0732 -7 0 -6379 ,  

104  Gu l l ane  C our t ,  as  rec or de d i n  B ook  o f  Ma ps  2003 ,  P a ge 0081 2 ,  Wa k e  C oun ty  

R eg i s te r  o f  Dee d s .  

CN12 Mar y  Be th  M an v i l le ,  H u ma n R es ou rc e s  D i rec to r  

Mo t i on  to  ap pr o ve  a  th ree  (3 )  ye ar  c on t rac t  w i t h  CC S Me di c a l  t o  ad mi n i s t e r  t he  

“L i v i ng C onnec te d ”  D i abe te s  M ana ge me nt  P ro gr a m f o r  To wn  e mp lo yee s  c o ver ed  

- Page 2 -



under  the  Town’s  hea l th  i n su ranc e p lan .  At  the  end o f  the  3  year  te rm,  the  c ont ra c t  

wi l l  au to - rene w fo r  p e r i ods  o f  one  (1 )  ye ar .  

CN13 John  M .  B ro wn ,  D i rec t o r  

Mo t i on  to  a p pro ve  an  o r d i nanc e a men d me nt  t o  ad d S a le m P on d  P ark  to  sec t i on  (a )  

(1 )  o f  Sec t i on  15 -6  o f  the  To wn o f  Ap ex  C ode  of   Or d i nanc e s  an d se t  i t s  hou r s  o f  

oper a t i on .   

CN14 John  M .  B ro wn ,  D I rec to r  

Mo t i on  to  ex ten d su m mer  park  o pera t i n g h ou r s  th r ou gh  Fe bruar y  28 ,  2021  

R E G U L AR  M E E T I N G  A G E N D A  

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  w i l l  c a l l  f o r  a d d i t i o n a l  A g e n d a  i t e m s  f r o m  C o u n c i l  o r  S t a f f  a n d  s e t  t h e   

R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a  p r i o r  t o  C o u n c i l  a c t i o n s .  

P U B L I C  F O R U M  

P u b l i c  F o r u m  a l l o w s  t h e  p u b l i c  a n  o p p o r t u n i t y  t o  a d d r e s s  t h e  T o w n  C o u n c i l .   T h e  s p e a k e r  i s   

r e q u e s t e d  n o t  t o  a d d r e s s  i t e m s  t h a t  a p p e a r  a s  P u b l i c  H e a r i n g s  s c h e d u l e d  o n  t h e  R e g u l a r  A g e n d a .    

T h e  M a y o r  w i l l  r e c o g n i z e  t h o s e  w h o  w o u l d  l i k e  t o  s p e a k  a t  t h e  a p p r o p r i a t e  t i m e .   L a r g e   

g r o u p s  a r e  a s k e d  t o  s e l e c t  a  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  t o  s p e a k  f o r  t h e  e n t i r e  g r o u p .    

C o m m e n t s  m u s t  b e  l i m i t e d  t o  3  m i n u t e s  t o  a l l o w  o t h e r s  t h e  o p p o r t u n i t y  t o  s p e a k .  

P U B L I C  H E AR I N G S  

PH1 Lau ren  S tau de n mai e r ,  P l ann er  I  

Pub l i c  hear i n g an d po ss i b le  mo t i on  to  a do p t  a n  Or d i nanc e on  the  Ques t i on  o f  

An n e xa t i on  –  Ap ex  To wn Cou nc i l ’ s  i n ten t  t o  ann ex  P o we l l  P ro per t y  Ho l d i ng s ,  L L C (The  

Upc hurc h )  p r op er t y  c on t a i n i ng 5 .5021  ac res  l oc a te d a t  7 213  R ob er t s  R oa d ,  

An n e xa t i on  #698  i n to  th e To wn ’s  c or por a te  l i mi t s .  

PH2 Am a n d a Bunc e ,  Cu r re n t  P l ann i n g M an a ger  

Pub l i c  He ar i ng a nd p os s i b le  mo t i on  t o  a p pro ve  R ez on i n g Ap p l i c at i o n  #20C Z10  109  

Ho l le ma n S t ree t .  Th e  ap p l i c an t s ,  Ch ar le s  D uane  Tay lo r ,  J r  an d S he r r y  B a i ley  Tay lo r ,  

seek  to  rez one  ap p rox i ma te l y  0 .24  ac re  loc a te d a t  109  Ho l le ma n S t ree t  (P I N  

0 7 4 2 3 0 5 5 7 6 )  f r o m Of f i c e  an d I n s t i tu t i on a l  (O&I )  t o  M i xe d Of f i c e -R es i de nt i a l -R e t a i l -

Con di t i on a l  Z on i ng (M OR R -C Z ) .  

O L D  B U S I N E S S  

OB1 Col leen  Mer ay s ,  D o w nt own  an d S ma l l  Bu s i nes s  De ve lo p men t  C o ord i n at o r  

Po s s i b le  mo t i on  t o  ex ten de d c u r ren t  Park i ng - t o -D i n i ng P r o gra m  la you t  ad o pt ed b y  

To wn C ounc i l  on  Se pt e mber  15 ,  2020  un t i l  No ve mb er  1 ,  2020  to  a l lo w fo r  e x t en de d  

out d oor  d i n i ng an d a lc oh o l  c o nsu mp t i on  a s  pe r mi t te d b y  AB C  L aw or  re gu l a t i ons ,  

an d t o  ex ten d the  o r d i nanc e te mp or ar i l y  mo di f y i n g To wn C o de  Sec t i o ns  14 -14  an d 

1 8 -11  a s  the y  re l a te  t o  s i d ew al k  d i n i ng a n d a lc oho l  c on su mp t i o n  o n  pub l i c  s t ree t s  

an d s i dew a lk s  th r ou g h  N o ve mber  1 ,  2020 .  

- Page 3 -



U N F I N I S H E D  B U S I N E S S  

UB1 Mi ke  Dea t on ,  Wa t e r  R esou rc e s  D i rec to r  

Po s s i b le  mo t i on  to  re duc e the  C i v i l  Pen a l t y  th a t  wa s  a s se s s ed t o  th e  Cen te r  S t r e e t  

Ph ar mac y p r op er t y  o wner  on  M arc h  19 ,  20 20 ,  f r o m $4 ,700  to  $2 ,000 .   

N E W B U S I N E S S  

NB1 Ni c o le  Do z i e r ,  M ay or  P ro  Te m  

D i sc us s i on  an d p os s i b le  mo t i on  t o  a d op t  t he  To wn o f  Ap ex  L i v i ng Wa g e re so lu t i o n  

an d ap pro ve  a n  a me nd men t  t o  the  Pe r so nne l  P o l i c i e s  M anu a l  to  i nc lud e  a  L i v i n g  

Wa g e po l i c y .  

NB2 Sh anno n  C ox ,  Lon g R an ge P l ann i n g M an a g er  w i t h  S ha wn Pu r v i s ,  As s i s ta n t  To wn  

Man a ger  

Po s s i b le  mo t i on  to  a ppr o ve  i mp l e men ta t i on  o f  the  p r op ose d  Ap e x  C ares  H ous i n g  

R eha b i l i ta t i on  P ro gr a m wi t h  an  annu a l  f und i ng  a l loc at i o n  f r o m the  Af f o r da b l e  

Hou s i ng Fun d .   

NB3 Au d ra  K i l l i ng sw or th ,  C ounc i l  Me mb er  

D i sc us s i on  and  po ss i b le  mo t i on  to  a men d  S ec t i on  4 .3  o f  the  To w n o f  Ap e x  Co de  of  

Ord i n anc es  t o  a l lo w t he  keep i n g o f  dw ar f / py g my  go a ts  w i th i n  th e  t ow n l i mi t s .   

NB4 Chery l  S ta l l i n gs ,  Cou n c i l  Me mber  

D i sc us s i on  re g ar d i ng  rec ent  a men d men t s  t o  th e  T ran s por t at i on  P l an  M ap an d  

po ss i b le  d i rec t i on  to  s ta f f  t o  be g i n  th e  p roc ess  to  re -ex a mi ne  t wo  c han ges  to  a l lo w  

fo r  a d d i t i on a l  pu b l i c  i npu t .   

C L O S E D  S E S S I O N  

CS1 Jac ques  K .  G i lbe r t ,  M ay or  

Mo t i on  to  g o  i n to  C l o sed  S es s i on  to  d i sc u s s  a  pe r s onne l  ma t te r  

W O R K  S E S S I O N  

WS1 Sh anno n  C ox ,  R u s se l l  Da l t on ,  Va nc e H o l l o m an ,  Sh a wn Pu r v i s  

R ec e i ve  i n fo r ma t i o n  r eg ard i n g c os t  an d t i m i ng o f  t r an sp or ta t i on  p ro j ec ts  an d ex i s t i ng  

de bt  c ap ac i t y  i n  o r de r  t o  c on s i de r  p os s i b l e  f i nanc i ng o pt i o ns  to  f und  t r an sp or ta t i on  

p ro j ec ts .  

AD J O U R N M E N T  

- Page 4 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  PR E S E N T AT I O N  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  2 0 ,  2 0 2 0  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Ma yor  J ac que s  K .  G i l be r t  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Go vern i ng Bo d y  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

P res en ta t i on  o f  the  P r oc l a ma t i on  dec l a r i n g  Oc to ber  22 ,  2020  a s  Ar b o r  D a y  i n  t he  To wn  o f  Ap e x   

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

N/ A 

I tem De ta i l s  

N/ A 

At t ac h men t s  

  Proc la ma t i on  

 

- Page 5 -



 

 

Proclamation 
Town of Apex, North Carolina 

 
 

 
 
 

from the Office of the Mayor 

ARBOR DAY IN THE TOWN OF APEX 

 

WHEREAS, in 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board 

of Agriculture that a special day be set aside for the planting of trees; 

and 
 

WHEREAS, this holiday called Arbor Day was first observed with the 

planting of more than a million trees; and 
 

WHEREAS, Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and the 

world; and 
 

WHEREAS, trees can reduce the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind 

and water, cut heating and cooling costs, moderate the temperature, 

clean the air, produce life-giving oxygen, and provide habitat for 

wildlife; and 
 

WHEREAS, trees in our town increase property values, enhance the 

economic vitality of business areas, and beautify our community; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council and the Tree Citizen Advisory Panel 

(Tree CAP) will commemorate Arbor Day by planting five trees, one 

for each year designated as a Tree City USA, at Seagroves Farm Park 

on October 22, 2020; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor of the Town of Apex, do 

hereby proclaim October 22, 2020 as Arbor Day in the Town of Apex, 

and urge all citizens to celebrate our Arbor Day and to support efforts 

to protect our trees and woodlands. 

 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand  

and caused the Seal of the Town of Apex, North Carolina 

to be affixed this the 20th day of October 2020 

  

 

_____________________________________________________ 

                                                Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

 

- Page 6 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  PR E S E N T AT I O N  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  2 0 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Jac ques  K .  G i lbe r t ,  M ay or  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Go vern i ng Bo d y  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

P res en ta t i on  o f  B rea s t  Canc er  Aw a rene s s  M on th  P roc la ma t i o n   

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

N/ A 

I tem De ta i l s  

N/ A 

At t ac h men t s  

  Proc la ma t i on  

 

 

- Page 7 -



 

 

Proclamation 
Town of Apex, North Carolina 

 
 

 
 
 

from the Office of the Mayor 

BREAST CANCER AWARENESS MONTH  

 

WHEREAS, breast cancer is the most common cancer in American women except 

for skin cancers; and 

WHEREAS, there is a 1 in 8 chance (a 13% chance) that a woman in the United 

States will develop breast cancer; and 

WHEREAS, The American Cancer Society estimates that in 2020 there will be an 

estimated 276,480 cases of breast cancer detected and that an estimated 

42,170 women will die from Breast Cancer; and 

WHEREAS, regular screening tests and mammograms are the most effective 

methods of detecting breast changes that may detect physical symptoms 

before they can be seen or felt; and 

WHEREAS, researchers, scientists, numerous nonprofit organizations, and breast 

cancer survivors are dedicated to discovering a cure for breast cancer. During 

the month of October, The Town of Apex acknowledges the extraordinary 

commitment and effort invested in this cause, and supports those who are 

working towards a cure; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Apex recognizes the breast cancer survivors among us 

and honor their faith and courage. The over three and a half million breast 

cancer survivors give us hope of a better future for those affected by breast 

cancer;  

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor of the Town of Apex, North 

Carolina, do hereby proclaim October 2020 as Breast Cancer Awareness 

Month.  

 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand  

and caused the Seal of the Town of Apex, North Carolina 

to be affixed this the 20th day of October 2020 

  

 

_____________________________________________________ 

                        Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

 

- Page 8 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  2 0 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Donn a Ho sc h ,  To wn C le r k  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Of f i c e  o f  the  To wn C l e r k  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  to  a ppr o ve  mi nu te s  o f  t he  Sep te mb er  15 ,  2020  R e gu l a r  C ounc i l  Mee t i n g  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

N/ A 

At t ac h men t s  

  Mi nutes  o f  th e  S ep te mb er  15 ,  2020  R e gu la r  Counc i l  Mee t i ng  

 

- Page 9 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 187 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA |REGULAR TOWN 
COUNCIL MEETING 
Tu e s d ay ,  Se p te mb e r  1 5 ,  20 20  a t  6 :0 0  P M  

Coun c i l  C h amb e r  at  Ap e x  To wn  H a l l ,  7 3  Hu n te r  S t r ee t  

       
 C o u n c i l  a n d  A d m i n i s t r a t i o n   

       
M a y o r :  J a c q u e s  K .  G i l be r t  |  M a y o r  P r o  T e m :  N i c o l e  L .  D o z i e r  

C o u n c i l  M e m b e r s :  B r e t t  D .  Ga n t t ;  Au d r a  M .  K i l l i n g sw o r t h ;  C h e r y l  F .  S t a l l i n g s ;  T e r r y  M a h a f f e y  

T o w n  M a n a g e r :  D r e w  H av e n s  |  As s i s ta n t  T o w n  M a n a g e r :  S h a w n  P u r v i s  |  

T o w n  C l e r k :  D o n n a  B .  H o s c h ,  M M C  |  T ow n  At t o r n e y :  L a u r i e  L .  H o h e  

 
 

I n  at te n d an c e  w er e  M a yor  J ac qu e s  K .  G i l be r t ,  M a yor  P r o  Te m Ni c o le  L .  D oz i e r ,  an d 

Coun c i l  M e mbe r s  B r e t t  D .  G an t t ,  Au d r a  M .  K i l l i n gs w or th  ( r e mo te l y ) ,  C h e r y l  F .  S ta l l i n gs ,  an d  

Te r r y  Mah af fe y .   Al s o  i n  a t te n d an ce  we r e  Town  M an a ge r  D r e w H ave n s ,  As s i s tan t  To w n  

M an a ge r  Sh aw n  Pu r v i s ,  To wn  C le r k  D on n a B .  H osch  ( r e mo te l y ) ,   

an d Tow n  At t o r n e y  L a u r i e  L .  Ho he .  

COM ME N CE ME N T  

M ayor  G i l be r t  c a l le d t he  me e t i n g  t o  o r de r  an d s pok e  a bo ut  th o se  wh o  l o s t  t h e i r  l i ves  du r i n g  

91 1 .   He  ask e d f o r  a  mo men t  o f  s i le n c e  t o  pa y r e spe c t  to  th e se  i n d i v i du a l s .   M ay or  G i l be r t  

th en  le d  th e  P l e d ge  o f  Al l e g i anc e .  

PR E S E N T AT I O N S  

AD D E D PR 2      Be th  B o r de au ,  Exe c u t i v e  D i r e c tor ,  We s te r n  Wa k e  C r i s i s  M i n i s t r i e s   
 

M s .  B or de au ,  spe ak i n g r e mo te l y ,  s t a te d sh e  w i sh e d t o  sh ar e  w i t h  C oun c i l  wh a t  th e y  a r e  

se e i n g i n  the  c o m mu n i ty  du r i n g  CO VI D .  Sh e  s t a te d  the i r  V i s i on  S ta te me n t  an d e x p l a i n e d  

h ow  t h i s  S t a te me n t  w as  be i n g me t .   Sh e  a l s o  s pok e  a b ou t  t h e i r  c o r e  va lu e s .   WWC M se r v i ce s  

h a ve  c h an ge d  s i n c e CO VI D ,  an d M s .  B o r d e au  ou t l i n e d th ose  c h an ge s .   Sh e  a l so  ou t l i ne d  

th e  p r o gr a ms  th e y ’ ve  r e c e n t l y  s ta r te d .   M s .  Bor de au  pr e sen te d  f i gu r e s  o n  w h at  th e y’ v e  

be e n  sp en d i n g on  h o u s i n g  as s i s ta n c e .  

 

W WC M  h a s  spe n t  th e  $4 0 ,0 00  wh i c h  th e  To wn  p r o v i de d i n  g r an t s  a  f e w w ee k s  a g o .   C h ar t s  

sh o wi n g  h ou s i n g  de bt  we r e  p r e se n te d ,  an d M s .  B o r de au  e x p l a i n e d h o w C O VI D  has  

i mpac te d th e  fa mi l i e s .    

 

- Page 10 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 188 

 

 

 

R ac i a l  i n e qu i t i e s  a r e  h i gh l i g ht ed  a t  th i s  t i me ,  e s pec i a l l y  H i s p an i c s  an d L a t i n - x ’ s ,  an d  M s .  

Bo r de au  e x p l a i n e d h ow th i s  i s  so .   P r e da t or s  a r e  se e k i n g the se  vu l n e r ab i l i t i e s  an d t ak i n g  

ad v an t a ge ,  par t i c u l a r l y  i n  th e  ar e as  o f  h u ma n  t r a f f i c k i n g  an d t h e  h o me le s s .    

 

M s .  B o r de au  w as  th a n k fu l  t o  th e  To wn  fo r  th e  e x t e n de d mor a t o r i u m on  u t i l i t y  cu t of f s  an d  

as k e d f o r  th e se  e f f o r t s  t o  c on t i n u e  u nt i l  pe op le  c an s t a b i l i ze .   S h e  a l so  th ank e d t h e  Town  

fo r  i t s  c on t i n u e d e f f o r t s  on  af f o r d a b le  h ou s i n g  an d wh er e  i t  ma y  l e a d fo r  th e  c o m mu n i t y .  

 

R e sp on di n g t o  C ou n c i l ,  M s .  B o r de au  s t a te d sh e  c an  c o mpi l e  f i gu r e s  o n  th e  nu mb e r  o f  h ow  

ma n y  h o mes/ f ami l i e s  th e  a ge n cy  h as  tou c h e d  s i n c e  C O VI D  an d  fo r w ar d  to  C ou n c i l .   The  

foo d i n se c ur i ty  n u mb er  i s  n o t  mu ch  h i g h e r  th an  n o r ma l  s i n c e a  l o t  i s  be i n g do ne  i n  t h e  

c o mmu n i t y  f o r  th i s .   S he  spok e  ab ou t  th e  Fa mi l y  R e c o ve r y  Fu n d an d wh a t  th e  r es p on s e  h as  

be e n .   L a s t  mon th  th e y me t  t h e i r  s pen di n g g oa l ,  t h e  fu n d s  be i n g  s pe n t  qu i c k e r  th a n  th e y  

o r i g i na l l y  th ou gh t .   Sh e  c o mme n te d th e  c o m mu n i t y  h as  be e n  a maz i n g  w i th  i t s  ou t r e ac h an d  

su p por t .    

 

Coun c i l  e n cou r a ge d Ms .  B o r de au  t o  k e e p  i n  c on t ac t  w i th  s t a f f  a nd  le t t i n g  t he  To wn  k n ow  

h ow we  c an  s u p por t  the m.   He  e x p r e s se d  c on c er n  th a t  pe op le  i n  Ap e x  d on ’ t  k n o w ab ou t  

th e  u t i l i t y  p r ogr a m a t  the  Cou n t y .   C ou n c i l  as k e d  a bou t  t h e  r e n t a l  p r o g r am f r o m th e  C o u nt y ,  

h ow  i t  h as  be e n  go i n g ,  a nd  h ow  Ap ex  c i t i ze ns  c ou ld  ge t  a s s i s t anc e .   M s .  Bo r de au  s ta te d  

th e y  d i d  n o t  h a ve  i n f r as t r u c tu r e  i n  p lac e to  h an dl e  t h e  C O VI D  i mpac t .   Th e i r  sh e l te r s  f i l l e d  

u p pr e t ty  qu i c k ly .   I n  the  C ou n t y  p r o gr a ms ,  so me  vu ln e r a b le  f o l k s  we r e  se n t  t o  h o te l s .   I n  

r e a l i t y  th e r e  i s  a  c ap a c i ty  i s sue ,  an d  th e r e  i s  n o t  a  l o t  o f  mo ve me n t  ou t  o f  th e  s h e l te r s .   She  

e xp la i n e d h o w f o l k s  a r e  mo v e d th r ou gh  t h e i r  w a i t i n g  l i s t .   Wak e  P r e ve n t  i s  wor k i n g  i n  th e  

sa me  w a y .   M os t  se r v i c es  a r e  g o i n g  to  th e  l owe s t  i n c o me  fo l k s  w h o  h a ve  t h e  l ea s t  c apac i ty  

to  r e c o ve r .   W WC M  h as  ope n e d a n e w  i n f r a s t r u c tu r e  p r o gr am,  b u t  i t  w i l l  tak e  t i me fo r  th i s  

to  be  se t  i n  p l ac e .  

 

R e sp on di n g to  Cou nc i l ,  M s .  Bo r de au  s pok e  ab ou t  u n i n su r e d  pe op le .   P r e t t y  r e gu l a r l y ,  t h e r e  

a r e  r e q ue s t s  f r o m f o l k s  ask i n g  f o r  h e l p  f o r  me d i c a l  b i l l s ,  th i s  n o t  b e i n g s o me th i n g th e y’ ve  

pa i d  fo r  i n  th e  p as t .   WWC M  h as  d i r ec te d  t h e se  i n d i v i du a l s  t o  so c i a l  w or k e r s  o r  o the r  su ch  

i n d i v i du a l s .  

 

Coun c i l  th ank e d  M s .  B o r de au  an d  h e r  s ta f f  f o r  th e i r  e x ce l le n t  wor k  i n  th e  c o mmu n i ty .     T h e y  

ar e  a pp r e c i a te d  b ey on d  w or d s ,  an d  M s .  B o r de au  wa s  a sk e d t o  k e e p th e  To wn  i n fo r me d .   

Pe o p le  i n  th e  c o mmu n i ty  wou l d  l i k e  t o  c on t i n u e  to  s up por t  WWC M’ s  e f f o r t s .   The se  th o u gh t s  

we r e  e c h oe d b y  t h e  Ma yor .  

 

 

- Page 11 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 189 

 

 

 

PR1 Sh an n o n  C ox ,  L on g R an ge P l an n i n g M an a ge r  w i t h  HR & A Ad v i s o r s ,  I n c .  

I n fo r ma t i on a l  u pd a te  to  the  To wn  C ou n c i l  r e g ar d i n g th e  on go i n g  de v e l op me n t  o f  t h e  

To wn  o f  Ap e x  Af fo r da b le  Hou s i n g  P l an  

S taf f  s t a t e d  we  h a ve  an  e xp e r t  c on su l t an t  on  bo ar d ,  HR & A,  h e l p i n g w i t h  th i s  p r o je c t .   S a r ah  

K i r k  an d  P h i l l i p  Ca sh  f r o m HR& A w e r e  j o i n i n g  v i a  Te a ms .   Th e y  de ve lo pe d th e  a f f o r d ab le  

h ous i n g  p l an  f o r  Wa k e  Cou n t y ,  an d the y a r e  w or k i ng  w i t h  C ar y .    

 

S ta f f  s t a te d the y  ha v e  be e n  w or k i ng  to  a d op t  ou r  p lan  i n  an  8 - mon th  per i o d .   So  f a r ,  foc u s  

h as  be e n o n  h ou s i n g  n e ed s  as se s s men t .   We  a r e  n o w tu r n i n g  ou r  a t te n t i on  to  de ve l op i n g  

r e c o mmen da t i ons  an d t oo l s  a nd  a  p r e l i m i n ar y  p l an  wh i c h  w i l l  b e  p r e se n te d  f o r  p u b l i c  

c o mme n t  be f o r e  go i n g t o  th e  P l an n i n g  Bo ar d an d to  C ou n c i l  fo r  con s i d er a t i on  o f  a do p t i on .   

We  h a ve  a  r obu s t  s te e r i n g  c o mmi t t e e  ma d e  u p o f  a  l a r ge  an d d i ve r se  g r ou p  o f  i n d i v i d u a l s .    

 

S ta f f  s t a te d a f fo r dab l e  h o u s i n g  h a s  a  l o t  o f  c o mp le x  i s su es .   Sh e  e xp l a i n e d w h a t  w as  f ou n d 

f r o m th e  hou s i n g  n e eds  a s se s s me n t .   A pu b i c  su r ve y  wa s  do n e  wh i c h  r e ac h e d 1 ,2 00  

pa r t i c i pan t s .   HR& A ad di t i ona l l y  h e l d  i n te r v i e w s  w i t h  de ve l o pe r s ,  se r v i c e  p r o v i de r s ,  an d  

r e a l t o r s  to  ge t  mor e  de ta i l s  ab ou t  wh a t ’ s  go i n g on  i n  Ap e x .   I nd i v i du a l s  we r e  i n t e r v i ew e d  

r e g ar d i n g h ou s i n g  i s s u es  i n  Ap e x .   S t a f f  s t a te d so me  o f  the  r e su l t i n g  se n t i me n t s .  

 

S ta f f  s ta te d th e  d a ta  sh o w s  t he  ma j or i ty  o f  n e w Ap e x  r e s i de n t s  a r e  Wh i te ,  a f f l u e n t ,  an d  

h i gh l y  e du c a te d .   Ap e x  i s  l o s i n g  mo d e r a te  i n co me  h ou se h o l ds  w h i l e  ga i n i ng  h i g he r  i n c o me  

r e n te r s  an d  h o me o wn e r s .   S ta f f  s h a r e d  pu b l i c  i n pu t  –  i t ’ s  h a r d  t o  l i ve  h e r e  as  a  s i n g l e  pa r e n t ,  

pe o p le  sh ou l d  be  a b l e  to  l i ve  an d wor k  i n  t h e  sa me  c i t y ,  pe o p l e  sh ou ld  be  ab le  to  l i ve  h e r e  

as  th e y  ap pr o ac h  r e t i r e me n t ,  be  ab le  t o  af f o r d  s t a r te r  h o me s ,  a nd  t h e n  th e r e  w er e  t h ose  

wh o  s t a te d th er e  a r e  no  i s su es  w i th  h ou s i n g  an d pe op l e  d on ’ t  wa n t  th e i r  p r ope r t y  v a l u e s  t o  

be  i mp ac te d .   Ho me  va lu e s  h a ve  b ee n  i n c r eas i n g .   I f  th i s  t r en d c on t i n u e s ,  th e r e  w i l l  be  

l i m i te d ac c es s  to  med i an  i n c o me  hou s i n g  w i th ou t  h o me o wn er s  be i n g h ou s e  bu r de n e d .   S ta f f  

sp ok e  ab ou t  th e  g a p i n  th e  su p p l y  o f  h ou s i n g  f o r  l o we r  i n c o me  r e n te r s .   Th i s  g ap  i s  e x pe c te d 

to  i n c r e as e  o ve r  t h e  n e x t  10  ye ar s .    

 

S ta f f  s t a te d Ap e x’ s  j o b  g r ow th  i s  e x pe c te d to  be  i n  the  i n c o me o f  $ 75 ,00 0  o r  le s s ,  s o  th e r e  

i s  a  n e e d f o r  a f fo r d ab l e  h ou s i n g .   O ve r  th e  p as t  1 0  ye ar s ,  n e w ap ar t me n ts  ha ve  b e en  

de ve lo pe d .   Bu t  th e se  ar e  c on s i de r e d mar k e t  r a te  o r  l u xu r y  ap ar t m e n t s .   Th e  on ly  a f f o r d a b le  

u n i t s  w e r e  bu i l t  p r i o r  t o  20 00 .   H i gh  l an d c o s t  an d  t h e  l ac k  o f  qu a l i f y i n g  s i te s  c on t r i b u te  to  

th i s .    

 

S ta f f  s ta te d  we  n o w n e e d t o  th i n k  ab ou t  go i n g  to  th e  r e c o mm e n d at i on  ph a se .   S h e  l i s t e d  

wh at  n e e ds  to  be  th o u gh t  ab ou t .   Th e  n ex t  s t e p w i l l  be  t o  wor k  w i th  th e  s te e r i n g  c o m mi t tee  

- Page 12 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 190 

 

 

 

to  wor k  on  go a l s  g o i n g  f o r war d .   Th e  foc u s  w i l l  t h e n  be  on  r e c o mme n d at i on s  a nd  to o l s ,  

a f t e r  wh i c h  a  p l an  c a n be  f o r mu l at e d .  

  

Coun c i l  s t a te d a f f o r d ab l e  h ou s i n g  h a s  be e n  d i f f i c u l t  n a t i on a l l y  i n  h i gh  de man d a r e as .  He  

as k e d wh a t  a r e  we  l o ok i ng a t  as  f a r  a s  th e  mo de l  p l an .   P h i l l i p  Cas h  s t a te d n o  c o m m u n i ty  

i s  k n ock i n g th i s  ou t  o f  the  par k .   H o we ve r ,  w e  a r e  l o ok i n g a t  se ve r a l  c o mmu n i t i e s .   He  s pok e  

ab ou t  the  ch a l le n ge s ,  M i n n ea po l i s  b e i n g on e d o i n g be t te r  th an  m os t .    

 

Coun c i l  a s k e d  a bou t  bar r i e r s  t o  a f f o r d ab le  h ou s i n g  i n  Wa k e C o un t y  an d Ap e x .   Mr .  Ca sh  

ta l k e d  a bou t  th e se  an d wh a t  c an  be  d on e .   He  r e i te r a te d  the r e  i s  a  g r e a t  ne e d an d C O VI D  

i s  ac ce l e r a t i n g  t h i s  n e e d .  

 

Coun c i l  s ta te d s he ’ s  a t te n de d p r e se n t a t i on s  on  af fo r d ab l e  h ous i n g  ne e d s  f o r  se ve r a l  ye a r s ,  

an d the  nu mb e r s  k e e p  ge t t i n g  wor se  an d wor se .   Th e r e  a r e  mor e  n e e ds  an d le s s  u n i t s  b e i n g  

pr o v i de d .   S h e  w as  l ook i n g  f o r w ar d  t o  se e i n g th e  go a l s  an d  t oo l s  s o  C ou nc i l  c a n  s t a r t  

ad dr e s s i n g  th e se  n e e ds  i n  a  mor e  me a n i n g fu l  w a y .  

 

Coun c i l  a s k e d h o w i t  i s  go i n g n a t i on a l l y  th at  i n  th e  mi d s t  o f  C O VI D  mor e  p e op l e  a r e  w an t i ng  

h ous i n g  w i th  mo r e  s p ace  an d h o w th i s  c a n  h i n de r  an y  ty pe  of  a f f o r d ab le  h ou s i n g  e f fo r t .   

M r .  C ash  s ta te d  ou r  p lan  w i l l  lo ok  at  h o w t h e  mar k e t  i s  s h i f t i n g  be c au se  o f  C O VI D  an d the  

c h a l le n ge s  o f  a f f o r da b i l i ty .    

 

M ayor  G i l be r t  g a ve  as su r an c e  th at  C ou n c i l  i s  su p por t i ve  i n  c on t i n u i n g to  mo ve  f o r w ar d  w i th  

th i s  e f f o r t .  

CO N SE N T  AGE N D A 

CN1 Don n a Ho sc h ,  To wn  C le r k  

M i n u tes  o f  t h e  Au g u s t  18 ,  2 02 0  Re gu l a r  Cou n c i l  Me e t i ng  an d th e  Se pt e mb e r  1 ,  20 20  

R e gu l a r  Cou n c i l  Me e t i n g  

CN2 Don n a Ho sc h ,  To wn  C le r k  

Ap e x  Ta x  R e por t  dat e d  J u l y  16 ,  2 02 0  

CN3 Don n a Ho sc h ,  To wn  C le r k  

R at i f i c a t i on  o f  t he  To wn  C le r k  i n  mak i n g a  r e f un d  o f  $ 60 0  to  th e  Wi l l i e  Rob i n son  He i r s  

fo r  c e me te r y  L o t  1 50  P l o t s  A,  B ,  C ,  an d D  w h i ch  we r e  so ld  b ac k  t o  the  To wn  

CN4 Am a n da Bun c e ,  Cu r r e n t  P l ann i n g M an a ge r  

Se t  the  Pu b l i c  He ar i n g  fo r  th e  O c t obe r  6 ,  2 02 0  To wn  C ou n c i l  mee t i n g  r e gar d i ng  

va r i ous  a me n d men ts  t o  the  Un i f i e d  De ve lo p me n t  O r d i n anc e  

CN5 Sh e l l y  M ay o ,  P lan n e r  I I  

- Page 13 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 191 

 

 

 

Se t  the  Pu b l i c  He ar i n g  fo r  th e  O c t obe r  6 ,  2 02 0  To wn  C ou n c i l  mee t i n g  r e gar d i ng  

R e zon i n g Ap p l i c at i on  #1 9C Z 21  He e l an  P U D an d  Or d i n an c e .  Th e  a p p l i c an t ,  J as on  

Bar r on  f o r  M or n i ng s ta r  L a w Gr ou p ,  sou g ht  t o  r e z on e a pp r ox i ma te ly  1 41 .7  ac r e s  f r o m  

Wa k e  C o .  R -4 0 W t o  P l an ne d U n i t  De ve l o p men t– Co n d i t i on a l  Z on i n g (P U D- C Z ) .  Th e  

p r o po se d r e z on i n g i s  l oc a te d a t  8 824  &  88 2 9  Ne w  H op e  Far m R o a d ,  31 08  &  31 20  O l i ve  

Fa r m R oad ,  an d 0  Hu mi e  O l i ve  R oa d .  

CN6 Sh e l l y  M ay o ,  P lan n e r  I I  

Se t  the  Pu b l i c  He ar i n g  fo r  th e  O c t obe r  6 ,  2 02 0  To wn  C ou n c i l  mee t i n g  r e gar d i ng  

R e zon i n g Ap p l i c a t i on  # 20C Z0 8  Ap e x  F r i e n dsh i p  E l e me n t ar y .  Th e  a pp l i c an t ,  Be t ty  

Pa r k e r  fo r  Wa k e  C ou n ty  P u b l i c  Sc h oo l  S y s t e m,  s ou gh t  t o  r e z on e  a pp r ox i mate l y  5 .7 62  

ac r e s  f r o m P l an n e d  Un i t  De ve l o p me n t - Con di t i on a l  Z on i n g (P U D- C Z )  t o  Ru r a l  

R e s i de n t i a l -C on di t i on a l  Z on i n g (R R -CZ ) .  Th e  p r op ose d r e zon i n g  i s  loc a te d a t  79 01  

Hu mi e  O l i ve  R oa d .  

CN7 L i z  L o f t i n ,  Se n i o r  P l a n n er   

Se t  Pu b l i c  He ar i n g  f o r  Oc to be r  6 ,  2 02 0  To w n Cou n c i l  me e t i n g  r eg ar d i n g R e zon i n g  

ap p l i c a t i on  # 20 CZ0 4  K obr a T r ac t  P UD .  T he  a p p l i can t ,  Wi t h e r sR a ve n e l ,  s ou g h t  to  

r e zon e  a p pr ox i ma te ly  24 .63  ac r e s  f o r  t h e  p r o pe r t i e s  l oc a te d a t  7 50 0  Gr e en  L e ve l  

C h ur ch  R o ad &  7 50 1  Je n k s  R o a d (P I Ns  0 73 31 02 21 1  &  07 32196 42 2)  f r o m Ru r a l  

R e s i de n t i a l  (R R )  to  P l an n e d Un i t  D e ve l opm en t  Con di t i o n a l  Z on i n g (P U D-C Z ) .   

CN8 L i z  L o f t i n ,  Se n i o r  P l a n n er  

S ta te me n t  o f  th e  To w n  C ou n c i l  an d Or d i nan ce  f o r  R e zo n i n g  C ase  # 20 CZ0 6 ,  T r i n i t y  

He n de r s on ,  pe t i t i on er ,  f o r  the  p r o pe r t y  l oc at e d  a t  20 4  &  20 6  L yn c h  S t r e e t   

CN9 M ar ty  S t on e ,  As s i s t an t  To wn  M an a ge r  

F i r s t  a men dme n t  t o  th e  U t i l i t y  I n f r as t r u c tu r e  R e i mbu r se me n t  Ag r e e me n t  w i th  Pu l te  

Ho me Co mp an y ,  L L C ,  S tan d ar d Pac i f i c  o f  th e  Car o l i n as ,  L L C ,  an d T ay l o r  M or r i son  o f  

C ar o l i n as ,  I n c .  an d  a u th or i za t i on  f o r  th e  To w n M an a ge r  to  e xe c u te  th e  s a me  

CN10 S te ve  Ada ms  

C on t r ac t  be tw e e n  th e  To wn  an d Ha l le  P r o pe r t i e s  t o  t r a de a  To w n  own e d pr o pe r t y  a t  

O l d  M i l l  V i l l age f o r  a  Ha l l e  o wn e d pr o pe r ty  on  Hu n te r  S t r ee t  

CN11 M ar ty  S t on e ,  As s i s t an t  To wn  M an a ge r  an d Vanc e  Ho l l o man ,  F i n an c e  D i r e c to r  

Bu dge t  Or d i n an c e  Ame n d me n t  N o .  2  a ppr opr i a t i n g  fu n d s  f o r  th e  pu r p o se  o f  

r e i mbu r s i n g  a  de ve l o pe r  fo r  c o mp le t i on  o f  th e  Has se  Av en u e  Ex te n s i on  con n e c t i n g  

th e  S we e t w ate r  an d L i nde n  Su b di v i s i o n s  

CN12 M ar ty  S t on e ,  As s i s t an t  To wn  M an a ge r  an d Vanc e  Ho l l o man ,  F i n an c e  D i r e c to r  

Bu dge t  Or d i n an c e  Ame n d me n t  N o .  3  a ppr opr i a t i n g  fu n d s  f o r  th e  pu r p o se  o f  

r e fu n d i n g a  p ay me nt  i n  l i e u  o f  s t r e e t s  ma d e b y  a  d e ve l ope r  t o  t he  To wn  

CN13 Sh e l l y  M ay o ,  P lan n e r  I I  

R e so lu t i o n  D i r e c t i n g  t h e  To wn  C l e r k  t o  I n ve s t i gate  Pe t i t i on  R e c e i ve d,  C e r t i f i c ate  of  

Su f f i c i e nc y  b y  th e  To wn  C l e r k ,  an d R e s o l u t i on  Se t t i n g  Da te  o f  Pu b l i c  He ar i n g   fo r  

- Page 14 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 192 

 

 

 

Oc t ob e r  6 ,  2 02 0  o n  th e  Q ue s t i on  o f  An n e x a t i on  –  Ap ex  To wn  Cou n c i l ’ s  i n te n t  to  ann e x  

He n r y  S te ve n  K as te lb e r g ,  C ar o l  B .  He e lan  I r r e voc a bl e  T r u s t  c / o  Ge or ge  He e l an ,  

Ed w ar d  an d De b or a h  Pe ar t  an d Je r f i  an d L i s a  C i c i n  (H e e l an  P UD )  p r o p e r ty  c on ta i n i n g  

14 1 .7 32  ac r e s  l oc ate d  a t  88 24  &  88 29  Ne w  H ope  F a r m  R o a d ,  0  Hu mi e  O l i ve  R o a d an d 

31 08  &  3 12 0  O l i ve  F ar m R o a d,  An n e x at i on  # 67 6  i n t o  the  To wn ’ s  c o r p or a te  l i m i t s  

CN14 M ar y  Be th  M an v i l le ,  H u man  Re s ou r c e s  D i r e c tor  

R e c l a s s i f i c at i o n  of  th e  Ad mi n i s t r a t i o n  D ep ar t me n t ’ s  C on s t r uc t i o n  M an a ge r  p o s i t i on ,  

Gr a de  2 5 ,  to  Se n i o r  C ap i ta l  P r o j e c t s  Ma n a ge r ,  Gr a de  29  

 

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  s t a t e d  t h e  T o w n  C l e r k  r e q u e s t e d  m o d i f i c a t i o n  t o  t h e  C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s  o f  

Au g u s t  1 8 ,  2 0 2 0  r e l a t e d  t o  5 4 0  e m i n e n t  d o m a i n  a c t i o n s  c o m i n g  o u t  o f  C l o s e d  S e s s i o n .  

 

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  c a l l e d  f o r  a  m o t i o n  t o  a d o p t  t h e  C o n s e n t  Ag e n d a  w i t h  t h e  r e q u e s t e d  

m o d i f i c a t i o n .   C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  M a h a f f e y  m a d e  t h e  m o t i o n ;   

C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  D o z i e r  s e c o n d e d  t h e  m o t i o n .  

T h e  m o t i o n  c a r r i e d  b y  a  5 - 0  v o t e .  

 

 

R E G U L AR  M E E T I N G  A G E N D A  
 

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  s t a t e d  t h e  T o w n  At t o r n e y  r e q u e s t e d  a n  a d d i t i o n a l  C l o s e d  S e s s i o n  r e l a t e d  

t o  t h e  p u r c h a s e  o f  r e a l  p r o p e r t y  a n d  t o  p r e v e n t  d i s c l o s u r e  o f  i n f o r m a t i o n  t h a t  i s  

p r i v i l e g e d  a n d  c o n f i d e n t i a l .  

 

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  c a l l e d  f o r  a  m o t i o n  t o  a d o p t  t h e  R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  Ag e n d a .   C o u n c i l  

M e m b e r  G a n t t  m a d e  t h e  m o t i o n  w i t h  t h e  r e q u e s t e d  a d d i t i o n ;   

C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  S t a l l i n g s  s e c o n d e d  t h e  m o t i o n .  

T h e  m o t i o n  c a r r i e d  b y  a  5 - 0  v o t e .  

 

 

P U B L I C  F O R U M  
 

N o  o n e  w i s h e d  t o  s p e a k  d u r i n g  P u b l i c  F o r u m .  

 

 

P U B L I C  H E AR I N G S  
 

PH1 Di an n e  Kh i n ,  D i r e ct or  o f  P l ann i n g  an d Co m mun i t y  De ve l op me n t  

Or d i n an c e  on  th e  Qu e s t i on  o f  An n e x at i on  –  Ap e x  To wn  Cou nc i l ’ s  i n te n t  t o  an n e x  M F W 

I n ves t men t s ,  L L C  (C o l by  C r os s i ng )  p r o pe r ty  c on t a i n i n g  7 .5 78  ac r e s  l oc ate d a l on g  a  

- Page 15 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 193 

 

 

 

por t i on  of  t h e  fu tu r e  c on ne c t i o n  o f  Co l b y  Ch a se  D r i ve  be t w ee n  Me r i on  an d 

Pe mber le y  su b di v i s i on s ,  An n e x a t i on  #6 51  i n to  t h e  To wn ’ s  c o r p or a te  l i m i t s  

S ta f f  s t a te d t h e  r e qu e s to r  a sk e d f o r  a  con t i n uan c e t o  th e  Oc to be r  6 ,  2 02 0  me e t i n g  d ue  to  

c ont r ac tu a l  ob l i ga t i on s  o f  t he  pu r c h a se  o f  th e  p r o pe r t y .  

 

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  c a l l e d  f o r  a  m o t i o n .   C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  D o z i e r  m a d e  t h e  m o t i o n  t o  

c o n t i n u e  t h e  P u b l i c  H e a r i n g  t o  t h e  O c t o b e r  6 ,  2 0 2 0  R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g ;  

C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  G a n t t  s e c o n d e d  t h e  m o t i o n .  

T h e  m o t i o n  c a r r i e d  b y  a  5 - 0  v o t e .  

 

PH2 Di an n e  Kh i n ,  D i r e ct or  o f  P l ann i n g  an d Co m mun i t y  De ve l op me n t  

Or d i n an c e  on  the  Qu e s t i on  o f  An n e xa t i on  –  Ap e x  To wn  C ou n c i l ’ s  i n te n t  to  ann e x  

K i mber l y  &  L o o mi s  Ho r t on ,  I I I ,  M ar y  E l i za be th  Ho r t on ,  D w i gh t  M ar v i n  Wr i g h t ,  M F W 

I n ves t men t s ,  L L C ,  an d M F WI R A,  L L C  (H or to n  P ar k  PUD )  p r op e r t y  c on ta i n i n g  10 1 .3 56  

ac r e s  loc at e d a t  81 40 ,  8 25 2 ,  83 06  an d 83 08  S mi th  R o a d ,  0  E as t  Wi l l i a ms  S t r e e t ,  0 ,0 ,0 ,0  

&  0  De z o l a  S t r e e t  an d  52 20  Je s s i e  D r i ve ,  An n e xa t i on  #68 7  i n to  th e  To w n ’s  c o r p or a te  

l i m i t s  

S ta f f  s t a te d th i s  w a s  t he  s a me  r e qu e s to r  as  Pu b l i c  He ar i n g  1 ,  an d  th a t  h e  w as  ask i n g  fo r  a  

c ont i n u an c e  t o  th e  O c to be r  6 ,  20 20  me e t i n g .  

 

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  c a l l e d  f o r  a  m o t i o n .   C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  G a n t t  m a d e  t h e  m o t i o n  t o  

c o n t i n u e  t h e  P u b l i c  H e a r i n g  t o  t h e  O c t o b e r  6 ,  2 0 2 0  R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g ;  

 C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  D o z i e r  s e c o n d e d  t h e  m o t i o n .  

T h e  m o t i o n  c a r r i e d  b y  a  5 - 0  v o t e .  

 

M ayor  G i l be r t  n o te d  t h a t  w i th  C ou n c i l  M e mber  K i l l i n gs wor th  p ar t i c i pat i n g  r e mo te l y ,  p u b l i c  

c o mme n t s  wou ld  be  h e l d  o pen  f o r  24  h ou r s  fo l l o w i n g th i s  me e t i n g .  

 

PH3 Sh an n o n  C ox ,  L on g R an ge P l an n i n g M an a ge r  

R e so lu t i o n  r e gar d i n g th e  To wn - i n i t i a te d pr op ose d r e n a mi n g o f  “ L yn c h  S t r ee t”  w i th i n  

th e  To w n o f  Ape x  

S taf f  s ta te d th e  To w n h as  an  a d dr es s  p o l i c y  w i th  a  f r a me w or k  fo r  p ot en t i a l  s t r e e t  r e n a mi n g s .   

Th e  To wn  i n i t i a te d r e n a mi n g  L y n c h S t r e e t  by  p r op os i n g  a  su i ta b l e  r e p l ac e men t  r o ad n a me  

–  L yn n  C ou n c i l  S t r e e t .   S ta f f  e x p l a i n e d th e  s te ps  w h i c h  i n v o l ve d  i n fo r mi n g c i t i ze ns  o f  th e  

p r o po se d ch an ge .   F r o m the  r e sp ons e s  r e c e i ve d ,  on e  c i t i z en  p r e f e r r e d n o r o a d n a me  

c h an ge ,  12  su g ge s te d L yn n  C ou n c i l  S t r e e t ,  an d  1 2  su g ge s te d  o t h e r  r oa d  n a me s .   S ta f f  

s t a te d th e  a ppr o va b l e  su g ge s te d  n a me s  r e c e i ve d an d  th e  me a n i n g b e h i nd  th os e  n a me s .   

Th e r e  w ou ld  be a  pu b l i c  h e ar i n g ,  a  r e so l u t i on  w ou l d  be  ado p ted ,  an d th e  p r o pe r ty  o w n e r s  

wou l d  be  i n fo r med o f  th e  n e w na me .   Th e  n e w n a me w ou ld  be c o me  ef fe c t i ve  J an u ar y  20 21 .  

- Page 16 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 194 

 

 

 

 

Coun c i l  s t a te d y ou th  ta l k e d  to  th e  M ay or  an d s t a f f  a r ou n d th e  r e se ar c h  t h e y  we r e  d o i n g  

on  th e  h i s t o r i c a l  con t ex t .   Sh e  a sk e d i f  th e  s tu de n t s  we r e  i n vo l ve d .   S t a f f  s t a te d  t he y  w er e  

n o t  i nv o l ve d i n  th e  po ten t i a l  r en a mi n g ,  bu t  t h e y  d i d  s pe ak  w i th  s ta f f  an d  r e c e i ve d  

su b s t an t i a l  i n fo r ma t i o n  wh i c h  wa s  u se d  i n  t h e  r epor t  th e y  p r o v i d ed a s  t o  th e  h i s to r y  o f  th e  

n a mi n g o f  L yn ch  S t r e e t .    

 

R e sp on di n g t o  C ou n c i l  a bou t  h o w ma n y  h o me s  w e r e  o n  L yn c h  S t r e e t ,  s t a f f  s t a te d 50  l e t te r s  

we r e  se n t  an d 24  r e sp on se s  we r e  r e c e i ve d .    

 

Coun c i l  fe l t  t h i s  sh ou ld  b e  g i ven  mo r e  t i m e .   S t a f f  e x p l a i n e d th e  no t i f i c a t i on  p r oc e s s  t o  

n e i g hb or s  w h i c h  i n c l u de d th e  su gge s te d n ame s .  

 

Coun c i l  s ta te d  th i s  so u nde d l i k e  an  a f f i r mat i ve  fo r  th e  n a me  c h a nge ,  to  w h i c h  s t a f f  s t a t ed  

th i s  w as  th e  c a se .    

 

Coun c i l  a s k e d w ou l d  t he r e  be  w ay s  t o  h e l p  s up por t  pe op l e  i n  ch a n g i n g th e i r  a ddr es s .   S ta f f  

s t a te d s t a f f  p r o v i de d a  su m mar y  of  wh at  o c c ur s  an d wh a t  p r op e r t y  o wn e r s  wou l d  h a ve  t o  

do .   Th e  Tow n  w ou ld  t ak e  c ar e  o f  th e  s t r e e t  s i gn s ,  an d we  wou l d  n o t i f y  th e  po s ta l  s e r v i ce .   

P r o pe r t y  o wn e r s  w ou l d  n e e d to  u pd at e  N C  DM V r e c or d s .   P r o pe r ty  o wn e r s  w ou l d  p r o b ab ly  

n o t i c e  de l a ys  i n  de l i v e r i e s  f r o m Ama z on ,  Fe dE x ,  a n d U PS  as  th e y  wou l d  n e e d t o  up d at e  th e i r  

da t a b a ses .    

 

Coun c i l  s ta te d  a  l i s t  o f  th i n gs  c ou l d  be  do n e  a t  th e  D M V an d w a nte d t o  k n o w i f  a n  a d dr es s  

c h an ge  w as  one  o f  th e m,  t o  w h i c h  s t a f f  r e p l i e d  i n  th e  a f f i r mat i ve .  

 

Coun c i l  a sk e d  i f  w e wou l d  be  w i l l i n g  t o  as s i s t  i n d i v i du a l s  on l i n e  to  ma k e  ch an ge s ,  s t a f f  

be i n g u nsu r e  o f  th i s  a s s i s t an ce .    

 

M ayor  G i l b e r t  de c l a r e d  th e  Pu b l i c  H ear i n g  ope n .  

 

R an do lph  Mc Mi l l an ,  o wn e r  an d op e r a t o r  o f  B r ook r i d ge  As s i s te d L i v i n g ,  as k e d f o r  a  c h a nge  

to  oc c u r .    H e  r e c e i v e s  ca l l s  d a i l y ,  an d i t  i s  d i f f i c u l t  t o  e x p l a i n  th e  n a me  to  h i s  bu s i n e s s  

c a l l e r s .   He  h a s  be e n  r e c e i v i n g  the se  c a l l s  s i n c e  2 00 9 .   He  su g ge s te d  Ro se wa ter  P l ac e ,  

so me th i ng  n a tu r e  b as e d an d n e u t r a l .   M r .  M c Mi l lan  s ta te d we  n e e d to  l o ok  a h e ad an d g i ve  

va lu e  to  th e  c o mmun i ty .   He  d i d  no t  w an t  to  ge t  i n to  p i t t i n g  f a mi l i e s  a ga i n s t  e ac h  o the r  

w i th  t he  n a mi n g  pr oc ess .   M r .  Mc Mi l l i an  s t a te d h e  h as  be e n  ask e d by  go ver n me n t  o f f i c i a l s  

wh y  h e  d i dn ’ t  d o  s o me th i n g  a bou t  th e  cu r r en t  n a me ;  i t  j u s t  do e s n’ t  l ook  r i g h t .   He  d oe s  no t  

e ve n  us e  the  L yn c h  S t r e e t  n a me  fo r  h i s  bu s i n e s s ;  he  u se s  a  PO  b ox .   I t  t ak e s  a w ay  e ver y t h i ng  

- Page 17 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 195 

 

 

 

c o mmu n i c a t i on  w i se ;  i t  de s t r o ys  t h e  c o n ve r sa t i on  i mme d i a te ly  wh e n t a l k i n g  w i th  o th e r  

pe o p le .   Mr .  M c Mi l lan  ask e d  C ou n c i l  to  l i f t  u p  th e  c o mmu n i ty  w i t h  a  n i c e  n ame  th at  c an  be  

u se d  t o  e te r n i ty .   He  a sk e d f o r  a s s i s t an c e d o or  t o  d oor  i n  h e lp i n g t h e  p r o p er ty  o wn e r s  mak e  

th e  c h an ge .  

 

Pa t r i c i a  Wi nk le r  s t a t e d  s h e  j u s t  mo ve d i n  a n d h a d c h an ge d h e r  addr e s s  on  e ve r y th i n g .   Sh e  

h a d n o  i s su e  w i th  th e  n ame  L yn ch  bu t  u n der s t oo d  th o se  wh o  do .   Sh e  wou l d  h a ve  t o  c h an ge  

35 - 40  th i n gs  i f  th e  n ame  w e r e  c h an ge d .   Th i s  co s t s  mo ne y an d p eo pl e  a r e  s t r e s se d  

f i n an c i a l l y  w i th  CO VI D .   Th i s  w ou l d  be  an o th e r  bu r de n .   Th o se  w h o don ’ t  go  on l i ne  w ou l d  

n e ed he l p  c h an g i n g t h e i r  addr e s se s .   Wh at  Mr .  C ou n c i l  w e n t  th r ou gh  w a s  h o r r en d ou s ,  b u t  

h e  w ou l d  be be t te r  h on or e d w i t h  a  s t r e e t  i n  a  n e w de ve l op me n t  r i ght  f r o m ve r y  s t a r t .    

 

Va ne ss a  Th o ma s  s t at e d  sh e  h a s  l i ve d  on  L yn c h  S t r e e t  f o r  40  ye ar s .   She  ha s  n e ve r  h ad a  

p r o b l e m wi th  th e  n ame .   Sh e  un de r s t oo d  th e  h i s to r y  o f  M r .  C ou n c i l ,  bu t  i t  w ou l d  be  an  

i n con ve n i e nc e  f o r  o l d er  n e i gh b or s  wh o  h a ve  be e n  th e r e  l on ge r  t han  s he  ha s .   The r e  w ou l d  

be  s o  mu c h  t o  c han ge ,  an d s o me  d on ’ t  k n ow ab ou t  t h e  i n te r n et .   Th i s  w as  a  l o t  t o  t ak e  i n to  

c ons i d e r a t i on .    

 

M ayor  G i l be r t  de c l a r e d  th e  Pu b l i c  H ear i n g  c lo s e d .  

 

C oun c i l  s t at e d  we  w e r e  h e r e  to  l i s te n  an d t o  h ear .   Sh e  w an te d t o  h e ar  the  M ay or ’ s  

c o mme n t s  s i n c e  h e  l i ve d  th e r e  a t  on e  po i n t .  

 

Th e  M a yor  s t a te d  h e  s pe n t  21  ye ar s  o n  F i r s t  S t r e e t ,  h a v i n g to  l ook  a t  the  L yn c h  S t r e e t  s i gn .   

Th e r e  w as  a l w ay s  a  qu e s t i on  f o r  h i m an d  o th e r  fa mi l y  me mb e r s .   N o  on e  ne w the  back gr ou n d 

o f  th e  n ame ;  th e y  j u s t  h a d to  ac c e p t  i t  w as  a  c h a l l e n ge .   M an y  i n  th e  c o m mu n i t y  sh a r e  h i s  

c onc e r n s .   Th e  Ma y or  r e a l i z e d i t  w ou l d  b e  an  i n con ve n i en c e ,  bu t  h e  th ou g h t  ma n y  pe o p l e  

wou l d  s ay  th e  n ame  n e e d s  to  be  ch an ge d.   He  th an k e d s t a f f  f o r  th e i r  w or k  on  th i s  m at te r .   

Th e r e  may  be  an ot he r  o pp or tu n i t y  t o  t a l k  to  th e  n e i gh b or s  on  L yn ch  S t r e e t  a n d  o th e r s  i n  

th e  c o mmu n i ty  wh o  may  h a ve  i s su e s .   M ay be Pe ak  Ac ade my  gr adu ate s  an d c o mmu n i t y  

you th  c ou l d  as s i s t .   Th e  M a y or  s t at e d  ma n y  c a me  t o  h i m w i th  t h i s  mat te r  wh e n  h e  t ook  

o f f i c e .   He  l i k ed  t he  i d e a  o f  f i n d i n g s o me th i n g n e u t r a l .   He  wa n t e d to  mak e  su r e  w e ge t  th i s  

r i gh t  e ven  i f  th a t  me a n s  go i n g back  an d t o u c h i ng  e ve r y  do or .  

 

C oun c i l  su gge s te d h a v i n g a  n on - b i n d i n g s e n se  o f  th e  r e s o l u t i on ,  s t a t i n g  wh a t  we  i n te n d to  

do .   He  w ou l d  l i k e  to  g o  on  th e  r ec or d  t o n i gh t  t o  s ta te  th at  w e  w i l l  o r  w i l l  n o t  ma k e  th e  

c h an ge .   We  sh ou l d  c on t i n u e  th e  f i n a l  vo t e  u n t i l  Oc to ber  2 1 ;  a nd  i n  th e  me an t i me ,  se n d  

ou t  a  l e t te r  w i th  t h r e e  i de a s  an d a  sp ac e  fo r  a  wr i te  i n  vo te .   H e  su g ge s te d  L yn n  C o u n c i l ,  

C la r i ce  At w a t e r ,  an d  th e n  s o me th i n g  n e u t r a l  su gge s te d  by  s t a f f .   Th e n  w e  shou l d  c o m mi t  

- Page 18 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 196 

 

 

 

to  r e i mbur s e  a l l  r e a l  c os t s  as soc i a te d  w i th  c han g i n g th e  n a me  as  we l l  a s  c o m mi t t i n g  s t a f f  

to  o f fe r  a s s i s t an c e .  

 

Th e  To w n At t o r n e y s ta te d i t  w a s  f i n e  fo r  Co u n c i l  t o  g i ve  a  p r e v i e w o f  w ha t  th e  e x pe c t at i o n  

w i l l  be  n e x t  t i me  C ou n c i l  t ak e s  th i s  u p .   Sh e  c au t i one d th at  we  wou l d  n e e d  to  l ook  a t  i f  t h e  

To wn  r e i mbu r s i n g  c i t i ze ns  f o r  th e  r en a mi n g i s  s o me th i n g  th a t  w e  w ou l d  be  le ga l l y  au th o r i ze d  

to  s pe n d mon e y  on .  

 

Coun c i l  s ta te d  sh e  wo u ld  be  h ap py  to  mo ve  fo r war d  w i t h  c h an g i n g th e  n ame ,  an d th at  we  

sh ou ld  th i n k  a bou t  a  n a me  no t  t i e d to  a  p e r son .   Wh e n  p eo ple  h a ve  t o  r e h e ar se  t h e i r  s t o r y ,  

i t  cau s e s  th e m h ar m.   Sh e  fe l t  w e  c ou l d  c o me  u p w i th  a  be au t i f u l  n a me fo r  a  b e au t i fu l  

c o mmu n i t y  o f  pe op l e  an d th e n  th i nk  o f  an o th er  w a y  to  h on or  pe op le  l i k e  Mr s .  At w a ter  an d  

M r .  Cou n c i l .   C ou n c i l  d i dn ’ t  w an t  to  c r e at e  bar r i e r s  o n  h o w t o  p a y fo r  t he  n ame  c h an g e in  

l i gh t  o f  w h a t  w as  c u r r e nt l y  go i ng  on .  

 

Coun c i l  ag r e e d th a t  t h e  n a me  ne e ds  t o  be  c h an ge d be c aus e  o f  th e  n e g a t i ve  h i s to r y .   Sh e  

wa n t e d  s t a f f  t o  wor k  w i th  r e s i den ts  on  f i t t i ng  po ss i b i l i t i e s ,  an d  sh e  w an te d h i s t o r i c a l  n a me s  

i n te gr a te d  i n to  the  c o mmu n i ty  i n  o th e r  w ay s .   Cou nc i l  su pp or t e d  f i n d i n g  h ow  r e s i d e nt s  

c ou l d  b e  h e lpe d f i n a n c i a l l y  an d  w i th  ph y s i c a l  h e l p .  

 

Coun c i l  a gr e e d w i th  t h e  c o m me n ts .   Ch a n g i n g th e  n a me  se e me d  t o  b e  th e  c on se n su s .   Sh e  

d i dn ’ t  w an t  t o  c au se  h ar m t o  peo pl e ,  an d  t h e  c u r r en t  n ame  br i n gs  ne ga t i ve  co nn o t at i ons .   

Sh e  agr ee d w i th  t h e  M a yor  th a t  th e r e  n e e ds  t o  be  mor e  ou t r e a c h  to  th e  c o mmu n i ty  an d 

ma y be  go i n g ou t  t o  t h e  su r r ou n di n g n e i gh bor h oo d t o  de te r mi ne  a  n a me .  

 

Coun c i l  s t a te d  we  ar e  b a l an c i n g a  h u r t f u l  n a me  vs .  th e  i n co n ve n i en c e  pe op le  fe e l .   Th e  

n a me i s  b i gge r  th an  t h e  i n c on ven i e n ce ,  an d h e  su pp or te d the  i d e a o f  g i v i n g  pe o p le  n a me s  

to  c h o ose  f r o m.  

 

Th e  Ma y or  s ta te d  th e  ac t i on  wou l d  be  to  mo ve  f o r w ar d  w i th  th e  r e c o mme n d a t i on  o f  the  

i n te n t  to  c h an ge  th e  na me ,  an d fo r  s t a f f  to  ge t  mo r e  fe e d bac k  f r o m th e  co m mun i t y .    

 

Coun c i l  a s k e d ab ou t  h ow  th e  o th e r s  fe l t  ab ou t  s en d i n g ou t  a  b a l l o t  o f  th r e e  n a me s .   C o u n c i l  

s t a te d sh e  fe l t  th e r e  wou l d  be  a  be t te r  r e s pon s e  se n d i n g a  pe r s on  ou t  r a th e r  th an  a  p i e ce  

o f  mai l  t o  be  r e tu r n e d .    

 

Coun c i l  s t a te d s he  wa s  i n  a gr e e me n t  bu t  w o n de r e d i f  mor e  wor k  n e ed s  to  be  don e  to  c o me  

u p w i th  th e  th r e e  n a me s .   Wo u l d  s ta f f  ne e d t o  d o  mor e  w or k  w i th  th e  r e s i de n ts  f o r  a  

c ons en s u s  o f  th e  th r e e  n a me s .   S h e  w an t e d  on e  mor e  e f f o r t  f r o m s t af f  t o  ge t  as  mu c h  

- Page 19 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 197 

 

 

 

c ons en s u s  as  po s s i b l e .   Con ve r s a t i on  e nsu e d a l on g  t h e s e  l i ne s  i n  o r de r  to  ge t  th i s  r i g ht  an d 

to  t ak e  mo r e  t i me t o  do  s o  i f  n e c es sar y .  

 

Th e  To w n M an a ge r  s t a t e d the r e  w as  a  c l e ar  de s i r e  t o  c h an ge  t h e  n a me o f  the  s t r e e t .   We  

h a ve  a  p o l i c y ,  bu t  w e  wou l d  de p ar t  f r o m th at  i n  th i s  c ase .   I f  we  a r e  to  g o  d oor  t o  do or ,  

th en  w e  w ou ld  n ee d mor e  tha n  a  mon th  to  d o  so .   Fo r  f u tu r e  ca se s ,  i t  w ou l d  be  e a s i e s t  t o  

fo l l o w th e  po l i c y .   He  ask e d f o r  C ou n c i l  gu i da n ce  o n  h o w t o  s o l i c i t  fo r  n a me s .  

 

C oun c i l  a sk e d  fo r  c l a r i f i c at i on  on  t h e  p o l i c y ,  the  Tow n  M an a ge r  s t at i n g  th e  p o l i cy  h as  b e e n  

fo l l o we d u p u nt i l  th i s  e ve n i n g .   Th i s  i s  a  c on se qu en t i a l  dec i s i o n .   Th e r e  w as  n o  pr o b le m  

de par t i ng  a  b i t  i n  th i s  c ase ,  bu t  w e  wa n t  to  be  c ar e fu l  fo r  th e  f u tu r e  i n  g o i n g  to  e ac h  h o me .   

I f  we  d o th a t  f o r  th i s  on e  r en ami n g  w i th  50  h o me s ,  th e n  wh y  n o t  do  i t  fo r  l a r ge r  s t r ee t  

r e n a mi n gs ?  

 

C oun c i l  c on ve r s at i on  e n sue d a bou t  h o w  to  so l i c i t  f o r  n a me s  a n d  i f  mor e  wor k  n e e d s  t o  be  

don e ,  h o w  t o  n ar r o w do wn  th e  n a mes  to  f i n a l i s t s ,  an d  w h o  wou l d  do  th i s .   Sh ou l d  we  a sk  

fo r  mor e  n ame s  o r  u se  wh at  we  se n t  ou t .   We  do n ’ t  k n o w  t h e  r ea s on  s o me  n e i gh bor s  d i dn ’ t  

r e tu r n  th e i r  b a l l o t s .   T h i s  i s  a  s i gn i f i c an t  c h an ge  f o r  a  sp e c i f i c  re as on .   We  n e e d  t o  do  a s  

mu ch  ou t r e ach  a s  po s s i b l e  an d ge t  i n pu t  f r o m as  ma ny  as  we  c an  w ho l i ve  t h e r e .   Th e r e  

wa s  h e s i t an c y  due  to  CO VI D  of  go i n g  d o or  t o  do or .   Pe r h ap s  th os e  wh o d i dn ’ t  r e sp on d we r e  

n o t  a b l e  t o  mai l  b ac k  th e  l e t t e r  o r  j u s t  d i dn ’ t  u n d er s t an d i t .   Th e  c o mmun i ty  n e e ds  to  be  

i n vo l ved ;  w e n e e d m or e  t i me  f o r  th i s .  

 

S ta f f  s ta te d th a t  i f  w e  w an t  to  ge t  th i s  d o n e  b y  J anu ar y  1 s t ,  the  mor e  t i me  th at  i t  tak e s  to  

mak e  a  d e c i s i on ,  th e  mor e  th e  bu r de n  o n  pe o p l e  to  ma k e  c h a n ge s  i n  t i me .   Th e  ac tu a l  

c h an ge  ca n  be  mo ve d ou t .   Th e  J an u ar y  de a d l i n e  w as  su g ge s t e d t o  n o t  i n te r fe r e  w i t h  

h o l i d ay  pac k a ge s ,  e l e ct i on  ma i l ,  e tc .    

 

C oun c i l  s t a te d  mayb e  th e r e  c ou l d  be  a  n e i gh b or h o o d me e t i n g  w i th  C ou nc i l  fo r  i n pu t .   Mr .  

M cM i l l i an  s t a te d  t h i s  wou l d  be  a  goo d i de a ,  an d h e  t h ou gh t  i t  w ou l d  t ak e  th e  s ca r i ne s s  ou t  

o f  t a l k i n g  to  Coun c i l .   He  s t a te d i t  w ou l d  be  go od t o  h a ve  a  me e t  an d gr e e t  w i th  th e  

n e i g hb or s  fo r  be t te r  c o mmu n i c a t i on .    

 

C oun c i l  s t a te d  h e  w a n te d to  h e ar  th e  p r ac t i c a l i t y  o f  h e l p i n g f i n a n c i a l l y .   The  e x i s t i n g  p o l i cy  

wa sn ’ t  wr i t te n  du r i n g  so me th i n g l i k e  th i s .  Ma ybe  w e  c ou l d  c h a n ge  th e  p o l i c y  to  i n c l ude  

n e i g hb or h oo d me e t i n gs ,  tw o  r ou n ds  o f  pu b l i c  h e ar i n gs ,  e tc .  

 

 

- Page 20 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 198 

 

 

 

O L D  B U S I N E S S  

 

OB1 C ol l e en  M er ay s ,  D o w n t own  an d S ma l l  Bu s i n e s s  D e ve lo pme n t  C o or d i n at or  

Ex te n d cu r r e n t  P ar k i n g- t o -D i n i n g  P r o gr a m l ay ou t  ad op te d b y T o wn  C ou n c i l  on  Au g u s t  

18 ,  2 02 0  u n t i l  O c to be r  2 1 ,  202 0  t o  a l l o w f o r  e x te n de d ou t d oor  d i n i n g  an d a l co ho l  

c ons u mp t i on  as  pe r mi t te d b y  AB C L a w or  r e gu l a t i on s ,  an d to  e x te n d the  o r d i n an c e  

te mp or ar i l y  mo di f y i n g  Tow n  Co de  Se c t i on s  14 -1 4  an d 18 -1 1  a s  th e y  r e l a te  to  s i de wa lk  

d i n i n g  an d  a l c oh o l  c o n su mp t i on  on  pu b l i c  s t r e e t s  an d  s i de wa lk s  t h r ou gh  O c to be r  2 1 ,  

20 20  

S taf f  s ta te d we  ar e  n ow i n  P h ase  2 .5 ,  an d  r e s tau r an ts  an d r e t a i l  a r e  s t i l l  l i m i te d .   Th e  AD B A 

Bo ar d  vo te d t o  e x t e n d th e  P ar k i n g - to -D i n i n g  P r o gr a m to  Oc t obe r  21 s t .   Th e  la s t  mo di f i c at i o n  

ope n e d  up  h a l f  o f  the  p ar k i ng  s pac e s .   No r ma l l y ,  th e r e  a r e  30  s p ac e s ,  a n d  w e  h a ve  op e n e d  

14  o f  th o se .   S t a f f  ta l k e d  ab ou t  h ow  be n e f i c i a l  t h e  P r o gr a m h as  be e n  f o r  th e  bu s i n e s s e s .  

 

Coun c i l  as k e d  h a d th e  bu s i ne s s  o wn e r s  b e e n  c on t ac t e d .   Ha v i n g an  AD B A v o te  i s  d i f fe r e n t  

th an  k n o w i n g  h ow  the  bu s i n es se s  fe e l .   R e sp ond i n g  t o  Cou n c i l ,  s t a f f  s ta te d  s he  h a d sp ok en  

w i th  th e  ma jo r i t y  o f  t h e  bu s i n e s s e s  an d th e y  ar e  h i gh l y  i n  fa vo r .   Mor e  th an  12  o f  th e m ar e  

d i r e c t l y  i mpac te d .   Th os e  w h o d i d  h a ve  o b j e c t i on s  t o  the  P r o g r a m pr e v i ou s l y ,  h a d b e en  

c ont ac te d  pe r s ona l l y  an d th e y u n de r s t an d  the  i s su e s  f ac i n g th e i r  n e i gh bor s .   S h e  h as  n ot  

h a d an y n e ga t i ve  f e e dbac k  s i n c e  th e  AD B A vo t e .   C ou nc i l  s t a te d  sh e  h as  h a d n e gat i ve  

fe e d bac k  an d s u gge s t e d t a l k i n g  to  e ac h  ow n e r  to  de te r mi n e  i f  th e  P r o gr a m s h ou l d  b e  

e x t e n de d .   C oun c i l  u n de r s t o od  t h at  so me  bu s i n es s  ow n e r s  we r e  to l d  to  be  qu i e t  a bou t  th i s  

i s su e .   Th e r e f or e ,  sh e  fe l t  t h e r e  a r e  c on c e r n s  ou t  th e r e  wh i c h  n e e d t o  b e  a d dr e s se d .  

 

Coun c i l  a s k e d i f  h e at e r s  a r e  a l l o we d i f  i t  ge t s  c o l d  du r i n g  t h i s  t i me f r a me ,  s ta f f  s t a t i n g  sh e  

wou l d  c he c k  w i th  th e  F i r e  M ar s h a l l .   S t a f f  s t a te d t h e r e  i s  a  r e qu i r e me n t  f o r  p r op ane  

e qu i p men t  to  be  sp a c e d a c e r t a i n  d i s t an c e f r o m e ac h  o th er .    

 

Coun c i l  s t a te d th i s  P r ogr a m h a s  be e n  a  l i f e l i n e  f o r  me r c h an ts .   Wh e n  th e  we a th er  c h a n ge s ,  

pe o p le  w i l l  n o t  w an t  t o  s i t  ou t s i de .   He  s t a t e d  h e  w ou l d  l i k e  t o  se e  w ha t  c an  b e  don e  i f  w e  

ar e  s t i l l  i n  t h i s  p h a se  a f t e r  Oc t ober .  

 

Coun c i l  s t a te d s he  w as  th i n k i n g  a b out  th e  h o l i d a y  se as on s  fo r  r e ta i l  an d wh at  i t  w i l l  d o  f o r  

fo l k s .   S ta f f  s ta te d sh e  h as  be e n  w or k i n g  w i th  th e  d o wn to wn  c o mmu n i ty ,  an d the y  h ave  

c o me u p  w i th  p r o mo t i ons  th at  t h e y  w i l l  h a ve  i n  c on ju n c t i on  w i th  t he  Ch amb e r  o f  Co m m e r c e 

to  h e l p  i n  ge t t i n g  pe op le  to  sh o p a n d s t r o l l  do wn to w n .   A l s o ,  th e  AD B A ha s  vo te d t o  p u t  

f i n an c i a l  b ac k i n g i n t o  p r o mo t i n g  th e  r e t a i l  as pe c t  o f  d o wn to w n .  

 

- Page 21 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 199 

 

 

 

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  c a l l e d  f o r  a  m o t i o n .   C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  G a n t t  m a d e  t h e  m o t i o n  t o  

a p p r o v e  t h e  r e q u e s t ;  C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  M a h a f f e y  s e c o n d e d  t h e  m o t i o n .  

 

C o u n c i l  w a n t e d  t o  k n o w  w h a t  w a s  b e h i n d  p e o p l e  b e i n g  t o l d  t o  b e  q u i e t ,  e s p e c i a l l y  i f  

t h i s  e x t e n s i o n  w o u l d  h u r t  t h e i r  b u s i n e s s .   C o u n c i l  s t a t e d  t h i s  w a s  w h y  s h e  w a n t e d  s t a f f  

t o  s p e a k  w i t h  e a c h  i n d i v i d u a l  b u s i n e s s  o w n e r  t o  f i n d  o u t  t h e i r  p r e f e r e n c e  i n s t e a d  o f  j u s t  

l i s t e n i n g  t o  t h e  AD B A  B o a r d .  

 

T h e  m o t i o n  c a r r i e d  b y  a  5 - 0  v o t e .  

 

OB2 Va nc e  Ho l l o man ,  F i na n c e  Of f i c e r  

Te mpor ar y  Or d i n an c e  M o d i f i ca t i o n s  ex te n d i n g  th e  c u r r e nt  s u spe n s i on  o f  u t i l i t y  

d i sc on n e c t i on s  an d a pp l i c at i o n  o f  pen a l t i e s  a n d fe e s  fo r  u n p a i d  u t i l i t y  b a l an c e s   

S ta f f  s ta te d  h e  p r e pa r e d  a  me mo to  th e  To w n M an a ger  i n  r e s po ns e  to  q ue s t i on s  r e c e i ved  

ab ou t  t h e  i mp ac t  to  o u r  u t i l i t y  fu n ds  u pon  e x te n d i n g u t i l i ty  c u t o f f s .   He  e x p l a i n e d th e  t h r e e  

fu n ds .   The  mos t  i mm e di a te  i mp ac t  wou l d  be  t o  th e  E le c t r i c  Fun d an d s ta f f  e x p l a i n e d wh y .   

Th e  Tow n p r e f e r s  t o  c u t  o f f  e le c t r i c  se r v i ce s  v s .  wa te r  an d se we r ,  e xp l a i n i n g  th a t  th e  e le c t r i c  

ba l an c e  i s  th e  l a s t  o n e  to  b e  pa i d .   S t a f f  p r e par e d  a  s t r e s s  t es t  o f  th e  E le c t r i c  Fu n d i f  w e 

c an n o t  co l le c t  de l i nq u e n t  f un ds  o f  pa s t  du e  a mo u n t s .  He  s t a t ed  w h a t  an n u a l  r e v e n ue  w e  

wou l d  l ose .  

 

S ta f f  s ta te d  the  ab so l u te  do l l a r s  a r e  i n c r e a s i ng  e ven  th ou gh  pe r c e nt ages  a r e  do wn ,  an d 

h e  e xp l a i n e d th e  l a t t e r .   B a se d  on  th e  r e s u l t s  c a l c u l a te d ,  h e  s a w n o  c on c e r n s  as  o f  Ju n e  

30 ,  2 020 .   Ho we ve r ,  p r o je c t i n g  th r ou gh  to  f i sc a l  y e ar  20 21  i n  the  E l e c t r i c  Fu n d,  i f  we  d o n ot  

c o l l e ct  th e  de l i n qu e n t  b i l l i n gs ,  we  wou l d  p r obab ly  i n c u r  a  lo s t  o f f  a bou t  $1 .5  mi l l i on .   He  

e xp la i n e d t he  s pec i f i c s  o f  th i s  f i gu r e ,  wh i c h  wou l d  n o t  b e  a  k n o ck  ou t  pun c h  bu t  on e  we  

wou l d  f ee l .   We  wou l d  th en  p r ob ab l y  n e e d to  i n c r e as e  r at e s  t o  mak e  u p fo r  l o s s  r e ve n ue ,  

an d th i s  p r oc e s s  w as  e xp l a i n e d .   I f  th e  pe r c e nt age  o f  n on - pa y m en t s  we r e  t o  i n c r e a se ,  th i s  

wou l d  c ha n ge h i s  an a ly s i s .    

 

S ta f f  s ta te d h e  u n der s t oo d th e  c ha l le n ge s  ou r  c i t i ze ns  a r e  f ac i n g .   He  a sk e d C ou nc i l  to  

c ons i d e r  th at  th e r e  i s  an  e x pe c ta t i on  a mo n g ou r  cu s to me r s ,  th ose  wh o h a ve  b ou gh t  ou r  

de bt ,  an d  a mo n g S ta t e  a ge nc i e s  tha t  we  w i l l  do  a l l  w e  c a n  to  c o l l e ct  ou r  de b t .   Th e  l on ge r  

we  go  w i th ou t  s u sp en di n g c o l l ec t i on s ,  th e  la r ge r  ou r  de b t  w i l l  b e  wh i ch  w i l l  i nc r e as e  the  

a moun t  we  w i l l  u l t i ma te l y  n ot  c o l l ec t .   S ta f f  s t a te d  th a t  u n t i l  c o l le c t i on  p r oc e du r e s  g o  b ac k  

to  no r ma l ,  th e r e  a r e  p r ogr a ms  fo r  a s s i s t an c e.   1 25  c us to mer s  h a ve  a sk e d f o r  pa y me n t  p l ans ,  

wh i c h  w i l l  be  f i n a l i ze d  a t  th e  d i sc on t i n u a n c e o f  n o  c u to f f s .   H e  s t a te d th e r e  a r e  c u r r e n t l y  

1 ,675  de l i n qu en t  acc ou n t s .    

 

- Page 22 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 200 

 

 

 

S taf f  s t a te d a  me mbe r  o f  h i s  s ta f f  d i d  r e se a r c h  on  th e  p ot e n t i a l  f o r  e s ta b l i sh i n g  a  c u s t o me r  

as s i s tan c e  p r o gr am a n d ga ve  de t a i l s  on  t h e  bac k gr oun d o f  th i s  p r o gr a m wh i c h  i s  i n  u s e  i n  

o t h e r  mun i c i pa l i t i e s .   We  h a ve  an  ou t s i d e  a ge n c y  l o ok i n g a t  th i s  an d  de te r mi n i ng  i t s  

fe as i b i l i t y .   As  o f  n o w ,  n o a ge n c i e s  h a ve  c on tac te d  u s  ab ou t  th e  d e l i n qu e n c i e s ;  b u t  a t  

so me  po i n t ,  we  ar e  e x pe c te d to  r e tu r n  to  b u s i ne s s  a s  n o r ma l  wh i l e  h e l p i n g  c i t i ze n s  as  mu ch  

as  w e c an .    

 

Coun c i l  th an k e d s t a f f  fo r  th e  r e por t  wh i c h  w as  u se fu l  an d h e l p fu l .  

 

Coun c i l  s t a te d e x p lo r i n g  th e  c u s t o me r  as s i s t anc e  pr o gr a m wou ld  be  a  go o d i de a .   Sh e  an d 

an o th e r  C ou n c i l  Me m be r  h a d bee n  on  a  c a l l  ab ou t  e du c at i o n a l  d i sp ar i t i e s  i n  ou r  a r e a .   The  

To wn  o f  Ap e x’ s  u t i l i t i e s  a r e  n o t  a  ba r r i e r  r i gh t  n o w ,  a nd sh e  w an t ed to  k e e p  i t  th i s  wa y .   A 

soc i a l  w or k e r  wou l d  b e  a  go o d o pp or tu n i t y  to  w or k  w i th  c u s t o mer s  on  a  cu s t o me r  as s i s t an ce  

pr o gr a m.  

 

Coun c i l  s t a te d  i t  i s  i mp or ta n t  t o  f i gu r e  o u t  h o w  i mpac te d pe op l e  c an t ap  i n t o  th e se  

r e sou r c e s ,  bu t  th i s  c a n  be  ve r y  h ar d .   Sh e  th ou gh t  the r e  sh ou l d  be  a  te a m ap pr o ac h de a l i n g  

w i th  C O VI D  a n d th a t  w e s h ou l d  h ave a  c o m mu n i t y  c r i s i s  l i a i so n  to  pus h  i n i t i a t i ve s  an d h e l p  

e n su r e  p eo pl e  s i gn  u p  fo r  h e lp .    

 

Coun c i l  s t a te d h e  r e ma i ne d oppo se d to  an  e x t e ns i on .   He  be l i eve d an  e x te n s i o n  wou l d  

e f f ec t i ve l y  fo r f e i t  c u s to me r s  f r o m c o l l e c t i n g  he lp  f r o m Wa k e  H e l ps .   C on ve r sa t i on  e n s u e d  

ab ou t  th e  f ac t s  su r r o un d i n g  the  Wa k e  He l ps  p r o gr a m.   Th e  ma j o r i ty  o f  the  out r eac h  ha s  

be e n  f r o m R a l e i gh  w h o i s  pu s h i n g th i s ,  an d  w e  n e e d t o  j u mp o n  i t .   Th e  b e l i e f  w as  th at  

R a l e i gh  i s  back  t o  i t s  r e gu l a r  b i l l i n g  p r ac t i ce s .  

 

S ta f f  s t a te d s i x  f o l k s  f r o m Ape x  h a ve  go t te n  Wa k e  He l ps  as s i s tan c e .   We  h a ve  p os te d  o n  a  

n u mbe r  o f  we b s i te s ,  a s  w e l l  a s  ou r  ow n ,  i n f o r ma t i on  abou t  t he  p r o gr a m.   M s .  Bo r de au  s t a t e d  

W WC M  r e f e r s  f o l k s  to  th e  Wa k e  He lp s  p r o gr a m.   W WC M wi l l  p r o v i de  l i mi te d  as s i s t an ce  fo r  

th ose  w ho  h a ve  n o t  ap p l i e d .   Sh e  s t a t e d  pe op le  a r e  ge t t i n g  Wa k e  He l ps ,  an d th i s  i s  a  

qu i c k e r  mo v i n g sy s te m th an  s o me  o f  th e  o th e r  p r o gr a ms .  

 

Coun c i l  s t a te d th i s  i s  th e  mo s t  p r e s s i n g  i s s u e  be fo r e  u s  a s  a  bo dy  r i gh t  n o w .   Th e  m on ey  

owe d  d oe s  n o t  e x i s t ;  c us t o me r s  s i mp l y  d on ’ t  h a ve  i t .   He  d i d  n o t  be l i e ve  pe o pl e  h a ve  n o t  

pa i d  j u s t  b e c au se  i t ’ s  an  o p t i on .   Tu r n i n g  o f f  se r v i c e s  i s  n o t  go i n g to  ma k e  mon e y  ap pe ar .   

Th e  a mo u n t  o we d the  To wn  i s  n o t  ou r  ou t - o f -poc k e t  a mou n t .   Th e  ac tu a l  co s t  t o  c u s to me r s  

i s  s i gn i f i can t ly  l o we r .   Go i n g fo r war d ,  Cou n c i l  s t a te d f oc u s  n e e d s  t o  be  on  Wa k e  He l p  an d  

ge t t i n g  t h e se  f u n ds  t o  ou r  fo l k s .   We  n e ed  t o  ge t  a s  b i g  a  sh a r e  o f  the se  fu n d s  as  p o s s i b le  

fo r  ou r  c i t i ze n s .    

- Page 23 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 201 

 

 

 

He  t a lk e d  ab ou t  a  w a y t o  ge t  the  w or d  ou t  to  c u s t o me r s  an d  fo l l ow i n g u p  w i th  t h o se  mo s t  

i n  a r r ea r s .   A c u s to m e r  a s s i s t an ce  p r o gr a m wou l d  be  go od  to  se t  u p  n e x t  ye ar  a f te r  Wak e  

r e sou r c e s  a r e  e x h aus t e d .   He  fe l t  we  n e e de d to  h i r e  a dd i t i on a l  s t a f f  to  f i gu r e  ou t  a  w a y  to  

mo ve  f o r w ar d w i th  co l l e c t i n g  de b t .   Se e i n g a s  w e  w i l l  r e su me  r egu l a r  p r ac t i c e s  a t  so me  

po i n t ,  we  ne e d t o  f i n d  mo t i va t i on  t o  ge t  p e op le  to  p ay .  

 

C oun c i l  s t a te d may be  a pe r son  wo u l d  be  he l p f u l  t o  h e lp  c u s t o me r s .   She  sp ok e  ab o u t  t h e  

s t r e s ses  pe op le  a r e  go i n g th r ou gh  an d ho w  th i s  pe r son  m i gh t  h e l p .  

 

C oun c i l  s t a te d sh e  l o s t  h e r  job .   I f  she  w a s  s i n g le  an d c u t o f f  w as  r e i n s t i t u t e d ,  s he  w ou l d  

p r o ba b l y  be  h o me le s s  an d h a ve h e r  u t i l i t i e s  c u t  o f f .   As  C ou n c i l  s t a te d ,  th e  mo n e y  i s  no t  

th e r e .   N o t  h a v i n g to  w or r y  ab ou t  u t i l i t i e s  i s  a  Go d se n d .   Sh e  p r e fe r r e d  t o  c on t i n u e  an d  

e xp lo r e  a s  ma n y  a ve n ue s  as  we  c an  to  h e l p  w i th  c a se  ma n a ge me n t  se r v i c e s  an d to  f i n d  

sou r c e s  to  h e l p  pe o pl e  ge t  th r ou gh .  

 

C oun c i l  s t a te d  we  s h ou l d  a l l  en c ou r a ge  Cou n t y  Co m mi s s i on er s  t o  mak e  su r e  fu n d s  a r e  

p r o pe r l y  a l loc a te d .  

 

C oun c i l  s t a te d  s o me  bu s i ne s se s  a r e  u n a b l e  to  ope n an d so me  c an ’ t  ope n  to  f u l l  c a p ac i ty .   

Sh e  s pok e  ab ou t  t h e  s t r e s s  on  fa mi l i e s ,  c h i l d r e n  par t i c u l a r l y ,  r e l a t e d  to  u t i l i t i e s  b e i n g  cu t  

o f f .   Sh e  wa s  n o t  go i n g t o  te l l  pe op le  t o  d o  th e  be s t  th e y  c ou l d  –  s he  w as  go i n g t o  do the  

be s t  sh e  c ou l d .   F l y e r s  n e ed  t o  be  ou t  e ve r y wh e r e  te l l i n g  peo ple  ab ou t  p r o gr a ms .  

 

C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  D o z i e r  m a d e  t h e  m o t i o n  t o  a d o p t  t h e  m o d i f i e d  O r d i n a n c e  

i n c l u d i n g  a  f u l l - c o u r t  p r e s s  o n  d i r e c t i n g  p e o p l e  t o  r e s o u r c e s  a n d  a  f u l l - t i m e  p e r s o n  

d e d i c a t e d  t o  t h i s  c o n s i s t e n t  w i t h  t h e  W a k e  H e l p s  m o n e y  e x t e n d i n g   

t h r o u g h  t h e  e n d  o f  t h e  y e a r ;  C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  S t a l l i n g s  s e c o n d e d  t h e  m o t i o n .  

 

C o u n c i l  s t a t e d  w e  h a v e  o t h e r  t o o l s  t o  h e l p  m o t i v a t e  p e o p l e  t o  p a y ,  i . e . ,  W a k e  H e l p s ,  

w h i c h  i s  f r e e  m o n e y .   I t  e x p i r e s  a n d  c u s t o m e r s  n e e d  t o  a p p l y .   T h e r e  i s  a  l a r g e  p o t  o f  

m o n e y  t h a t  w e  c a n  g e t  w i t h  s o m e  e f f o r t .  

 

C o u n c i l  M e m b e r s  D o z i e r ,  S t a l l i n g s ,  K i l l i n g s w o r t h ,  a n d  M a h a f f e y  v o t e d  i n  t h e  

a f f i r m a t i v e ;  C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  G a n t t  v o t e d  i n  t h e  n e g a t i v e .  

T h e  m o t i o n  c a r r i e d  b y  a  4 - 1  v o t e .  

 

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  c a l l e d  f o r  a  t e n - m i n u t e  r e c e s s .  

 

 

- Page 24 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 202 

 

 

 

U N F I N I S H E D  B U S I N E S S  

 

T h e r e  w e r e  n o  U n f i n i s h e d  B u s i n e s s  i t e m s  f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n .  

N E W  B U S I N E S S  

NB1 Au dr a  K i l l i ng sw or th ,  C ou n c i l  M e mb e r  

Am e n di n g o f  sec t i o n  14 -18  o f  th e  To wn  Co de  o f  Or d i nan c e s  t o  r e mo ve  th e  age  l i mi t  

fo r  T r i ck  o r  T r e at i n g  

Coun c i l  s ta te d th i s  w as  t a l k ed  ab ou t  l as t  ye ar  bu t  t h e  t i m i n g w asn ’ t  r i gh t .   Sh e  w i sh e d t o  

r e mo ve  th e  a ge  r e s t r i c t i on  bu t  le ave  th e  t i me  r e s t r i c t i on  as  i t  i s  c u r r en t l y .  

 

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  c a l l e d  f o r  a  m o t i o n .   C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  K i l l i n g s w o r t h  m a d e  t h e  m o t i o n  t o  

a p p r o v e  t h e  a m e n d m e n t ;  C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  S t a l l i n g s  s e c o n d e d  t h e  m o t i o n .  

T h e  m o t i o n  c a r r i e d  b y  a  5 - 0  v o t e .  

 

NB2 Va nc e  Ho l l o man ,  F i na n c e  D i r e c t o r  

R e so lu t i o n  au th o r i z i n g  th e  f i l i n g  o f  a n  a p p l i c at i o n  w i th  th e  L oc a l  Go ve r n me n t  

C o mmi s s i on  t o  i s su e  $ 32  mi l l i on  o f  Gen er a l  O b l i gat i o n  R e fu n d i ng  Bon d s  

S taf f  s t a t e d  i t  w as  a  goo d th i n g  th at  w e  c a n  bor r o w mo n e y  a t  a  c h ea p er  r a t e  du r i n g  t h e s e  

t i me s .   He  as k e d f o r  per mi s s i on  t o  r e t i r e  t h e  s t a te d  bo n d s .   I f  t h e  s a l e s  goe s  th r ou g h ,  th e  

bon d s  w ou l d  b e  t ax a b l e .   S ta f f  sp ok e  a b o u t  ta xa b le  r a te s ,  w h y  we  w an t  to  do  th i n g s  th i s  

wa y ,  an d the  s a v i n gs  we  wou l d  r e a l i ze .    

 

R e sp on di n g t o  C ou n c i l ,  s t a f f  g ave f i gu r e s  on  wh at  we  wou ld  be  sa v i n g .   A l o t  o f  

mu n i c i pa l i t i e s  d o i n g  t h i s ,  an d  we  w e r e  f o r t u n a te  t o  ge t  ou r  s a le  d a te  w h i c h  i s  b ef o r e  t h e  

e le c t i on .   He  e xp la i ne d mor e  a bou t  t ax a b le  an d ta x -e x e mp t  r a te s .    

 

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  c a l l e d  f o r  a  m o t i o n .   C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  M a h a f f e y  m a d e  t h e  m o t i o n  t o  

a d o p t  t h e  R e s o l u t i o n ;  C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  D o z i e r  s e c o n d e d  t h e  m o t i o n .  

T h e  m o t i o n  c a r r i e d  b y  a  5 - 0  v o t e .  

 

Coun c i l  M e mbe r  K i l l i n gs w or th  wa s  e xc u se d f r o m th e  me e t i n g  a t  t h i s  po i n t .  

C L O S E D  S E S S I O N  

CS1 L aur i e  H oh e ,  To wn  At t o r n e y   

C lo se d s e s s i on  pu r s u an t  to  N CG S 14 3 - 3 18 .11 (a) (3 )  t o  p r o t ec t  a t t o r n e y - c l i e n t  

p r i v i l e ge ,  a n d  (a ) (4 )  t o  d i sc u s s  ma t te r s  r e la te d  t o  t h e  loc a t i on  o r  e xp an s i on  o f  

bu s i n e s se s  to  th e  ar e a ,  an d pu r su an t  to  14 3 -3 18 .11 (a ) (5 )  t o  i n s t r u c t  s t a f f  c on c e r n i n g  

- Page 25 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 203 

 

 

 

th e  pu r c h as e  o f  r e a l  p r o per t y ,  an d  pu r su an t  to  14 3 - 31 8 .11 (a ) ( 1 )  t o  p r e ven t  t h e  

d i sc l o su r e  o f  i n fo r ma t i on  th a t  i s  p r i v i le ge d o r  c on f i de n t i a l  p u r su an t  t o  G S  1 43 -

31 8 .1 0 (e )  

 

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  c a l l e d  f o r  a  m o t i o n .   C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  G a n t t  m a d e  t h e  m o t i o n  t o  g o  i n t o  

C l o s e d  S e s s i o n ;  C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  S t a l l i n g s  s e c o n d e d  t h e  m o t i o n .  

T h e  m o t i o n  c a r r i e d  b y  a  5 - 0  v o t e .  

 

M ayor  G i l be r t  c a l l e d f o r  a  r e tu r n  to  O pe n  S e s s i on  w i th  n o  o b je c t i on s  f r o m C ou n c i l .  

 

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  c a l l e d  f o r  a  m o t i o n  t o  s e t  a  p u b l i c  h e a r i n g  f o r  t h e  O c t o b e r  6 ,  2 0 2 0  

C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  c o n c e r n i n g  t h e  p u r c h a s e  o f  r e a l  p r o p e r t y  f o r  E c o n o m i c   

D e v e l o p m e n t  p u r p o s e s .   C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  M a h a f f e y  m a d e  t h e  m o t i o n ;   

C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  S t a l l i n g s  s e c o n d e d  t h e  m o t i o n .  

T h e  m o t i o n  c a r r i e d  b y  a  4 - 0  v o t e .  

 

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  c a l l e d  f o r  a  m o t i o n  t o  a d o p t  t h e  r e s o l u t i o n  a u t h o r i z i n g  e m i n e n t  d o m a i n  

r e l a t e d  t o  t h e  a p e x  t r a n s p o r t a t i o n  s y s t e m .   C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  M a h a f f e y  m a d e  t h e  

m o t i o n ;  C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  D o z i e r  s e c o n d e d  t h e  m o t i o n .  

T h e  m o t i o n  c a r r i e d  b y  a  4 - 0  v o t e .  

 

 

W O R K  S E S S I O N  

T h e r e  w e r e  n o  Wo r k  S e s s i o n  i t e m s  f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n .  

AD J O U R N M E N T  

Wi t h  th e r e  be i n g n o  fu r the r  bu s i n e s s  an d w i th ou t  o b j e c t i on  f r o m C ou n c i l ,  M ay or  G i l b e r t  

ad j ou r n e d th e  M ee t i n g .  

 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _  

Don n a B .  H os c h ,  M M C ,  N CC M C  

To wn  C le r k  

AT TE S T :  

 
 

 

 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ __ _  

Jac que s  K .  G i lbe r t ,  M ay or  

- Page 26 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  20 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Am a n d a Bunc e ,  Cu r re n t  P l ann i n g M an a ger  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  P l ann i n g and  C o mmu n i ty  D e ve l op men t  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  to  a ppr o ve  th e  S t at e men t  o f  th e  Apex  To wn Counc i l  pu r suan t  t o  G .S .  160 A - 38 3  a ddr es s i ng  

ac t i o n  on  t he  var i ous  Un i f i ed De ve lo p men t  Ord i n anc e (U D O ) Am end men t s  o f  Oc to ber  6 ,  2020 .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

The  P l ann i n g a nd  Co m mun i t y  De ve lo p men t  De p ar t me nt  rec o m m end s  a p pro va l .  

I tem De ta i l s  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  S ta te men t  o f  To wn C o unc i l  

 

- Page 27 -



 

STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-383 ADDRESSING ACTION ON 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (UDO) AMENDMENTS OF OCTOBER 6, 2020 
 

 Pursuant to G.S. §160A-384 and Sec. 2.2.11.E of the Unified Development Ordinance, the Planning 
Director for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting), 
of a public hearing on UDO Amendments before the Town Council on the 18th day of August 2020. 
 

 The Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 14th day of September 2020. Amanda Bunce, 
Current Planning Manager, presented the Planning Board's vote to recommend approval by a vote of 7-0 
at the public hearing. 
 

 All persons who desired to present information relevant to the UDO Amendments and who were 
residents of Apex or its extraterritorial jurisdiction were allowed to present evidence at the public hearing 
before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to speak was turned away. 
 

 The Town Council by a vote of 5 to 0 approved the Ordinance for UDO Amendments.  
 

The Apex Town Council finds from information and testimony provided at the public hearing that 
the approval of the UDO Amendments of October 6, 2020 is consistent with the Advance Apex: The 2045 
Plan and reasonable and in the public interest for the following reason(s): 

 
1. The amendments to various sections of the UDO in order to replace pronouns with non-

gender specific terminology and to make minor modifications to wording necessary to 
incorporate such changes ensures consistency with formatting used in the remainder of the 
UDO. 
 

2. The amendments to UDO Sec. 6.1.11.I Riparian Buffers, Notification on Site Plan and 
Subdivision Plan and Recording of Information and 12.2 Terms Defined changes two 
references to “stream buffers” to “riparian buffers” in order to be consistent with terminology 
used throughout the UDO. 

 

 
 

______________________________________ 
Jacques K. Gilbert 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
 
___________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 

 
_________________________ 
Date 

- Page 28 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  20 ,  2 0 2 0  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  She l l y  M ay o ,  P lan ner  I I  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  P l ann i n g and  C o mmu n i ty  D e ve l op men t  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  t o  a ppr o ve  th e  S t a te men t  o f  t he  T own  C ounc i l  fo r  R ez o n i ng Ca se  #19C Z21  H ee la n  P UD ,  

Ja son  Bar r on  f o r  Morn i ng s t a r  La w  Gr ou p ,  pe t i t i one r ,  f o r  the  p ro per t i e s  loc a te d a t  8824  &  8829  Ne w 

Ho pe F ar m R o ad ,  310 8  &  3120  O l i ve  F ar m R oa d ,  an d 0  Hu mi e  O l i ve  R oa d .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

P l ann i n g and  C o mmu n i ty  D e ve l op men t  De par t men t  rec o mme nd s  a p pro va l .  

I tem De ta i l s  

R ezon i n g C ase  # 19C Z 21  w as  a ppr o ve d a t  t he  Oc to ber  6 ,  2020  To wn C ounc i l  mee t i n g .  

At t ac h men t s  

  S ta te men t  o f  the  To w n Counc i l  

 

- Page 29 -



STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-383 
ADDRESSING ACTION ON ZONING PETITION #19CZ21 

 

Page 1 of 2 

 Morning Star Law Group, applicant (the “Applicant”), submitted a completed application for 
a conditional zoning on the 1st day of October 2019 (the “Application”).  The proposed conditional 
zoning is designated #19CZ21. 

 The Planning Director for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused proper notice to be given 
(by publication and posting) of a public hearing on #19CZ21 before the Planning Board held on the 
14th day of September 2020. 

 Pursuant to G.S. §160A-384 and Sec. 2.2.11(E) of the Unified Development Ordinance, the 
Planning Director caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting), of a public hearing 
on #19CZ21  before the Town Council on the 6th day of October 2020. 

   The Apex Planning Board held a public hearing on the 14th day of September 2020, gathered 
facts, received public comments and, following a 24 hour public comment period, on the 16th day of 
September 2020 formulated a recommendation regarding the application for conditional zoning  
#19CZ21. A motion was made at the Apex Planning Board to recommend approval; the motion 
passed by a vote of 6-0 with 1 abstention due to technical difficulties for the application for #19CZ21. 

 The Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 6th day of October 2020. Amanda Bunce, 
Current Planning Manager, presented the Planning Board's recommendation at the public hearing.   

 All persons who desired to present information relevant to the application for #19CZ21 and 
who were residents of Apex or its extraterritorial jurisdiction, or who owned property adjoining the 
property for which the conditional zoning is sought, were allowed to present evidence at the public 
hearing before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to speak was turned away. 

 The Town Council by a vote of 5 to 0 approved Application #19CZ21 rezoning the subject 
tracts located at 8824 & 8829 New Hope Farm Road; 3108 & 3120 Olive Farm Road; and 0 Humie 
Olive Road from Wake Co. Residential – 40W to Planned Unit Development – Conditional Zoning 
(PUD-CZ).   

 The Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is consistent with the 2045 
Land Use Plan and other adopted plans in that: The 2045 Land Use Map designates the site as Low 
Density Residential and Medium Density Residential. This designation on the 2045 Land Use Map 
includes the zoning district Planned Unit Development – Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ). Density within 
the region designated as Low Density on the 2045 Land Use Map shall not exceed 3 units per acre, 
with a maximum of 96 residential units in this area. The overall gross density shall not exceed 3.7 
units per acre. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the 2045 Land Use Map designations and the 
Apex Town Council has further considered that the proposed rezoning to Planned Unit Development 
– Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) will maintain the character and appearance of the area and provide 

- Page 30 -



STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-383 
ADDRESSING ACTION ON ZONING PETITION #19CZ21 

 

Page 2 of 2 

the flexibility to accommodate the growth in population, economy, and infrastructure consistent with 
that contemplated by the 2045 Land Use Map.  

The Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is reasonable and in the public 
interest in that: it will permit a variety of energy efficient housing types and offer an affordable 
housing option. The proposed development is consistent with the approved residential 
developments to the east, south, and west. It will also provide mitigation land needed to release the 
future Richardson Road corridor from the conservation easement. The IRT expressed appreciation for 
the proposed mitigation as it provides ecological value. The rezoning will encourage compatible 
development of the property and increase the tax base.   

 
 

                         ______________________________________ 
                         Jacques K. Gilbert 
                         Mayor 

ATTEST: 
   
_______________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
 
_________________________ 
Date 

- Page 31 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  20 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  L i z  Lo f t i n ,  Sen i o r  P la n ner  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  P l ann i n g and  C o mmu n i ty  D e ve l op men t  

R eques te d  Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  t o  a ppr o ve  S t at e men t  o f  the  To wn  C ounc i l  an d Or d i na nc e fo r  R ez on i n g Ca s e  #20 CZ04 ,  

Ko bra  T r ac t s  PU D ,  Wi t he r sR a vene l ,  pe t i t i on e r ,  f o r  the  p r oper t y  l o c at ed  a t  7500  Gree n  L eve l  Chu rc h 

R oa d &  7501  Jen ks  R o ad .   

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

P l ann i n g and  C o mmu n i ty  D e ve l op men t  De par t men t  rec o mme nd s  a p pro va l .   

I tem De ta i l s  

R ezon i n g C ase  #20C Z 04  Ko br a  T r ac ts  P UD wa s  ap pro ved  a t  the  Oc t ob er  6 ,  2020  To wn  Counc i l  

mee t i ng .   

At t ac h men t s  

  S ta te men t  o f  the  To w n Counc i l   

  Ord i n anc e to  Ame nd  the  Of f i c i a l  Z on i n g D i s t r i c t  Ma p  

 

- Page 32 -



STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-383 
ADDRESSING ACTION ON ZONING PETITION #20CZ04 

 
 
 
 KOBRA LLC/WithersRavenel, owner/applicant (the “Applicant”), submitted a completed 
application for a conditional zoning on the 2nd day of March 2020 (the “Application”).  The proposed 
conditional zoning is designated #20CZ04. 
 
 
 The Planning & Community Development Director for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused 
proper notice to be given (by publication and posting) of a public hearing on #20CZ04 before the 
Planning Board held on the 14th day of September 2020. 
 
 
 Pursuant to G.S. §160A-384 and Sec. 2.2.11(E) of the Unified Development Ordinance, the 
Planning Director caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting), of a public hearing 
on #20CZ04 before the Town Council on the 6th day of October 2020. 
 
 

   The Apex Planning Board held a public hearing on the 14th day of September 2020, gathered 
facts, received public comments and, following a 24 hour public comment period, on the 16th day of 
September 2020 formulated a recommendation regarding the application for conditional zoning 
#20CZ04.  A motion was made at the Apex Planning Board to recommend approval; the motion 
passed by a 6-0 vote with 1 abstention due to technical difficulties for the application for #20CZ04. 
 

 
 The Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 6th day of October 2020. Liz Loftin, Senior 
Planner, presented the Planning Board's recommendation at the public hearing.   
 
 
 All persons who desired to present information relevant to the application for #20CZ04 and 
who were residents of Apex or its extraterritorial jurisdiction, or who owned property adjoining the 
property for which the conditional zoning is sought, were allowed to present evidence at the public 
hearing before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to speak was turned away. 
 
 
 The Town Council by a vote of 5 to 0 approved Application #20CZ04 rezoning the subject 
tract located at 7500 Green Level Church Road & 7501 Jenks Road from Rural Residential (RR) to 
Planning Unit Development Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ).   
 
 
 The Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is consistent with the 2045 
Land Use Plan and other adopted plans in that: The 2045 Land Use Map designates the northern 
property of the site as Medium Density Residential/Office Employment and the southern property as 
Mixed Use: High Density Residential/Office Employment/Commercial Services. This designation on 
the 2045 Land Use Map includes the zoning district Planning Unit Development-Conditional Zoning 
(PUD-CZ) and the Apex Town Council has further considered that the proposed rezoning to Planned 
Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) will maintain the character and appearance of the 
area and provide the flexibility to accommodate the growth in population, economy, and 
infrastructure consistent with that contemplated by the 2045 Land Use Map.  
 
 

- Page 33 -



STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL ZONING PETITION #20CZ04 
PAGE 2 

 
 

The Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is reasonable and in the public 
interest in that: the site is located between two (2) major commercial areas and along two (2) 
thoroughfares. The proposed rezoning to Planning Unit Development-Conditional Zoning will have a 
maximum residential density of 3 dwelling units per acre and designates approximately 5.46 acres or 
100% of the southern property as non-residential. The rezoning will encourage compatible 
development of the property and increase the tax base.   
 
 

                         ______________________________________ 
                         Jacques K. Gilbert 
                         Mayor 

ATTEST: 
   
_______________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
 
_________________________ 
Date 

- Page 34 -



ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE TOWN OF APEX TO 
CHANGE THE ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 24.63 ACRES LOCATED AT 7500 GREEN LEVEL 
CHURCH ROAD & 7501 JENKS ROAD FROM RURAL RESIDENTIAL TO PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT-CONDITIONAL ZONING (PUD-CZ) 

#20CZ04 
 

  
WHEREAS, the application of KOBRA LLC/WithersRavenel petitioner, for the rezoning of lands hereinafter 
described was duly filed with the office of the Planning Director and thereafter a public hearing was held 
hereon on the 14th  day of September 2020 before the Planning Board and the 6th  day of  October 2020, 
before the Town Council, respectively, pursuant to due notice mailed and published pursuant to G.S. § 
160A-384. Thereafter, the Planning Board submitted its final report to the Town Council recommending 
approval of said application for the rezoning of the lands hereinafter described, all in accordance with the 
requirements of the Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance and the provisions of Chapter 160A, 
Article 19, of the North Carolina General Statutes; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF APEX 
 
 
 Section 1:  The lands that are the subject of the Ordinance are those certain lands described in 
Attachment “A” – Legal Description which is incorporated herein by reference, and said lands are hereafter 
referred to as the “Rezoned Lands.” 
 
 
             Section 2:  The Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance, including the Town of Apex North 
Carolina Official Zoning District Map which is a part of said Ordinance, is hereby amended by changing the 
zoning classification of the “Rezoned Lands” from Rural Residential (RR) to Planned Unit Development-
Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) District, subject to the conditions stated herein. 
 
 
 

Section 3:   The “Rezoned Lands” are subject the conditions in Attachment “B” Kobra Tracts PUD 
which are imposed as part of this rezoning.  
 
 
 

Section 4:  The Planning Director is hereby authorized and directed to cause the said Official Zoning 
District Map for the Town of Apex, North Carolina, to be physically revised and amended to reflect the 
zoning changes ordained by this Ordinance. 
 
 
 

Section 5:  The “Rezoned Lands” shall be perpetually bound to the conditions imposed including 
the uses authorized, unless subsequently changed or amended as provided for in the Unified Development 
Ordinance.  Site plans for any development to be made pursuant to this amendment to the Official Zoning 
District Map shall be submitted for site plan approval as provided for in the Unified Development 
Ordinance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Page 35 -



 
 
Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map  #20CZ04 
Page Two 
 

 
Section 6:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 
 Motion by Council Member___________________________________ 
 
 Seconded by Council Member__________________________________ 
 
 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "aye." 
 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "no." 
 
 This the _____ day of _________________ 2020. 
 
 

                                                                   TOWN OF APEX 
 
 

                                                                      ____________________________________ 
                                                                                                                           Mayor 
ATTEST:          
 
____________________________________ 
                       Town Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________________ 
                    Town Attorney                 

 

- Page 36 -



- Page 37 -

lloftin
Typewritten Text
"Attachment A"

lloftin
Typewritten Text

lloftin
Typewritten Text



- Page 38 -



 

Planned Unit Development Plan 

 

KOBRA TRACTS 

Apex, North Carolina 

Revision Date: 10‐06‐2020 

Prepared for The Town of Apex 

 

 

Applicant 

Lennar Corporation – Raleigh Division 

1100 Perimeter Park Drive, Suite 112 

Morrisville, NC 27560 

 

 

Property Owner 

KOBRA LLC 

117 Woodland Ridge Drive 

Fuquay‐Varina, NC 27526 

 

   

- Page 39 -

lloftin
Typewritten Text
"Attachment B"

lloftin
Typewritten Text

lloftin
Typewritten Text



 

137 S Wilmington Street, Suite 200 | Raleigh, NC 27601 

t: 919.469.3340 | f: 919.467.6008 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. C‐0832 

  Asheville | Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington  2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

2.0 Vicinity Map ................................................................................................................................................................. 3 

3.0 Project Data ................................................................................................................................................................. 4 

4.0 Proposed List of Uses ................................................................................................................................................ 5 

5.0 Purpose Statement‐Planned Unit Development Standards ............................................................................. 6 

6.0 Proposed Design Controls ........................................................................................................................................ 6 

7.0 Proposed Residential Architectural Controls ....................................................................................................... 7 

8.0 Proposed Non‐residential Architectural Controls .............................................................................................. 8 

9.0 Parking and Loading ................................................................................................................................................... 8 

10.0 Signage ........................................................................................................................................................................ 9 

11.0 Natural Resource and Environmental Data........................................................................................................ 9 

12.0 Stormwater Management Requirements ........................................................................................................... 9 

13.0 Parks, Recreation and Cultural Advisory Commission Review................................................................... 10 

14.0 Public Facilities Requirements............................................................................................................................ 10 

15.0 Phasing Plan ............................................................................................................................................................ 13 

16.0 Consistency with 2045 Land Use Plan ............................................................................................................. 14 

17.0 Consistency with Unified Development Ordinance ..................................................................................... 15 

18.0 Elevations ................................................................................................................................................................ 15 

19.0 Affordable Housing ............................................................................................................................................... 15 

 

   

- Page 40 -



 

137 S Wilmington Street, Suite 200 | Raleigh, NC 27601 

t: 919.469.3340 | f: 919.467.6008 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. C‐0832 

  Asheville | Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington  3 

2.0 VICINITY MAP 

 

Project Parcels: Not to Scale 

   

- Page 41 -



 

137 S Wilmington Street, Suite 200 | Raleigh, NC 27601 

t: 919.469.3340 | f: 919.467.6008 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. C‐0832 

  Asheville | Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington  4 

3.0 PROJECT DATA 

Name of Project KOBRA Tracts 

PIN(s) 0733102211 

0732196422 

Preparer/Owner Information Prepared 
by 

WithersRavenel 

137 S. Wilmington Street, 
Suite 200 

Raleigh, NC 27601 

Phone: 919.469.3340 

Fax: 919.467.6008 

Email: 
bvega@withersravenel.com 

Owner KOBRA LLC 

117 Woodland Ridge Drive 

Fuquay-Varina, NC 27526 

Current Zoning Designation Rural Residential (RR) 

Proposed Zoning Designation Planned Unit Development (PUD-CZ) 

Current 2045 Land Use Map Designation Med. Density Residential/Office 
Employment & Mixed-Use: High 
Density Residential/Office 
Employment/Commercial Services 

Proposed 2045 Land Use Map Designation No Proposed Change 

Area of Tracts 18.21 ac & 5.46 ac (Total 23.67 ac) 

Area designated as Mixed-Use on 2045 
Land Use Map 

5.46 ac 

Area of Mixed-Use Property Proposed as 
Non-Residential Development 

5.46 ac 

Percent of Mixed-Use Areas Proposed as 
Non-Residential Development 

100% 

 

   

- Page 42 -



 

137 S Wilmington Street, Suite 200 | Raleigh, NC 27601 

t: 919.469.3340 | f: 919.467.6008 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. C‐0832 

  Asheville | Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington  5 

4.0 PROPOSED LIST OF USES 

The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. 
The permitted uses are subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and 
any additional limitations or regulations stated below. For convenience, some relevant 
sections of the UDO may be referenced; such references do not imply that other 
sections of the UDO do not apply. 

Residential 

 Single‐Family 
 Accessory Dwelling Unit 
 Townhouse 
 Townhouse, Detached 

Non‐Residential 

 Utility, Minor 
 Greenway 
 Park, Active 
 Park, Passive 
 Office, Business or Professional 
 Restaurant, General 
 Medical or Dental Office or Clinic 
 Medical or Dental Laboratory 
 Hotel or Motel 
 Artisan Studio 
 Barber and Beauty Shop 

 Book Store 
 Financial Institution 
 Floral Shop 
 Funeral Home 
 Kennel 
 Newsstand or Gift Shop 
 Personal Service 
 Pharmacy 
 Printing and Copying Service 
 Real Estate Sales 

 Pet Services 
 Studio for Art 
 Tailor Shop 
 Microbrewery 
 Microdistillery 
 Retail Sales, General 
 Grocery, Specialty 

 

- Page 43 -



 

137 S Wilmington Street, Suite 200 | Raleigh, NC 27601 

t: 919.469.3340 | f: 919.467.6008 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. C‐0832 

  Asheville | Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington  6 

5.0 PURPOSE STATEMENT‐PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

The KOBRA Tracts Conceptual Layout has been carefully designed in order to help 
establish appropriately‐sized residential and non‐residential land uses strategically along 
major thoroughfares. With the Town of Apex expanding, intentional development along 
the 540 corridor will help the nearby areas grow in a purposeful manner according to the 
concepts laid out in the Advance Apex Future Land Use Plan. The site will provide a 
mixture of residential options and non‐residential uses that will set the tone for corridor 
development in northwest Apex. This elegant mixture of uses will create a live/work 
environment that will promote walkability and serve as an anchor for strategic, 
intentional development. 

 

6.0 PROPOSED DESIGN CONTROLS 

Maximum Square Footage per Non-
Residential Use 

39,000 sq. ft. 

Maximum Densities per Residential 
Use (du/Acre) 

3 du/acre (70 du total) 

Maximum Height of Buildings Residential – 32 feet 

Non-residential - 48 feet 

Minimum Residential Setbacks Front:  

5’ from façade 

19’ from garage to lot 
line  

20’ from garage to back 
of sidewalk 

Side: 5’ Rear: 
10’ 

Corner 
Side: 10’ 

Non-Residential Setbacks Front:  

20’ 

Side:  

10’ 

Rear: 
20’ 

Corner 
Side: 10’ 

Amount and Percentage of Built 
Upon Area Allowed 

70% 

Amount and Percentage of 
Proposed Built Upon Area (Max) 

16.57 Acres, 70% 

- Page 44 -



 

137 S Wilmington Street, Suite 200 | Raleigh, NC 27601 

t: 919.469.3340 | f: 919.467.6008 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. C‐0832 

  Asheville | Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington  7 

Buffers shall be designated as such: 

Northern Parcel (PIN #0733102211) 

North 10’ Type B Buffer 

East 10’ Type B Buffer 

South 30’ Type B Buffer 

West 30’ Type B Buffer 

Southern Parcel (PIN #0732196422) 

North 30’ Type E Buffer 

West 20’ Type B Buffer 

South 20’ Type B Buffer 

East  100’ Type A Buffer** 

**May be reduced to 50’ Type A Buffer per UDO Section 8.2.6 

 

A 30 ft. wide minimum cross access easement will be provided from PIN# 0733102211 
to PIN# 0732198808 in order to provide an access point for the parcel through a 
driveway at Jenks Road.  In the event that the driveway extends to the main entrance of 
the subdivision on Jenks Road, the buffer will be reduced to no less than 15’ to 
accommodate the access easement. 

7.0 PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL ARCHITECTURAL CONTROLS 

1. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and 
trim are permitted. 

2. All townhomes shall have a raised foundation which at a minimum rises at least 
12 inches from average grade across the front of the house to the finished floor 
level at the front door. 

3. The roofline cannot be a single mass; it must be broken up horizontally and 
vertically between every unit. 

4. Garage doors must have windows, decorative details or carriage‐style adornments 
on them. 

5. Entrances for units with front‐facing single‐car garages shall have a prominent 
covered porch/stoop area leading to the front door. 

6. Building facades shall have horizontal relief achieved by the use of recesses and 
projections. 

- Page 45 -



 

137 S Wilmington Street, Suite 200 | Raleigh, NC 27601 

t: 919.469.3340 | f: 919.467.6008 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. C‐0832 

  Asheville | Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington  8 

7. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision to 
include a minimum of three color families for siding and shall include varied trim, 
shutter, and accent colors complementing the siding color. 

8. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right‐of‐way 
shall have trim around the windows. 

9. The visible side of a townhome on a corner lot facing the public street shall 
contain at least 3 decorative elements such as, but not limited to, the following 
elements: 
 

 Windows 
 Bay window 
 Recessed window 
 Decorative window 
 Trim around the windows 
 Wrap‐around porch or side porch 
 Two or more building materials 
 Decorative brick/stone 
 Decorative trim 

 Decorative shake 
 Decorative air vents on gables 
 Decorative gable 
 Decorative cornice 
 Column 
 Portico 
 Balcony 
 Dormer 

 
10. The Residential dwelling units will be provided with solar conduit to 

accommodate the future installation of solar panels. 
 
 

8.0 PROPOSED NON‐RESIDENTIAL ARCHITECTURAL CONTROLS 

1. The predominant exterior building materials shall be brick, wood, stone, and 
tinted/textured concrete masonry units. 

2. The building exterior shall have more than one (1) material color. 

3. No more than 20% of any building façade may consist of EIFS material. 

4. EIFS or synthetic stucco shall not be used in the first 4 feet above grade.  

 

9.0 PARKING AND LOADING 

All parking provided on the Site will comply with the requirements outlined in Section 
8.3 of the Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance. 

 

 

- Page 46 -



 

137 S Wilmington Street, Suite 200 | Raleigh, NC 27601 

t: 919.469.3340 | f: 919.467.6008 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. C‐0832 

  Asheville | Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington  9 

10.0 SIGNAGE 

All signage on the Site will comply with the requirements outlined in Section 8.7 of the 
Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance. 

11.0 NATURAL RESOURCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL DATA 

The KOBRA Tracts Site is located within the Primary Watershed Protection Overlay 
District and is therefore subject to the requirements outlined in Section 6.1 of the Town 
of Apex Unified Development Ordinance. 

The parcels that make up the Site do not contain FEMA designated 100‐year floodplains 
according to FEMA FIRM Panels 3720073300J and 3720073200J, effective 
05/02/2006. 

The Site is also subject to the Resource Conservation Area requirements outlined in 
Section 8.1 of the Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance.  

 5.92 acres (25% of gross site acreage) required for the Resource Conservation 
Area 

 6.0 acres (25.35% of gross site acreage) of Resource Conservation Area provided. 

Existing deciduous trees greater than 18” in diameter (DBH), as identified in the tree 
survey, that are removed by site development shall be replaced by planting a 1.5” caliper 
native tree from the Town of Apex Design and Development Manual. 

According the North Carolina Historic Preservation Office’s HPOWEB 2.0 Mapping 
application, there are no historic structure contained on the Site. 

 

12.0 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS 

The parcels on which the development is proposed upon currently consist of a few 
existing structures, some cleared lands, and wooded lands. Two ponds exist on the 
northern parcel, and drain to Clark Branch Creek and Reedy Branch Creek, eventually 
feeding into Jordan Lake. The proposed development plan will require stormwater 
management measures in accordance with Sections 6.1 and 7.5.7 in the Town of Apex 
Unified Development Ordinance. Stormwater captured on the Site will be conveyed to 
proposed Stormwater Control Measures, which will be identified on plans during the 
master subdivision or site plan approval stage. Post‐development peak runoff shall not 

- Page 47 -



 

137 S Wilmington Street, Suite 200 | Raleigh, NC 27601 

t: 919.469.3340 | f: 919.467.6008 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. C‐0832 

  Asheville | Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington  10 

exceed pre‐development peak runoff for the 24‐hour, 1‐year and 10‐year storm events 
in accordance with the Unified Development Ordinance. Treatment for the first 1‐inch 
of runoff will be provided such that the removal of 85% Total Suspended Solids is 
achieved. All stormwater devices will meet the design requirements of NCDENR and the 
Town of Apex. 

 

13.0 PARKS, RECREATION AND CULTURAL ADVISORY COMMISSION 
REVIEW 

At the June 24, 2020 meeting, the PRCAC recommended a fee‐in‐lieu of $2,321.54 per 
unit to be paid at the time of the first final subdivision plat.  

 

14.0 PUBLIC FACILITIES REQUIREMENTS 

All utilities shall meet the Town of Apex Master Utility Maps. 

Sanitary Sewer Service 

All on‐site sanitary sewer lines will be designed according to Town of Apex Engineering 
Standards and Specifications. Easements will be established for public sewer outside of 
Public R/W. 

Sanitary Sewer will be established upon the site and will tie into an existing manhole at 
the southern end of the Greenmoor Subdivision via an offsite sewer outfall to be within 
a Town of Apex utility easement. Potable water will be established upon the site and tie 
to the existing lines along Green Level Church Road and Jenks Road. 

Water Service 

All on‐site water lines will be designed according to Town of Apex Engineering 
Standards and Specifications. 

Gas & Electric Service 

The Public Service Company of North Carolina (PSNC) will require a revenue analysis 
based on the proposed development in order to determine the applicable costs to the 
developer for installation of infrastructure. 

- Page 48 -



 

137 S Wilmington Street, Suite 200 | Raleigh, NC 27601 

t: 919.469.3340 | f: 919.467.6008 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. C‐0832 

  Asheville | Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington  11 

The Site is in the service area of both the Town of Apex Electric Utilities and Progress 
Energy.  

Roadways 

The Site will require an internal public roadway network and parking spaces. The onsite 
transportation circulation system shall be consistent with the Town of Apex 
Transportation Plan and the Town of Apex Standard Specifications and Standard Details. 
Frontage improvements along Jenks Road & Green Level Church Road have been 
identified during the pre‐application correspondence and will be incorporated into the 
design, subject to approval by the Town of Apex & NCDOT. 

Phase 1 roadway improvements are as follows: 

i. Developer shall dedicate public right‐of‐way along Green Level 
Church Road based on a minimum of half of a 4‐lane, 110’ right‐of‐
way section and construct a 5’ paved shoulder along the frontage 
within Phase 1. 

ii. Developer shall construct a southbound left turn lane on Green 
Level Church Road at Jenks Road with at least 150’ of storage and 
adequate taper & deceleration lengths per NCDOT standards. 

iii. Developer shall construct a southbound left turn lane on Green 
Level Church Road at proposed site access with at least 50’ of 
storage and adequate taper & deceleration lengths per NCDOT 
standards.  This access shall be located a minimum of 500 feet from 
Jenks Road. 

iv. Developer shall dedicate public right‐of‐way along Jenks Road 
based on a minimum of half of a 3‐lane, 80’ right‐of‐way section and 
construct a 5’ paved shoulder along the frontage within Phase 1. 
Jenks Road improvements shall include the extension of the existing 
two‐way left turn lane from west of the NC 540 bridge to the 
intersection with Green Level Church Road.  The access points for 
Phase 1 and Phase 2 shall align across from each other and be 
located a minimum of 500 feet from Green Level Church Road. 

v. Developer shall coordinate with traffic signal installation by others 
at the intersection of Green Level Church Road at Jenks Road if not 
already installed by the time this development plan moves 
forward.  Developer is responsible for plan revisions and 

- Page 49 -



 

137 S Wilmington Street, Suite 200 | Raleigh, NC 27601 

t: 919.469.3340 | f: 919.467.6008 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. C‐0832 

  Asheville | Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington  12 

modifications to the traffic signal to accommodate roadway 
improvements associated with Phase 1 and Phase 2. 

vi. Developer shall dedicate additional right‐of‐way along the project 
frontage to accommodate a roundabout based on the preliminary 
layout on file with the Town (designed as part of the Westford 
development zoning conditions) if not removed from the 
Transportation Plan prior to subdivision plan approval. 

Phase 2 roadway improvements are as follows:  

i. Developer shall not propose access to Dominik Court until either 
one of the following conditions is met: 
a. Dominik Court is realigned southward to provide an 

approximate right‐angle intersection with Kelly Road 
approximately 700‐800’ south of Jenks Road, and a 
southbound left turn lane is provided on Kelly Road at 
Dominik Court with a minimum of 100’ of storage plus 
deceleration and taper according to NCDOT standards. 

b. A public street connecting Dominik Court to Jenks Road is 
constructed and Dominik Court is converted to a right‐
in/right‐out access at Kelly Road. 

Transit 

According to the Advance Apex 2045 Transportation Plan, there are no existing or 
proposed transit routes designated on or adjacent to the Site.  

Pedestrian Facilities   

According to the Advance Apex 2045 Plan, sidewalks are planned along both Green 
Level Church Road and Jenks Road. The development plan will incorporate sidewalk 
infrastructure along both streets as well as the internal street network, and thus is in 
compliance with the future land use plan. 

Phase 1 pedestrian facility improvements are as follows: 

i. Developer shall construct a 10’ side path on the east side of Green 
Level Church Road along the frontage within Phase 1. 

ii. Developer shall construct a 5’ sidewalk on the north side of Jenks 
Road along the frontage within Phase 1. 

- Page 50 -



 

137 S Wilmington Street, Suite 200 | Raleigh, NC 27601 

t: 919.469.3340 | f: 919.467.6008 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. C‐0832 

  Asheville | Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington  13 

Phase 2 pedestrian facility improvements are as follows: 

i. Developer shall construct a 10’ side path on the south side of 
Jenks Road along the frontage within Phase 2. 

ii. Developer shall construct an extension of the 10’ side path 
located on the south side of Jenks Road from Phase 2 to the 
intersection of Jenks Road and Green Level Church Road and 
design and install a signalized crosswalk across Jenks Road at the 
traffic signal. Fee‐in‐lieu, in the amount of 125% of the estimated 
cost of construction plus fair market value of the property to be 
acquired, shall be assessed if easement or right‐of‐way cannot be 
secured prior to completion of the first CO within Phase 2.  Any 
performance guarantee provided for this section of side‐path shall 
be released upon acceptance of said fee‐in‐lieu by the Town. 

iii. Developer shall improve the north side of Dominik Court along 
the frontage of Phase 2 based on a minimum 27’ b‐b curb and 
gutter roadway with 5’ sidewalk. 

Education 

Wake County Public Schools Long Range Planning has verified the following base 
schools for this future residential area:  

 

Base School  Enrollment Cap  Student Overflow School 

White Oak Elementary  Yes  Davis Drive Elementary 

Mills Park Middle  Yes  West Cary Middle 

Green Level High  No   

 

The Apex Friendship Elementary School on Humie Olive Road is expected to open in 
August 2022. 

 

15.0 PHASING PLAN 

KOBRA Tracts development will be constructed in phases according to economic 
considerations and infrastructure requirements.  The residential section of the site 

- Page 51 -



 

137 S Wilmington Street, Suite 200 | Raleigh, NC 27601 

t: 919.469.3340 | f: 919.467.6008 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. C‐0832 

  Asheville | Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington  14 

will be developed as a standalone phase separate from the commercial section. 
Phase 1 and phase 2 improvements shall be constructed as described in the 
previous section. 

 

 
 

Please note the following considerations for the phasing plan: 

1. Access points are preliminary in nature and subject to Town of Apex and NCDOT 
review and approval. 

2. Limits of land disturbance within each phase shall be determined at the master 
subdivision plan and site plan stages. 

3. Public utilities shall be provided for each phase of development. 
 

16.0 CONSISTENCY WITH 2045 LAND USE PLAN 

The Advance Apex 2045 Future Land Use Map depicts the future land use of the 
northern parcel as a mixture of Medium Density Residential and Office Employment. 
Medium Density Residential lands are described in the Land Use Plan as consisting of 
single‐family homes, duplexes, and townhomes with densities between three (3) and 
seven (7) dwelling units per acre. It is intended to act as a transition between higher and 
lower residential densities. The Office Employment land use is described as allowing for 
a wide range of businesses that provide professional, managerial, or administrative 
services. The plan also states that Office Employment lands should match the scale and 
character of their surroundings. 

The southern parcel is made up of High Density Residential, Office Employment and 
Commercial Service designations, as well as being considered a Mixed‐Use land 
classification. High Density Residential land is described as providing housing options 
located in close proximity to major commercial areas or corridors, and includes 
townhomes, triplexes, quadplexes and apartments at densities greater than 14 dwelling 
units per acre. Similar to Office Employment, Commercial Services land is described as 
match the scale and character of its surroundings. These lands are designated to supply 
commercial services and conveniences. Being within a Mixed‐Use portion of land, the 

- Page 52 -



 

137 S Wilmington Street, Suite 200 | Raleigh, NC 27601 

t: 919.469.3340 | f: 919.467.6008 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. C‐0832 

  Asheville | Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington  15 

site is required to have greater than or equal to 30 percent of its development be related 
to non‐residential uses. 

Overall, the KOBRA Tracts Site proposes medium density residential housing options 
appropriate to its proximity to major thoroughfares, as well as establishing a healthy 
mixture of non‐residential space to nurture a live/work environment in northwestern 
Apex. Uses proposed for the site are directly in line with the uses declared in the Future 
Land Use Plan.  

 

17.0 CONSISTENCY WITH UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

The proposed development is consistent with all applicable requirements of the Town of 
Apex Unified Development Ordinance. To this extent, it is worth noting that the 
development will not supply stub streets on the eastern termination of the residential 
section of the project per the text of the following section: 

 7.2.1.A.2.c.iii  ‐ Where  severe  topography  or  other  physical  features  exist,  the 
Planning  Director  in  conjunction  with  the  Stormwater  and  Utility  Engineering 
Manager, may determine that a stub street is not required. 

Due to the environmental impact of the potential connection to the eastern parcel, it is 
requested that no stub be required at this location. 

 

18.0 ELEVATIONS 

Please see the following pages for typical elevations illustrative of the proposed 
residential building. 

 

19.0 AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

If the Town of Apex has a fund or other mechanism in place to receive donations to 
construct, subsidize, or participate in the development of affordable housing units (the 
“Fund”), the developer will contribute $15,000 to this Fund prior to the first residential 
Certificate of Occupancy. In the event the Fund has not been established by the Town of 
Apex, the money will be conveyed to a local non‐profit working on affordable housing 

- Page 53 -



 

137 S Wilmington Street, Suite 200 | Raleigh, NC 27601 

t: 919.469.3340 | f: 919.467.6008 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. C‐0832 

  Asheville | Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington  16 

initiatives. The developer will work with the Town of Apex to identify a mutually 
acceptable local non‐profit organization to receive these funds. 

- Page 54 -



GREEN LEVEL

CHURCH ROAD

JENKS ROAD KELLY ROAD

NC 540

DOMINIKCOURTJENKS ROAD

NC 540

GREEN LEVEL

CHURCH ROAD

KELLY ROAD

DOMINIK COURT

VICINITY MAP

INDEX OF SHEETS

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

KOBRA TRACTS

DEVELOPER

TOWN OF APEX, WAKE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

1ST SUBMITTAL:  MARCH 2, 2020     2ND SUBMITTAL:  JULY 10, 2020     3RD SUBMITTAL:  AUGUST 14, 2020

P
U

D
 
|
 
K

O
B

R
A

W
R

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
N

O
.
:
0

2
1

8
1

1
1

0
.
1

LENNAR  CORPORATION - RALEIGH DIVISION

1100 PERIMETER PARK DRIVE, SUITE 112

MORRISVILLE, NC 27560

PHONE: 919.337.0235

1"=1000'

N

W E

S

Engineers | Planners | Surveyors

PREPARED BY:

WithersRavenel

115 MacKenan Drive | Cary, NC 27511 | t: 919.469.3340 | license #: C-0832 | www.withersravenel.com

EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN 1.0

CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT PLAN 2.0

PRELIMINARY PHASING PLAN 3.0

PRELIMINARY UTILITY PLAN 4.0

STORMWATER  

MANAGEMENT PLAN 5.0

SITE DATA

2045 LAND USE PLAN DESIGNATION

AREA OF TRACTS IN PROPOSED PUD

AREA OF MIXED-USE PROPERTY PROPOSED
AS NON-RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

BUILDING HEIGHT

BUILDING SETBACKS

WATERSHED

HISTORIC STRUCTURES

COMMUNITY AMENITIES

CURRENT

PROPOSED

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL/OFFICE EMPLOYMENT & MIXED USE

NO CHANGE

CURRENT

PROPOSED

RURAL RESIDENTIAL (RR)

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD-CZ)

MAXIMUM 45 FT

RESIDENTIAL

FRONT

0733-10-2211

0732-19-6422

18.21  AC.

5.46  AC.

PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE PRIMARY WATERSHED PROTECTION OVERLAY DISTRICT.

NONE

0.4 ACRE RECREATIONAL PLAY LAWN

TOTAL = 23.67 AC.
AREA DESIGNATED AS MIXED-USE ON 2045
LAND USE MAP

5.46 AC.

ZONING

5.46 AC.

PERCENT OF MIXED-USE PROPERTY
PROPOSED AS NON-RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT

100%

NON-RESIDENTIAL

OWNER

KOBRA LLC

117 WOODLAND RIDGE DRIVE

FUQUAY-VARINA, NC 27526

ATTN: STEPHEN DORN

STEPHEN.DORN@LENNAR.COM

PLANNER: BRENDIE VEGA, AICP

BVEGA@WITHERSRAVENEL.COM

CIVIL ENGINEER: ARNALDO ECHEVARRIA, PE

AECHEVARRIA@WITHERSRAVENEL.COM

RESIDENTIAL DENSITY MAXIMUM 3 DU/ACRE

GRAPHIC SCALE

1 inch = 200 ft.

200 0 100 200 400

SQUARE FOOTAGE PER NON-RESIDENTIAL
USE

MAXIMUM 39,000 SF

REQUESTED SEWER CAPACITY

SITE BUFFERS

NORTHERN PARCEL (PIN #0733102211)

NORTH

EAST

SOUTH

WEST

SOUTHERN PARCEL (PIN #0732196422)

NORTH

EAST

SOUTH

WEST
20' TYPE B BUFFER

100' TYPE A BUFFER**

**MAY BE REDUCED TO 50' TYPE A BUFFER PER UDO SECTION 8.2.6

20' TYPE B BUFFER

30' TYPE E BUFFER

10' TYPE B BUFFER

10' TYPE B BUFFER

30' TYPE B BUFFER

30' TYPE B BUFFER

*19' FROM GARAGE TO LOT LINE AND 20' FROM GARAGE TO BACK OF SIDEWALK

SOUTHERN TRACT: .09 GPD * 39,000 SF * 2.5 (PEAKING FACTOR) = 8,775 GPD

19 FT* REAR 10 FT SIDE 5 FT CORNER 10 FT

FRONT 20 FT REAR 20 FT SIDE 10 FT CORNER 10 FT

NOTE: THE PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY COMMISSION VOTED TO APPROVE FEE-IN-LIEU OF PARK LAND DEDICATION ON JUNE 24TH, 2020. FEE-IN-LIEU AMOUNT TO BE
DETERMINED AT THE TIME OF MASTER SUBDIVISION PLANS ACCORDING TO THE TOWN OF APEX FEE SCHEDULE.

NORTHERN TRACT: 120 GPD * 3 BEDROOMS/TOWNHOME * 71 TOWNHOMES = 25,560 GPD

CASE #: 20CZ04

PHASE 1 IMPROVEMENTS

1. DEVELOPER SHALL DEDICATE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY ALONG GREEN LEVEL
CHURCH ROAD BASED ON A MINIMUM OF HALF OF A 4-LANE, 110'
RIGHT-OF-WAY SECTION AND CONSTRUCT A 5' PAVED SHOULDER ALONG
THE FRONTAGE WITHIN PHASE 1.

2. DEVELOPER SHALL CONSTRUCT A SOUTHBOUND LEFT TURN LANE ON
GREEN LEVEL CHURCH ROAD AT JENKS ROAD WITH AT LEAST 150' OF
STORAGE AND ADEQUATE TAPER & DECELERATION LENGTHS PER NCDOT
STANDARDS.

3. DEVELOPER SHALL CONSTRUCT A SOUTHBOUND LEFT TURN LANE ON
GREEN LEVEL CHURCH ROAD AT PROPOSED SITE ACCESS WITH AT LEAST
50' OF STORAGE AND ADEQUATE TAPER & DECELERATION LENGTHS PER
NCDOT STANDARDS.  THIS ACCESS SHALL BE LOCATED A MINIMUM OF 500
FEET FROM JENKS ROAD.

4. DEVELOPER SHALL CONSTRUCT A 10' SIDE PATH ON THE EAST SIDE OF
GREEN LEVEL CHURCH ROAD ALONG THE FRONTAGE WITHIN PHASE 1.

5. DEVELOPER SHALL DEDICATE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY ALONG JENKS ROAD
BASED ON A MINIMUM OF HALF OF A 3-LANE, 80' RIGHT-OF-WAY SECTION
AND CONSTRUCT A 5' PAVED SHOULDER ALONG THE FRONTAGE WITHIN
PHASE 1. JENKS ROAD IMPROVEMENTS SHALL INCLUDE THE EXTENSION OF
THE EXISTING TWO-WAY LEFT TURN LANE FROM WEST OF THE NC 540
BRIDGE TO THE INTERSECTION WITH GREEN LEVEL CHURCH ROAD.  THE
ACCESS POINTS FOR PHASE 1 AND PHASE 2 SHALL ALIGN ACROSS FROM
EACH OTHER AND BE LOCATED A MINIMUM OF 500 FEET FROM GREEN
LEVEL CHURCH ROAD.

6. DEVELOPER SHALL CONSTRUCT A 5' SIDEWALK ON THE NORTH SIDE OF
JENKS ROAD ALONG THE FRONTAGE WITHIN PHASE 1.

7. DEVELOPER SHALL COORDINATE WITH TRAFFIC SIGNAL INSTALLATION BY
OTHERS AT THE INTERSECTION OF GREEN LEVEL CHURCH ROAD AT JENKS
ROAD IF NOT ALREADY INSTALLED BY THE TIME THIS DEVELOPMENT PLAN
MOVES FORWARD.  DEVELOPER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PLAN REVISIONS
AND MODIFICATIONS TO THE TRAFFIC SIGNAL TO ACCOMMODATE
ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH PHASE 1 AND PHASE 2.

8. DEVELOPER SHALL DEDICATE ADDITIONAL RIGHT-OF-WAY ALONG THE
PROJECT FRONTAGE TO ACCOMMODATE A ROUNDABOUT BASED ON THE
PRELIMINARY LAYOUT ON FILE WITH THE TOWN (DESIGNED AS PART OF
THE WESTFORD DEVELOPMENT ZONING CONDITIONS) IF NOT REMOVED
FROM THE TRANSPORTATION PLAN PRIOR TO SUBDIVISION PLAN
APPROVAL.

PHASE 2 IMPROVEMENTS

9. DEVELOPER SHALL CONSTRUCT A 10' SIDE PATH ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF
JENKS ROAD ALONG THE FRONTAGE WITHIN PHASE 2.

10. DEVELOPER SHALL CONSTRUCT AN EXTENSION OF THE 10' SIDE PATH
LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF JENKS ROAD FROM PHASE 2 TO THE
INTERSECTION OF JENKS ROAD AND GREEN LEVEL CHURCH ROAD AND
DESIGN AND INSTALL A SIGNALIZED CROSSWALK ACROSS JENKS ROAD AT
THE TRAFFIC SIGNAL. FEE-IN-LIEU, IN THE AMOUNT OF 125% OF THE
ESTIMATED COST OF CONSTRUCTION PLUS FAIR MARKET VALUE OF THE
PROPERTY TO BE ACQUIRED, SHALL BE ASSESSED IF EASEMENT OR
RIGHT-OF-WAY CANNOT BE SECURED PRIOR TO COMPLETION OF THE FIRST
CO WITHIN PHASE 2.  ANY PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE PROVIDED FOR THIS
SECTION OF SIDE-PATH SHALL BE RELEASED UPON ACCEPTANCE OF SAID
FEE-IN-LIEU BY THE TOWN.

11. DEVELOPER SHALL IMPROVE THE NORTH SIDE OF DOMINIK COURT ALONG
THE FRONTAGE OF PHASE 2 BASED ON A MINIMUM 27' B-B CURB AND
GUTTER ROADWAY WITH 5' SIDEWALK.

12. DEVELOPER SHALL NOT PROPOSE ACCESS TO DOMINIK COURT UNTIL
EITHER ONE OF THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS IS MET:

12.1. A. DOMINIK COURT IS REALIGNED SOUTHWARD TO PROVIDE AN
APPROXIMATE RIGHT-ANGLE INTERSECTION WITH KELLY ROAD
APPROXIMATELY 700-800' SOUTH OF JENKS ROAD, AND A
SOUTHBOUND LEFT TURN LANE IS PROVIDED ON KELLY ROAD AT
DOMINIK COURT WITH A MINIMUM OF 100' OF STORAGE PLUS
DECELERATION AND TAPER ACCORDING TO NCDOT STANDARDS.

12.2. B. A PUBLIC STREET CONNECTING DOMINIK COURT TO JENKS ROAD IS
CONSTRUCTED AND DOMINIK COURT IS CONVERTED TO A
RIGHT-IN/RIGHT-OUT ACCESS AT KELLY ROAD.

ZONING CONDITIONS

- Page 55 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
K:\18\18-1110\181110.10-KOBRA\CAD\Drawing Sets\PUD\0.0 COVER.dwg- Tuesday, September 8, 2020 1:41:43 PM - RAUH, DANIEL



X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

XXXXXXXXXX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX XX

D

D

W

W

W

W
W

A

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU
OU

OU
OU

OU
OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

HEAD

STOP

STOP

TTTTTTTTTTTTTT

T T T T T T T
T

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

WW

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W
WWWW

W
W

W

W

WW
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

WW

NOW OR FORMERLY
KOBRA, L.L.C.

DB 8739, PG. 1293
(DB 1072, PG. 363, PORTION

OF FIRST TRACT)
TRACT 2, LOT 2

BM 2014, PG. 384-386
PIN: 0733-10-2211

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
KOBRA, L.L.C.

DB 8739, PG. 1293
(DB 1072, PG. 363, PORTION OF

FIRST TRACT)
TRACT 2, LOT 3

BM 2014, PG. 384-386
PIN: 0732-19-6422

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
ROY B. MILLER

DB 2799, PG. 154
BM 1978, PG. 804
PIN: 0732-19-2507

ZONING: RR

ASPHALT SERVICE AREA

NOW OR FORMERLY
TOWN OF APEX

DB 9991, PG. 1308
BM 2002, PG. 1467
PIN: 0732-19-3336

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
MERQUIADES N. CESPEDES

DB 10796, PG. 367
BM 1989, PG. 394
PIN: 0732-18-6777

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
MERQUIADES N. CESPEDES

DB 15848, PG. 1971
LOT 1 - BM 1994, PG. 1932

PIN: 0732-19-5021
ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
MERQUIADES CESPEDES,

JR.
DB 16307, PG. 2748

LOT 2 - BM 1995, PG. 528
PIN: 0732-19-4101

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JOHN BRUCE SEARS and wife,

ELIZABETH C. SEARS
DB 8739, PG. 1293

(DB 1072, PG. 363, PORTION
OF FIRST TRACT)

TRACT 1 - BM 2005, PG. 220
PIN: 0732-09-7324

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JOHN B. SEARS and wife,

ELIZABETH C. SEARS
DB 16480, PG. 1943

TRACT 2, LOT 1
BM 2014, PG. 384-386

PIN: 0733-00-4132

NOW OR FORMERLY
ARTHUR H. LAFORD

DB 6295, PG. 580
LOT 6, CASTLEREAGH

NORTH
BM 1982, PG. 822
PIN: 0733-00-8519

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
ROBERT S. CRAYCROFT and

wife
LYNN S. CRAYCROFT

DB 5018, PG. 504
LOT 9, CASTLEREAGH

NORTH, SEC. III
BM 1987, PG. 886
PIN: 0733-10-0940

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JOHN WELDON and wife

KRISTEL M. WELDON
DB 16653, PG. 1598

LOT 11, CASTLEREAGH
NORTH, SEC. III

BM 1987, PG. 886
PIN: 0733-10-4932

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JAINIX, LLC

DB 17341, PG. 1696
PIN: 0733-10-8855

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JAINIX, LLC

DB 17239, PG. 1509
PIN: 0732-19-8808

ZONING: RR

JENKS ROAD, SR 1601(EXISTING VARIABLEWIDTH ROW)

GREEN LEVEL CHURCH

ROAD, SR 1600

(EXISTING 60' ROW
)

KELLY ROAD, SR 1163

(EXISTING 60' ROW)

21'

BO

UP
TRANS

UP
TRANS

WM

WV
WV

WV

WV

WVWV

WV
WV

WV

WV

WV

WV

UP

UP

UP
UP

UP

UP

UP UP
UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

GP

GP

UP

UP

UPUP

UP

UP
TRANS

YH SG

YH

8" PVC

WV

EM

CHH

TRANS

UP

6' CHAIN LINK FENCE

EXISTING
POND

INTERMITTENT
STREAM

LINEAR WETLAND

VARIABLE WIDTH PUE

VARIABLE WIDTH PERPETUAL UTILITY &
PIPELINE EASEMENT AND 5' & 10' TEMPORARY

CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTS

VARIABLE WIDTH  PERPETUAL UTILITY
& PIPELINE AND 5' TEMPORARY

CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTS

UTILITY & GUY POLE AND ASSOCIATED
ANCHORS MAY BE SUBJECT TO A 30'
CP&L FACILITIES EASEMENT PER DB
9910, PG. 1300

DOMINIK COURT,

(FORMERLY SR 1600)

(EXISTING 60' ROW)

NC
 H

IG
HW

AY
 54

0
(E

XI
ST

IN
G 

VA
RI

AB
LE

 W
ID

TH
 R

OW
)

2.5' FENCE ENCROACHMENT

5' WIRE FENCE

5' WIRE FENCE

EXISTING
POND

FOM

GRAVEL APRON

WV

15" RCP

GV

GTS

THH

EXISTING
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

35.835'

18.546'

VARIABLE WIDTH
UTILITY AND PIPELINE
EASEMENT

EXISTING 20' PUE

20.774'

VARIABLE WIDTH PUE

15" RCP

50' RIPRARIAN BUFFER

15" CMP

EXISTING
WELL HOUSE

EXISTING
CONCRETE PAD

EXISTING
WORKSHOP

INTERMITTENT STREAM

EXISTING BARN
15" CPP

EXISTING SOIL PATH

EXISTING BARN

EXISTING BARN &
LEAN-TO

EXISTING CONCRETE PAD

15" CMP
15" RCP

6" PVC

30" RCP

EXISTING SOIL PATH

EXISTING GRAVEL PATH

EXISTING GRAVEL
SERVICE AREA

EXISTING SOIL PATH
EXISTING GRAVEL PATH

LINEAR WETLAND

18" CMP

EXISTING CONCRETE
 SIDEWALK

15" CMP

18" RCP

GRAVEL APRON

18" RCP

MATCH LINE
(THIS SHEET)

50' RIPRARIAN BUFFER

NC
 H

IG
HW

AY
 54

0
(E

XI
ST

IN
G 

VA
RI

AB
LE

 W
ID

TH
 R

OW
)

350

360

370

346

348

352
354

356
358

362

364

366

368

372

374

380

39
0

378

38
2

384

386

38
8

400

392

394

396

398

402

404

406

400

398

40
2 40

4

40
6

406

350

360

370

346

348

352
354356

358

362
364
366

368

372

350

360

352

35
4

35
6

35
8

362362

364

EXISTING 12" TOWN
OF APEX WATER LINE

EXISTING 42" TOWN OF
CARY WATER LINE

EXISTING 30" TOWN OF
CARY WATER LINE

EXISTING 24" TOWN OF
APEX WATER LINE

SS

SS

MATCH LINE
(THIS SHEET)

50' RIPRARIAN BUFFER

50' RIPRARIAN
BUFFER

100' RIPRARIAN
BUFFER

50' RIPRARIAN
BUFFER

20' PUE
BM 2018, PG. 102

LINE TABLE

LINE

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

BEARING

N12°09'14"W

N47°16'47"E

S08°08'33"W

N77°57'22"E

S81°55'19"E

S74°18'38"W

S27°20'07"W

N27°04'31"E

N00°33'05"W

N62°29'58"W

S76°36'12"E

DISTANCE

62.39'

55.55'

30.00'

30.00'

131.38'

168.88'

30.00'

29.72'

49.68'

69.96'

59.39'

CURVE TABLE

CURVE

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

LENGTH

331.36

111.75

252.92

243.94

95.77

463.43

RADIUS

1920.00

900.89

880.73

850.73

870.89

2080.00

BEARING

N86°36'58"W

N34°42'19"W

N21°36'21"W

S21°35'41"E

S34°19'29"E

S88°03'21"E

CHORD

330.95'

111.68'

252.05'

243.11'

95.72'

462.48'

EXISTING CONDITIONS 1.0

K:
\18

\18
-1

11
0\1

81
11

0.1
0-

KO
BR

A\
CA

D\
Dr

aw
ing

 S
ets

\P
UD

\1.
0 E

XI
ST

IN
G 

CO
ND

IT
IO

NS
.dw

g-
 F

rid
ay

, A
ug

us
t 2

8, 
20

20
 1:

49
:38

 P
M 

- M
AY

O,
 B

EN

No.

Checked By

Revision

Designer

Drawn By

Date By Scale

Date

Job No.

Sheet No.

WithersRavenel

Engineers | Planners | Surveyors

115 MacKenan Drive | Cary, NC 27511 | t: 919.469.3340 | license #: C-0832 | www.withersravenel.com

02181110.1

08/14/20

1" = 100'

APEX WAKE COUNTY NORTH CAROLINA

BDM

BDM

AE

KOBRA TRACT

PRELIMINARY

NOT APPROVED FOR

CONSTRUCTION

EXISTING CONDITION NOTES:
1. TOPOGRAPHIC AND UTILITY INFORMATION BASED ON

AVAILABLE GIS MAPPING.  PRELIMINARY BOUNDARY
SURVEY PREPARED BY WITHERSRAVENEL DATED 02/18/20.

2. WETLAND/STREAM INFORMATION BASED ON EVALUATION
BY S&EC DATED 02/06/20. BUFFERS BASED ON TOWN OF
APEX STREAM BUFFER DETERMINATION (APEX #19-006).

3. REGULATORY FEMA MAPPED FLOODPLAINS DO NOT EXIST
ON SITE PER FIRM MAPS #3720073300J (5/2/06) &
#3720073200J (5/2/06).

4. THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED WITHIN THE TOWN OF
APEX PRIMARY WATERSHED PROTECTION OVERLAY
DISTRICT.

5. TREE INFORMATION BASED ON TREE SURVEY BY S&EC
DATED 02/06/20.

6. ALL EXISTING STRUCTURES ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY
SHALL BE REMOVED PER TOWN OF APEX STANDARDS AND
REQUIREMENTS.

GRAPHIC SCALE

1 inch = 100 ft.

100 0 50 100 200

H Y D

HATCH LEGEND

RIPRARIAN BUFFER

LINETYPE LEGEND (UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

ADJOINER

BOUNDARY

EASEMENT

RIGHT OF WAY

RAILROAD

POND EDGE

SEWER LINE

OVERHEAD POWER LINE

WATER LINE

STORM DRAINAGE

CONTOUR MAJOR

CONTOUR MINOR

LEGEND (UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

ASP - ASPHALT
CONC - CONCRETE
CB - CATCH BASIN
CMP - CORRUGATED METAL PIPE
CPP - CORRUGATED PLASTIC PIPE
DIP - DUCTILE IRON PIPE
EM - ELECTRIC METER
FOM  - FIBER OPTIC MARKER
GV - GAS VALVE
GP - GUY POLE
RCP - REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE
SG - SPIGOT
WM - WATER METER
WV - WATER VALVE
YH - YARD HYDRANT
UP - UTILITY POLE
PUE - PERMANENT UTILITY EASEMENT

WELL

WATER MANHOLE

WATER VALVE

UTILITY POLE

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

FIRE HYDRANT

TELEPHONE/FIBER OPTIC PEDESTAL

TREE

I I I I I I I I I I I I

SS SS

OHE

S

W

W

W W

- Page 56 -



LINE TABLE

LINE

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

BEARING

N12°09'14"W

N47°16'47"E

S08°08'33"W

N77°57'22"E

S81°55'19"E

S74°18'38"W

S27°20'07"W

N27°04'31"E

N00°33'05"W

N62°29'58"W

S76°36'12"E

DISTANCE

62.39'

55.55'

30.00'

30.00'

131.38'

168.88'

30.00'

29.72'

49.68'

69.96'

59.39'

CURVE TABLE

CURVE

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

LENGTH

331.36

111.75

252.92

243.94

95.77

463.43

RADIUS

1920.00

900.89

880.73

850.73

870.89

2080.00

BEARING

N86°36'58"W

N34°42'19"W

N21°36'21"W

S21°35'41"E

S34°19'29"E

S88°03'21"E

CHORD

330.95'

111.68'

252.05'

243.11'

95.72'

462.48'

D

D

TTTTTTTTTTTTTT

T T T T T T T
T

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

WW

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W
WWWW

W
W

W

W

W

W W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

NOW OR FORMERLY
KOBRA, L.L.C.

DB 8739, PG. 1293
(DB 1072, PG. 363, PORTION

OF FIRST TRACT)
TRACT 2, LOT 2

BM 2014, PG. 384-386
PIN: 0733-10-2211

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
KOBRA, L.L.C.

DB 8739, PG. 1293
(DB 1072, PG. 363, PORTION OF

FIRST TRACT)
TRACT 2, LOT 3

BM 2014, PG. 384-386
PIN: 0732-19-6422

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
ROY B. MILLER

DB 2799, PG. 154
BM 1978, PG. 804
PIN: 0732-19-2507

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
TOWN OF APEX

DB 9991, PG. 1308
BM 2002, PG. 1467
PIN: 0732-19-3336

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
MERQUIADES N. CESPEDES

DB 10796, PG. 367
BM 1989, PG. 394
PIN: 0732-18-6777

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
MERQUIADES N. CESPEDES

DB 15848, PG. 1971
LOT 1 - BM 1994, PG. 1932

PIN: 0732-19-5021
ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
MERQUIADES CESPEDES,

JR.
DB 16307, PG. 2748

LOT 2 - BM 1995, PG. 528
PIN: 0732-19-4101

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JOHN BRUCE SEARS and wife,

ELIZABETH C. SEARS
DB 8739, PG. 1293

(DB 1072, PG. 363, PORTION
OF FIRST TRACT)

TRACT 1 - BM 2005, PG. 220
PIN: 0732-09-7324

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JOHN B. SEARS and wife,

ELIZABETH C. SEARS
DB 16480, PG. 1943

TRACT 2, LOT 1
BM 2014, PG. 384-386

PIN: 0733-00-4132

NOW OR FORMERLY
ARTHUR H. LAFORD

DB 6295, PG. 580
LOT 6, CASTLEREAGH

NORTH
BM 1982, PG. 822
PIN: 0733-00-8519

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
ROBERT S. CRAYCROFT and

wife
LYNN S. CRAYCROFT

DB 5018, PG. 504
LOT 9, CASTLEREAGH

NORTH, SEC. III
BM 1987, PG. 886
PIN: 0733-10-0940

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JOHN WELDON and wife

KRISTEL M. WELDON
DB 16653, PG. 1598

LOT 11, CASTLEREAGH
NORTH, SEC. III

BM 1987, PG. 886
PIN: 0733-10-4932

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JAINIX, LLC

DB 17341, PG. 1696
PIN: 0733-10-8855

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JAINIX, LLC

DB 17239, PG. 1509
PIN: 0732-19-8808

ZONING: RR

JENKS ROAD, SR 1601(EXISTING VARIABLEWIDTH ROW)

GREEN LEVEL CHURCH

ROAD, SR 1600

(EXISTING 60' ROW
)

KELLY ROAD, SR 1163

(EXISTING 60' ROW)

DOMINIK COURT,

(FORMERLY SR 1600)

(EXISTING 60' ROW)

NC
 H

IG
HW

AY
 54

0
(E

XI
ST

IN
G 

VA
RI

AB
LE

 W
ID

TH
 R

OW
)

539.35'
161.58'

N12°22'57"W

201.72'

N84°21'29"E  369.96'

L1

N47°
52'

48"
E  13

9.6
8'

N47°
57'

19"
E  12

8.0
0'

L2

S56°40'28"E  438.88'

S58°25'06"E  122.64'

S00°52'14"E  700.93'  (T)

C1

N81°40'19"W  119.30'
S74°05'18"W  122.94'

L3N81°51'27"W  303.85'

C2

C3

N13°18'37"W
  196.98'

N12°02'38"W

154.60'

L4

S12°02'38"E  154.27'

S13°18'37"E  196.63'

C4

C5

S81°51'27"E  291.73'

L5

S0
9°

16
'13

"W
  3

04
.25

'

S0
5°

39
'21

"W
  1

10
.31

'

L6

L7

N62°39'53"W  231.82'

N62°55'28"W176.19'

L8

L9

L10

N0
0°

29
'01

"W
  2

35
.19

'

L11

C6

S62°57'49"E176.26'

S62°42'14"E  231.88'

NC
 H

IG
HW

AY
 54

0
(E

XI
ST

IN
G 

VA
RI

AB
LE

 W
ID

TH
 R

OW
)

100' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

30' PERIMETER BUFFER

10' PERIMETER BUFFER

10' SIDE PATH

10' SIDE PATH

5' SIDEWALK

30' PERIMETER BUFFER

EXISTING SIDEWALK

EXISTING SIDEWALK

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

VARIABLE WIDTH NCDOT
PERMANENT UTILITY EASEMENT II
DB 13852, PG. 1199 | TIP # R-2635C1

EX. POND TO BE DRAINED

5' SIDEWALK

10' SIDE PATH & CROSSWALK (FEE-IN-LIEU SHALL BE ASSESSED IF EASEMENT
OR RIGHT-OF-WAY CANNOT BE SECURED PRIOR TO COMPLETION OF THE FIRST

CO WITHIN PHASE 2) 

POND

RESIDENTIAL

PERIMETER BUFFER

RESOURCED CONSERVATION AREA

STREAM BUFFER

STREAM

LEGEND

COMMERCIAL

ACCESS POINT

RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION FOR
FUTURE ROUNDABOUT

CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT PLAN 2.0

K:
\18

\18
-1

11
0\1

81
11

0.1
0-

KO
BR

A\
CA

D\
Dr

aw
ing

 S
ets

\P
UD

\2.
0 C

ON
CE

PT
UA

L L
AY

OU
T 

PL
AN

.dw
g-

 M
on

da
y, 

Au
gu

st 
31

, 2
02

0 3
:13

:49
 P

M 
- M

AY
O,

 B
EN

No.

Checked By

Revision

Designer

Drawn By

Date By Scale

Date

Job No.

Sheet No.

WithersRavenel

Engineers | Planners | Surveyors

115 MacKenan Drive | Cary, NC 27511 | t: 919.469.3340 | license #: C-0832 | www.withersravenel.com

02181110.1

08/14/20

1" = 100'

APEX WAKE COUNTY NORTH CAROLINA

BDM

BDM

AE

KOBRA TRACT

PRELIMINARY

NOT APPROVED FOR

CONSTRUCTION

GRAPHIC SCALE

1 inch = 100 ft.

100 0 50 100 200

NOTES:
1. MAXIMUM NUMBER OF RESIDENTIAL UNITS: 71 UNITS

2. MAXIMUM COMMERCIAL AREA: 39,000 SF

3. 100' TYPE A BUFFER ALONG 540 ON SOUTHERN TRACT MAY BE CHANGED TO A 50' TYPE A
BUFFER PROVIDED THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS ARE MET:

A. NO MORE THAT 20% OF THE FACADES OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS FACING THE
HIGHWAY CAN USE EIFS OR OTHER SYNTHETIC STUCCO.

B. PEDESTRIAN CONNECTIONS IN THE FORM OF SIDEWALKS AND/OR SIDE PATHS SHALL BE
MADE FROM NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS TO ADJACENT RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
AND PROPERTIES WITH FUTURE RESIDENTIAL LAND USE. THE FORM OF THE CONNECTION
SHALL BE DETERMINED BY THE PLANNING DIRECTOR OF DESIGNEE.

C. FURTHERMORE, PROPERTIES THAT FRONT A LIMITED-CONTROLLED ACCESS HIGHWAY
WITH NO OTHER ACCESS OR ROAD FRONTAGE SHALL BE ALLOWED TO REDUCE THE
OPACITY OF NO MORE THAN 50% OF THIS BUFFER TO A TYPE E BUFFER. THE REMAINDER
OF THE BUFFER SHALL BE PLANTED TO A TYPE A STANDARD.

- Page 57 -



TTTTTTTTTTTTTT

T T T T T T T
T

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

WW

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W
WWWW

W
W

W

W

WW
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

WW

PHASE 1

PHASE 2

JENKS ROAD, SR 1601(EXISTING VARIABLEWIDTH ROW)

GREEN LEVEL CHURCH

ROAD, SR 1600

(EXISTING 60' ROW
)

KELLY ROAD, SR 1163

(EXISTING 60' ROW)

DOMINIK COURT,

(FORMERLY SR 1600)

(EXISTING 60' ROW)

NC
 H

IG
HW

AY
 54

0
(E

XI
ST

IN
G 

VA
RI

AB
LE

 W
ID

TH
 R

OW
)

539.35'
161.58'

N12°22'57"W

201.72'

N84°21'29"E  369.96'

L1

N47°
52'

48"
E  13

9.6
8'

N47°
57'

19"
E  12

8.0
0'

L2

S56°40'28"E  438.88'

S58°25'06"E  122.64'

S00°52'14"E  700.93'  (T)

C1

N81°40'19"W  119.30'
S74°05'18"W  122.94'

L3

N81°51'27"W  303.85'

C2

C3

N13°18'37"W
  196.98'

N12°02'38"W

154.60'

L4

S12°02'38"E  154.27'

S13°18'37"E  196.63'

C4

C5

S81°51'27"E  291.73'

L5

S0
9°

16
'13

"W
  3

04
.25

'

S0
5°

39
'21

"W
  1

10
.31

'

L6

L7

N62°39'53"W  231.82'

N62°55'28"W176.19'

L8

L9

L10

N0
0°

29
'01

"W
  2

35
.19

'

L11

C6

S62°57'49"E176.26'

S62°42'14"E  231.88'

NC
 H

IG
HW

AY
 54

0
(E

XI
ST

IN
G 

VA
RI

AB
LE

 W
ID

TH
 R

OW
)

LINE TABLE

LINE

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

BEARING

N12°09'14"W

N47°16'47"E

S08°08'33"W

N77°57'22"E

S81°55'19"E

S74°18'38"W

S27°20'07"W

N27°04'31"E

N00°33'05"W

N62°29'58"W

S76°36'12"E

DISTANCE

62.39'

55.55'

30.00'

30.00'

131.38'

168.88'

30.00'

29.72'

49.68'

69.96'

59.39'

CURVE TABLE

CURVE

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

LENGTH

331.36

111.75

252.92

243.94

95.77

463.43

RADIUS

1920.00

900.89

880.73

850.73

870.89

2080.00

BEARING

N86°36'58"W

N34°42'19"W

N21°36'21"W

S21°35'41"E

S34°19'29"E

S88°03'21"E

CHORD

330.95'

111.68'

252.05'

243.11'

95.72'

462.48'

PRELIMINARY PHASING PLAN 3.0

K:
\18

\18
-1

11
0\1

81
11

0.1
0-

KO
BR

A\
CA

D\
Dr

aw
ing

 S
ets

\P
UD

\3.
0 P

RE
LIM

IN
AR

Y 
PH

AS
IN

G 
PL

AN
.dw

g-
 F

rid
ay

, A
ug

us
t 2

8, 
20

20
 11

:21
:55

 A
M 

- M
AY

O,
 B

EN

No.

Checked By

Revision

Designer

Drawn By

Date By Scale

Date

Job No.

Sheet No.

WithersRavenel

Engineers | Planners | Surveyors

115 MacKenan Drive | Cary, NC 27511 | t: 919.469.3340 | license #: C-0832 | www.withersravenel.com

02181110.1

08/14/20

1" = 100'

APEX WAKE COUNTY NORTH CAROLINA

BDM

BDM

AE

KOBRA TRACT

PRELIMINARY

NOT APPROVED FOR

CONSTRUCTION

PHASING NOTES:

1. ACCESS POINTS ARE PRELIMINARY IN NATURE AND SUBJECT
TO TOWN OF APEX AND NCDOT REVIEW AND APPROVAL

2. LIMITS OF LAND DISTURBANCE WITHIN EACH PHASE SHALL BE
DETERMINED AT THE SUBDIVISION PLAN STAGE.

3. PUBLIC UTILITIES SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR EACH PHASE OF
DEVELOPMENT.

GRAPHIC SCALE

1 inch = 100 ft.

100 0 50 100 200

PHASE 1 IMPROVEMENTS

1. DEVELOPER SHALL DEDICATE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY ALONG
GREEN LEVEL CHURCH ROAD BASED ON A MINIMUM OF HALF
OF A 4-LANE, 110' RIGHT-OF-WAY SECTION AND CONSTRUCT A
5' PAVED SHOULDER ALONG THE FRONTAGE WITHIN PHASE 1.

2. DEVELOPER SHALL CONSTRUCT A SOUTHBOUND LEFT TURN
LANE ON GREEN LEVEL CHURCH ROAD AT JENKS ROAD WITH
AT LEAST 150' OF STORAGE AND ADEQUATE TAPER &
DECELERATION LENGTHS PER NCDOT STANDARDS.

3. DEVELOPER SHALL CONSTRUCT A SOUTHBOUND LEFT TURN
LANE ON GREEN LEVEL CHURCH ROAD AT PROPOSED SITE
ACCESS WITH AT LEAST 50' OF STORAGE AND ADEQUATE
TAPER & DECELERATION LENGTHS PER NCDOT STANDARDS.
THIS ACCESS SHALL BE LOCATED A MINIMUM OF 500 FEET
FROM JENKS ROAD.

4. DEVELOPER SHALL CONSTRUCT A 10' SIDE PATH ON THE EAST
SIDE OF GREEN LEVEL CHURCH ROAD ALONG THE FRONTAGE
WITHIN PHASE 1.

5. DEVELOPER SHALL DEDICATE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY ALONG
JENKS ROAD BASED ON A MINIMUM OF HALF OF A 3-LANE, 80'
RIGHT-OF-WAY SECTION AND CONSTRUCT A 5' PAVED
SHOULDER ALONG THE FRONTAGE WITHIN PHASE 1. JENKS
ROAD IMPROVEMENTS SHALL INCLUDE THE EXTENSION OF
THE EXISTING TWO-WAY LEFT TURN LANE FROM WEST OF THE
NC 540 BRIDGE TO THE INTERSECTION WITH GREEN LEVEL
CHURCH ROAD.  THE ACCESS POINTS FOR PHASE 1 AND PHASE
2 SHALL ALIGN ACROSS FROM EACH OTHER AND BE LOCATED
A MINIMUM OF 500 FEET FROM GREEN LEVEL CHURCH ROAD.

6. DEVELOPER SHALL CONSTRUCT A 5' SIDEWALK ON THE NORTH
SIDE OF JENKS ROAD ALONG THE FRONTAGE WITHIN PHASE 1.

7. DEVELOPER SHALL COORDINATE WITH TRAFFIC SIGNAL
INSTALLATION BY OTHERS AT THE INTERSECTION OF GREEN
LEVEL CHURCH ROAD AT JENKS ROAD IF NOT ALREADY
INSTALLED BY THE TIME THIS DEVELOPMENT PLAN MOVES
FORWARD.  DEVELOPER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PLAN REVISIONS
AND MODIFICATIONS TO THE TRAFFIC SIGNAL TO
ACCOMMODATE ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH
PHASE 1 AND PHASE 2.

8. DEVELOPER SHALL DEDICATE ADDITIONAL RIGHT-OF-WAY
ALONG THE PROJECT FRONTAGE TO ACCOMMODATE A
ROUNDABOUT BASED ON THE PRELIMINARY LAYOUT ON FILE
WITH THE TOWN (DESIGNED AS PART OF THE WESTFORD
DEVELOPMENT ZONING CONDITIONS) IF NOT REMOVED FROM
THE TRANSPORTATION PLAN PRIOR TO SUBDIVISION PLAN
APPROVAL.

PHASE 2 IMPROVEMENTS

9. DEVELOPER SHALL CONSTRUCT A 10' SIDE PATH ON THE
SOUTH SIDE OF JENKS ROAD ALONG THE FRONTAGE WITHIN
PHASE 2.

10. DEVELOPER SHALL CONSTRUCT AN EXTENSION OF THE 10'
SIDE PATH LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF JENKS ROAD
FROM PHASE 2 TO THE INTERSECTION OF JENKS ROAD AND
GREEN LEVEL CHURCH ROAD AND DESIGN AND INSTALL A
SIGNALIZED CROSSWALK ACROSS JENKS ROAD AT THE
TRAFFIC SIGNAL. FEE-IN-LIEU, IN THE AMOUNT OF 125% OF THE
ESTIMATED COST OF CONSTRUCTION PLUS FAIR MARKET
VALUE OF THE PROPERTY TO BE ACQUIRED, SHALL BE
ASSESSED IF EASEMENT OR RIGHT-OF-WAY CANNOT BE
SECURED PRIOR TO COMPLETION OF THE FIRST CO WITHIN
PHASE 2.  ANY PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE PROVIDED FOR
THIS SECTION OF SIDE-PATH SHALL BE RELEASED UPON
ACCEPTANCE OF SAID FEE-IN-LIEU BY THE TOWN.

11. DEVELOPER SHALL IMPROVE THE NORTH SIDE OF DOMINIK
COURT ALONG THE FRONTAGE OF PHASE 2 BASED ON A
MINIMUM 27' B-B CURB AND GUTTER ROADWAY WITH 5'
SIDEWALK.

12. DEVELOPER SHALL NOT PROPOSE ACCESS TO DOMINIK COURT
UNTIL EITHER ONE OF THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS IS MET:

12.1. A. DOMINIK COURT IS REALIGNED SOUTHWARD TO
PROVIDE AN APPROXIMATE RIGHT-ANGLE INTERSECTION
WITH KELLY ROAD APPROXIMATELY 700-800' SOUTH OF
JENKS ROAD, AND A SOUTHBOUND LEFT TURN LANE IS
PROVIDED ON KELLY ROAD AT DOMINIK COURT WITH A
MINIMUM OF 100' OF STORAGE PLUS DECELERATION AND
TAPER ACCORDING TO NCDOT STANDARDS.

12.2. B. A PUBLIC STREET CONNECTING DOMINIK COURT TO
JENKS ROAD IS CONSTRUCTED AND DOMINIK COURT IS
CONVERTED TO A RIGHT-IN/RIGHT-OUT ACCESS AT KELLY
ROAD.

- Page 58 -



D

D

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU
OU

OU
OU

OU
OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

TTTTTTTTTTTTTT

T T T T T T T
T

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

WW

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W
WWWW

W
W

W

W

WW
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

WW

NOW OR FORMERLY
KOBRA, L.L.C.

DB 8739, PG. 1293
(DB 1072, PG. 363, PORTION

OF FIRST TRACT)
TRACT 2, LOT 2

BM 2014, PG. 384-386
PIN: 0733-10-2211

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
KOBRA, L.L.C.

DB 8739, PG. 1293
(DB 1072, PG. 363, PORTION OF

FIRST TRACT)
TRACT 2, LOT 3

BM 2014, PG. 384-386
PIN: 0732-19-6422

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
ROY B. MILLER

DB 2799, PG. 154
BM 1978, PG. 804
PIN: 0732-19-2507

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
TOWN OF APEX

DB 9991, PG. 1308
BM 2002, PG. 1467
PIN: 0732-19-3336

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
MERQUIADES N. CESPEDES

DB 10796, PG. 367
BM 1989, PG. 394
PIN: 0732-18-6777

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
MERQUIADES N. CESPEDES

DB 15848, PG. 1971
LOT 1 - BM 1994, PG. 1932

PIN: 0732-19-5021
ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
MERQUIADES CESPEDES,

JR.
DB 16307, PG. 2748

LOT 2 - BM 1995, PG. 528
PIN: 0732-19-4101

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JOHN BRUCE SEARS and wife,

ELIZABETH C. SEARS
DB 8739, PG. 1293

(DB 1072, PG. 363, PORTION
OF FIRST TRACT)

TRACT 1 - BM 2005, PG. 220
PIN: 0732-09-7324

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JOHN B. SEARS and wife,

ELIZABETH C. SEARS
DB 16480, PG. 1943

TRACT 2, LOT 1
BM 2014, PG. 384-386

PIN: 0733-00-4132

NOW OR FORMERLY
ARTHUR H. LAFORD

DB 6295, PG. 580
LOT 6, CASTLEREAGH

NORTH
BM 1982, PG. 822
PIN: 0733-00-8519

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
ROBERT S. CRAYCROFT and

wife
LYNN S. CRAYCROFT

DB 5018, PG. 504
LOT 9, CASTLEREAGH

NORTH, SEC. III
BM 1987, PG. 886
PIN: 0733-10-0940

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JOHN WELDON and wife

KRISTEL M. WELDON
DB 16653, PG. 1598

LOT 11, CASTLEREAGH
NORTH, SEC. III

BM 1987, PG. 886
PIN: 0733-10-4932

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JAINIX, LLC

DB 17341, PG. 1696
PIN: 0733-10-8855

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JAINIX, LLC

DB 17239, PG. 1509
PIN: 0732-19-8808

ZONING: RR

JENKS ROAD, SR 1601(EXISTING VARIABLEWIDTH ROW)

GREEN LEVEL CHURCH

ROAD, SR 1600

(EXISTING 60' ROW
)

KELLY ROAD, SR 1163

(EXISTING 60' ROW)

EXISTING
POND

INTERMITTENT
STREAM

LINEAR WETLAND

DOMINIK COURT,

(FORMERLY SR 1600)

(EXISTING 60' ROW)

NC
 H

IG
HW

AY
 54

0
(E

XI
ST

IN
G 

VA
RI

AB
LE

 W
ID

TH
 R

OW
)

EXISTING
POND

18.546'

20.774'

539.35'
161.58'

N12°22'57"W

201.72'

N84°21'29"E  369.96'

L1

N47°
52'

48"
E  13

9.6
8'

N47°
57'

19"
E  12

8.0
0'

L2

S56°40'28"E  438.88'

S58°25'06"E  122.64'

S00°52'14"E  700.93'  (T)

C1

N81°40'19"W  119.30'
S74°05'18"W  122.94'

L3

N81°51'27"W  303.85'

C2

C3

N13°18'37"W
  196.98'

N12°02'38"W

154.60'

L4

S12°02'38"E  154.27'

S13°18'37"E  196.63'

C4

C5

S81°51'27"E  291.73'

L5

S0
9°

16
'13

"W
  3

04
.25

'

S0
5°

39
'21

"W
  1

10
.31

'

L6

L7

N62°39'53"W  231.82'

N62°55'28"W176.19'

L8

L9

L10

N0
0°

29
'01

"W
  2

35
.19

'

L11

C6

S62°57'49"E176.26'

S62°42'14"E  231.88'

50' RIPRARIAN BUFFER

INTERMITTENT STREAM

LINEAR WETLAND

MATCH LINE
(THIS SHEET)

50' RIPRARIAN BUFFER

NC
 H

IG
HW

AY
 54

0
(E

XI
ST

IN
G 

VA
RI

AB
LE

 W
ID

TH
 R

OW
)

SS

SS

EXISTING 12" TOWN OF APEX WATER LINE

EXISTING 42" TOWN OF
CARY WATER LINE

EXISTING 30" TOWN OF
CARY WATER LINE

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS
SS

SS

PROPOSED 8" SEWER

PROPOSED 40' UTILITY EASEMENT

SEWER CONNECTION POINT
FOR TRACT 2, LOT 3

SS

PROPOSED SEWER EXTENSION
TO ADJACENT PROPERTY. EXACT
LOCATION TO BE DETERMINED AT

TIME OF MASTER SUBDIVISION PLANS

EXISTING 24" TOWN OF
APEX WATER LINE

LINE TABLE

LINE

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

BEARING

N12°09'14"W

N47°16'47"E

S08°08'33"W

N77°57'22"E

S81°55'19"E

S74°18'38"W

S27°20'07"W

N27°04'31"E

N00°33'05"W

N62°29'58"W

S76°36'12"E

DISTANCE

62.39'

55.55'

30.00'

30.00'

131.38'

168.88'

30.00'

29.72'

49.68'

69.96'

59.39'

CURVE TABLE

CURVE

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

LENGTH

331.36

111.75

252.92

243.94

95.77

463.43

RADIUS

1920.00

900.89

880.73

850.73

870.89

2080.00

BEARING

N86°36'58"W

N34°42'19"W

N21°36'21"W

S21°35'41"E

S34°19'29"E

S88°03'21"E

CHORD

330.95'

111.68'

252.05'

243.11'

95.72'

462.48'

SS

SS

MATCH LINE
(THIS SHEET)

50' RIPRARIAN BUFFER

50' RIPRARIAN
BUFFER

100' RIPRARIAN
BUFFER

50' RIPRARIAN
BUFFER

20' PUE
BM 2018, PG. 102

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

PROPOSED CONNECTION TO
EXISTING MANHOLE

PROPOSED 40' UTILITY EASEMENT

PRELIMINARY UTILITY PLAN 4.0

K:
\18

\18
-1

11
0\1

81
11

0.1
0-

KO
BR

A\
CA

D\
Dr

aw
ing

 S
ets

\P
UD

\4.
0 P

RE
LIM

IN
AR

Y 
UT

ILI
TY

 P
LA

N.
dw

g-
 F

rid
ay

, A
ug

us
t 2

8, 
20

20
 2:

09
:57

 P
M 

- M
AY

O,
 B

EN

No.

Checked By

Revision

Designer

Drawn By

Date By Scale

Date

Job No.

Sheet No.

WithersRavenel

Engineers | Planners | Surveyors

115 MacKenan Drive | Cary, NC 27511 | t: 919.469.3340 | license #: C-0832 | www.withersravenel.com

02181110.1

08/14/20

1" = 100'

APEX WAKE COUNTY NORTH CAROLINA

BDM

BDM

AE

KOBRA TRACT

PRELIMINARY

NOT APPROVED FOR

CONSTRUCTION

UTILITY NOTES:

1. WATER AND SANITARY SEWER WILL BE OWNED AND
MAINTAINED BY THE TOWN OF APEX.

2. FIRE HYDRANTS, VALVES, SERVICES, METERS, AND
APPURTENANCES SHALL BE DESIGNED PER THE TOWN OF APEX
CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS AND SHALL BE SHOWN ON
THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS.

3. ALL UTILITY EASEMENTS SHALL BE PROVIDED AS NECESSARY.
DELINEATION WILL BE DETERMINED WITH FINAL DESIGN OF
INTERNAL PUBLIC STREETS AT THE SUBDIVISION PLAN STAGE.
MINIMUM UNDISTURBED BUFFER WIDTHS SHALL BE EXCLUSIVE
OF UTILITY EASEMENTS UNLESS APPROVED BY THE DIRECTOR
OF THE PUBLIC WORKS & UTILITIES DEPARTMENT.

4. THE DEVELOPER WILL ACTIVELY WORK WITH THE TOWN OF
APEX TO PRESERVE EXISTING TREES ON SITE. THESE AREAS
SHALL INCLUDE REQUIRED LANDSCAPE BUFFERS, RCA AREAS,
NON-BUFFERED AND NON-RCA AREAS, AREAS OF PROPOSED
UTILITY LINES, AND ADJACENT TO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, TO
THE MAXIMUM EXTENT POSSIBLE.

5. UTILITY LAYOUT FOR WATER AND SEWER IS CONCEPTUAL.
FINAL DESIGN WILL BE DETERMINED AT THE SUBDIVISION PLAN
STAGE.

GRAPHIC SCALE

1 inch = 100 ft.

100 0 50 100 200

- Page 59 -



X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

XXXXXXXXXX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX XX

D

D

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU
OU

OU
OU

OU
OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

OU

TTTTTTTTTTTTTT

T T T T T T T
T

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

WW

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W
WWWW

W
W

W

W

WW
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

WW

NOW OR FORMERLY
KOBRA, L.L.C.

DB 8739, PG. 1293
(DB 1072, PG. 363, PORTION

OF FIRST TRACT)
TRACT 2, LOT 2

BM 2014, PG. 384-386
PIN: 0733-10-2211

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
KOBRA, L.L.C.

DB 8739, PG. 1293
(DB 1072, PG. 363, PORTION OF

FIRST TRACT)
TRACT 2, LOT 3

BM 2014, PG. 384-386
PIN: 0732-19-6422

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
ROY B. MILLER

DB 2799, PG. 154
BM 1978, PG. 804
PIN: 0732-19-2507

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
TOWN OF APEX

DB 9991, PG. 1308
BM 2002, PG. 1467
PIN: 0732-19-3336

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
MERQUIADES N. CESPEDES

DB 10796, PG. 367
BM 1989, PG. 394
PIN: 0732-18-6777

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
MERQUIADES N. CESPEDES

DB 15848, PG. 1971
LOT 1 - BM 1994, PG. 1932

PIN: 0732-19-5021
ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
MERQUIADES CESPEDES,

JR.
DB 16307, PG. 2748

LOT 2 - BM 1995, PG. 528
PIN: 0732-19-4101

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JOHN BRUCE SEARS and wife,

ELIZABETH C. SEARS
DB 8739, PG. 1293

(DB 1072, PG. 363, PORTION
OF FIRST TRACT)

TRACT 1 - BM 2005, PG. 220
PIN: 0732-09-7324

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JOHN B. SEARS and wife,

ELIZABETH C. SEARS
DB 16480, PG. 1943

TRACT 2, LOT 1
BM 2014, PG. 384-386

PIN: 0733-00-4132

NOW OR FORMERLY
ARTHUR H. LAFORD

DB 6295, PG. 580
LOT 6, CASTLEREAGH

NORTH
BM 1982, PG. 822
PIN: 0733-00-8519

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
ROBERT S. CRAYCROFT and

wife
LYNN S. CRAYCROFT

DB 5018, PG. 504
LOT 9, CASTLEREAGH

NORTH, SEC. III
BM 1987, PG. 886
PIN: 0733-10-0940

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JOHN WELDON and wife

KRISTEL M. WELDON
DB 16653, PG. 1598

LOT 11, CASTLEREAGH
NORTH, SEC. III

BM 1987, PG. 886
PIN: 0733-10-4932

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JAINIX, LLC

DB 17341, PG. 1696
PIN: 0733-10-8855

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY
JAINIX, LLC

DB 17239, PG. 1509
PIN: 0732-19-8808

ZONING: RR

JENKS ROAD, SR 1601(EXISTING VARIABLEWIDTH ROW)

GREEN LEVEL CHURCH

ROAD, SR 1600

(EXISTING 60' ROW
)

KELLY ROAD, SR 1163

(EXISTING 60' ROW)

EXISTING
POND

INTERMITTENT
STREAM

LINEAR WETLAND

DOMINIK COURT,

(FORMERLY SR 1600)

(EXISTING 60' ROW)

NC
 H

IG
HW

AY
 54

0
(E

XI
ST

IN
G 

VA
RI

AB
LE

 W
ID

TH
 R

OW
)

EXISTING
POND

18.546'

20.774'

539.35'
161.58'

N12°22'57"W

201.72'

N84°21'29"E  369.96'

L1

N47°
52'

48"
E  13

9.6
8'

N47°
57'

19"
E  12

8.0
0'

L2

S56°40'28"E  438.88'

S58°25'06"E  122.64'

S00°52'14"E  700.93'  (T)

C1

N81°40'19"W  119.30'
S74°05'18"W  122.94'

L3

N81°51'27"W  303.85'

C2

C3

N13°18'37"W
  196.98'

N12°02'38"W

154.60'

L4

S12°02'38"E  154.27'

S13°18'37"E  196.63'

C4

C5

S81°51'27"E  291.73'

L5

S0
9°

16
'13

"W
  3

04
.25

'

S0
5°

39
'21

"W
  1

10
.31

'

L6

L7

N62°39'53"W  231.82'

N62°55'28"W176.19'

L8

L9

L10

N0
0°

29
'01

"W
  2

35
.19

'

L11

C6

S62°57'49"E176.26'

S62°42'14"E  231.88'

50' RIPRARIAN BUFFER

INTERMITTENT STREAM

LINEAR WETLAND

50' RIPRARIAN BUFFER

NC
 H

IG
HW

AY
 54

0
(E

XI
ST

IN
G 

VA
RI

AB
LE

 W
ID

TH
 R

OW
)

SS

SS

SCM

SCM

LINE TABLE

LINE

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

BEARING

N12°09'14"W

N47°16'47"E

S08°08'33"W

N77°57'22"E

S81°55'19"E

S74°18'38"W

S27°20'07"W

N27°04'31"E

N00°33'05"W

N62°29'58"W

S76°36'12"E

DISTANCE

62.39'

55.55'

30.00'

30.00'

131.38'

168.88'

30.00'

29.72'

49.68'

69.96'

59.39'

CURVE TABLE

CURVE

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

LENGTH

331.36

111.75

252.92

243.94

95.77

463.43

RADIUS

1920.00

900.89

880.73

850.73

870.89

2080.00

BEARING

N86°36'58"W

N34°42'19"W

N21°36'21"W

S21°35'41"E

S34°19'29"E

S88°03'21"E

CHORD

330.95'

111.68'

252.05'

243.11'

95.72'

462.48'

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 5.0

K:
\18

\18
-1

11
0\1

81
11

0.1
0-

KO
BR

A\
CA

D\
Dr

aw
ing

 S
ets

\P
UD

\5.
0 S

TO
RM

W
AT

ER
 M

AN
AG

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
.dw

g-
 F

rid
ay

, A
ug

us
t 2

8, 
20

20
 2:

13
:09

 P
M 

- M
AY

O,
 B

EN

No.

Checked By

Revision

Designer

Drawn By

Date By Scale

Date

Job No.

Sheet No.

WithersRavenel

Engineers | Planners | Surveyors

115 MacKenan Drive | Cary, NC 27511 | t: 919.469.3340 | license #: C-0832 | www.withersravenel.com

02181110.1

08/14/20

1" = 100'

APEX WAKE COUNTY NORTH CAROLINA

BDM

BDM

AE

KOBRA TRACT

PRELIMINARY

NOT APPROVED FOR

CONSTRUCTION

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT NOTES:
1. TOPOGRAPHIC AND UTILITY INFORMATION BASED ON AVAILABLE GIS

MAPPING.  PRELIMINARY BOUNDARY SURVEY PREPARED BY
WITHERSRAVENEL.

2. WETLAND/STREAM INFORMATION BASED ON EVALUATION BY S&EC
DATED 02/06/20. BUFFERS BASED ON TOWN OF APEX STREAM
BUFFER DETERMINATION (APEX #19-006).

3. REGULATORY FEMA MAPPED FLOODPLAINS DO NOT EXIST ON SITE
PER FIRM MAP #3720073300J (5/2/06) & #3720073200J (5/2/06).

4. THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED WITHIN THE TOWN OF APEX
PRIMARY WATERSHED PROTECTION OVERLAY DISTRICT.

5. STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES SHALL BE DESIGNED PER
THE TOWN OF APEX STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS FOR
STORMWATER QUANTITY AND QUALITY (UDO SECTION 6.1.7 B).

6. ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL AND STATE ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITS
SHALL BE OBTAINED PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION.

7. STORMWATER TREATMENT WILL BE HANDLED BY INDIVIDUAL OR
REGIONAL FACILITIES WITHIN THE SUBJECT PROPERTY OR
ADJACENT OFF-SITE DRAINAGE EASEMENT.

GRAPHIC SCALE

1 inch = 100 ft.

100 0 50 100 200

- Page 60 -



- Page 61 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  20 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Lau ren  S tau de n mai e r ,  P l ann er  I  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  P l ann i n g and  C o mmu n i ty  D e ve l op men t  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  t o  a ppr o ve  S t at e men t  o f  the  To wn  C ounc i l  an d Or d i na nc e fo r  R ez on i n g Ca s e  # 20 CZ0 7 ,  

Jef f  Roach,  Peak Engineer ing/Rich Levert  p et i t i on e r s ,  f o r  t he  p r o per ty  loc a te d on  230 9  O l d  U S  1  

H i gh w ay .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

P l ann i n g and  C o mmu n i ty  D e ve l op men t  De par t men t  rec o mme nd s  a p pro va l .  

I tem De ta i l s  

R ezon i n g C ase  # 20C Z 0 7  w as  a ppr o ve d a t  t he  Oc to ber  6 ,  2020  To wn C ounc i l  mee t i n g .  

At t ac h men t s  

  S ta te men t  o f  the  To w n Counc i l  

  Ord i n anc e to  Ame nd  the  Of f i c i a l  Z on i n g D i s t r i c t  Ma p  

 

- Page 62 -



STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-383 
ADDRESSING ACTION ON ZONING PETITION #20CZ07 

 
 
 
 Jeff Roach, Peak Engineering/Rich Levert, owner/applicant (the “Applicant”), submitted a 
completed application for a conditional zoning on the 1st day of July 2020 (the “Application”).  The 
proposed conditional zoning is designated #20CZ07. 
 
 
 The Planning and Community Development Director for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused 
proper notice to be given (by publication and posting) of a public hearing on #20CZ07 before the 
Planning Board held on the 14th day of September 2020. 
 
 
 Pursuant to G.S. §160A-384 and Sec. 2.2.11(E) of the Unified Development Ordinance, the 
Planning Director caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting), of a public hearing on 
#20CZ07 before the Town Council on the 6th day of October 2020. 
 
 
 The Apex Planning Board held a public hearing on the 14th day of September 2020, gathered 
facts, received public comments and, following a 24 hour public comment period, on the 16th day of 
September 2020 formulated a recommendation regarding the application for conditional zoning 
#20CZ07.  A motion was made at the Apex Planning Board to recommend approval; the motion passed 
by a 6-0 vote with 1 abstention due to technical difficulties for the application for #20CZ07. 
 

 
 The Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 6th day of October 2020. Lauren 
Staudenmaier, Planner I, presented the Planning Board's recommendation at the public hearing.   
 
 
 All persons who desired to present information relevant to the application for #20CZ07 and who 
were residents of Apex or its extraterritorial jurisdiction, or who owned property adjoining the property 
for which the conditional zoning is sought, were allowed to present evidence at the public hearing 
before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to speak was turned away. 
 
 
 The Town Council by a vote of 5 to 0 approved Application #20CZ07 rezoning the subject tract 
located at 2309 Old US 1 Highway from Rural Residential (RR) & Tech/Flex-Conditional Zoning (TF-CZ 
#15CZ25) to Mixed Office-Residential-Retail-Conditional Zoning (MORR-CZ). 
 
 
 The Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is consistent with the 2045 Land 
Use Plan and other adopted plans in that: the 2045 Land Use Map designates this area as Office 
Employment & Commercial Services. This designation on the 2045 Land Use Map includes the zoning 
district Mixed Office-Residential-Retail (MORR-CZ) and the Apex Town Council has further considered 
that the proposed rezoning to Mixed Office-Residential-Retail (MORR-CZ) will maintain the character 
and appearance of the area and provide the flexibility to accommodate the growth in population, 
economy, and infrastructure consistent with that contemplated by the 2045 Land Use Map.  The Mixed 
Office-Residential-Retail (MORR) district outside of the Town’s corporate limits is permitted for existing 
homes petitioning to come into the corporate limits in areas depicted as non-residential only; residential 
densities may be limited. 
 
 

- Page 63 -



STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL ZONING PETITION #20CZ07 
PAGE 2 

 
The Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is reasonable and in the public 

interest in that the proposed Mixed Office-Residential-Retail-Conditional Zoning (MORR-CZ) district is 
consistent with the 2045 Land Use Plan and other adopted plans. The 2045 Land Use Map classifies the 
subject property as Office Employment/Commercial services which includes the Mixed Office-
Residential-Retail-Conditional Zoning (MORR-CZ) district. It will allow the property to maintain the 
existing single-family residential use while allowing for future non-residential redevelopment options to 
serve the surrounding area. The proposed rezoning also requires the correction of the nonconforming 
structure prior to redevelopment. The rezoning will encourage compatible development of the property 
and increase the tax base.   
 
 

                         ______________________________________ 
                         Jacques K. Gilbert 
                         Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
 
_________________________ 
Date 

- Page 64 -



ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE TOWN OF APEX TO 
CHANGE THE ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 1.60 ACRES LOCATED AT 2309 OLD US 1 HIGHWAY 
FROM RURAL RESIDENTIAL (RR) AND TECH/FLEX CONDITIONAL ZONING (TF-CZ #15CZ25) TO 
MIXED OFFICE-RESIDENTIAL-RETAIL-CONDITIONAL ZONING (MORR-CZ) 

#20CZ07 
 
 
 

  
WHEREAS, the application of Jeff Roach, Peak Engineering/ Rich Levert, petitioners, for the rezoning of 
lands hereinafter described was duly filed with the office of the Planning Director and thereafter a public 
hearing was held hereon on the 14th day of September 2020 before the Planning Board and the 6th day of 
October 2020, before the Town Council, respectively, pursuant to due notice mailed and published 
pursuant to G.S. § 160A-384. Thereafter, the Planning Board submitted its final report to the Town Council 
recommending approval of said application for the rezoning of the lands hereinafter described, all in 
accordance with the requirements of the Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance and the 
provisions of Chapter 160A, Article 19, of the North Carolina General Statutes; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF APEX 
 
 
 Section 1:  The lands that are the subject of the Ordinance are those certain lands described in 
Attachment “A” – Legal Description which is incorporated herein by reference, and said lands are 
hereafter referred to as the “Rezoned Lands.” 
 
 

Section 2:  The Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance, including the Town of Apex North 
Carolina Official Zoning District Map which is a part of said Ordinance, is hereby amended by changing the 
zoning classification of the “Rezoned Lands” from Rural Residential (RR) and Tech/Flex Conditional Zoning 
(TF-CZ #15CZ25) to Mixed Office-Residential-Retail-Conditional Zoning (MORR-CZ) District, subject to the 
conditions stated herein. 
 
 

Section 3:  The “Rezoned Lands” are subject to all of the following conditions which are imposed 
as part of this rezoning: 
 
Zoning Conditions: 
The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted 
uses are subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or 
regulations stated below. For convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such 
references do not imply that other sections of the UDO do not apply. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 65 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map  #20CZ07 
Page Two 
 

Permitted Uses and Limitations:  
1. Accessory apartment 19. Bed and breakfast (S) 
2. Condominium 20. Barber and beauty shop 
3. Family care home 21. Book store 
4. Nursing or convalescent facility (S) 22. Convenience store 
5. Single-family 23. Dry cleaners and laundry service 
6. Day care facility 24. Financial institution 
7. Government services 25. Floral Shop 
8. Veterinary clinic or hospital 26. Greenhouse or nursery, retail 
9. Utility, minor 27. Grocery, specialty 
10. Wireless support structure 28. Health/fitness center or spa 
11. Botanical garden 29. Newsstand or gift shop 
12. Greenway 30. Personal service 
13. Park, active 31. Pharmacy 
14. Park, passive 32. Real estate sales 
15. Restaurant, drive-through 33. Studio for art 
16. Restaurant, general 34. Tailor shop 
17. Medical or dental office or clinic 35. Pet services 
18. Office, business or professional  

 

 
Conditions: 

1. For uses proposing new construction the following shall apply: 
a. The exterior materials for nonresidential product include a combination of building materials. The 

primary (front) façade of the main buildings to be considered include: 
i. Brick masonry. 

ii. Decorative concrete block (either integrally colored or textured). 
iii. Stone accents. 
iv. Aluminum storefronts with anodized or pre-finished colors. 
v. EIFS cornices and parapet trim. EIFS or synthetic stucco shall not be uses in the first four 

feet above grade and shall be limited to only 25% of each building façade. 
vi. Precast concrete. 

b. The main entrance to the building shall be emphasized. 
c. No more than one double-loaded bay of parking shall be provided in front of the building. 
d. Buildings shall have vertical proportions. Expanses of blank wall shall not exceed sixty (60) feet in 

width without being interrupted with an architectural feature such as, but not limited to, a 
column, recess in or projection from the building façade. Windows and storefront glazing shall be 
divided to be either square or vertical in proportion so that each section is taller than it is wide. 
Permitted setbacks can be used to articulate bays of a building to break up its width. Architectural 
features such as, but not limited to, columns, piers, rooflines, and brick patterns can be used to 
divide and create vertical orientation on building facades. 

e. The building façade shall have an identifiable base, body, and cap with horizontal elements 
separating these components. The body of the building shall constitute a minimum of fifty (50%) 
percent of the total building height. Buildings shall not have blank side walls creating a false front 
appearance. In addition, corner buildings shall have two façades which maintain a relationship to 
each other although they do not need to be identical. 

 
 
 

- Page 66 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map  #20CZ07 
Page Three 
 

2. For purposes of access, at time when the property is redeveloped, the following shall apply: 
a. The residential driveway access shall be removed. 
b. Access and cross-access for redevelopment shall be provided by the Humie Olive Road extension 

and the signal on Old US 1 Highway. 
3. The existing nonconforming structure on the property shall be corrected prior to the first site plan 

submittal either by removing the structure from the property or by moving the structure or providing 
a recombination plat so that the structure is made conforming.  

4. Residential density shall be limited to 0.69 units/acre.  
 
 

Section 4:  The Planning Director is hereby authorized and directed to cause the said Official Zoning 
District Map for the Town of Apex, North Carolina, to be physically revised and amended to reflect the 
zoning changes ordained by this Ordinance. 
 
 

Section 5:  The “Rezoned Lands” shall be perpetually bound to the conditions imposed including 
the uses authorized, unless subsequently changed or amended as provided for in the Unified Development 
Ordinance.  Site plans for any development to be made pursuant to this amendment to the Official Zoning 
District Map shall be submitted for site plan approval as provided for in the Unified Development 
Ordinance. 

 
 
Section 6:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 
 Motion by Council Member___________________________________ 
 
 Seconded by Council Member__________________________________ 
 
 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "aye." 
 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "no." 
 
 This the _____ day of _________________ 2020. 
 
 

                                                                   TOWN OF APEX 
 
 

                                                                      ____________________________________ 
                                                                                                                           Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
                       Town Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
                    Town Attorney 

- Page 67 -



AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP: EXHIBIT A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
Application #: Submittal Date: 

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

Insert legal description below. 

Page 12 of 12 Rezoning & 2045 Land Use Map Amendment Application

Project Identification and Legal Description

Richard and Richere Levert Property
Apex, Buckhorn Township

Wake County, North Carolina

The Richer and Richere Levert Property is identified by Wake County GIS PIN 0720-98-5958 
located on the south side of N.C.S.R. 1011 (Old US 1 Highway).

The POINT OF BEGINNING is an existing point at the intersection of Vaudry Court centerline 
and the southern right-of-way for SR 1011, and at the northwest corner of N/F Richer Levert 
property (PIN 0720-98-5958);
thence N 71°01’04” E for 183.16’ along the common line with southern right-of-way for SR 
1011 to an existing point;
thence N 71°10'41” E for 74.81’ along the common line with southern right-of-way for SR 
1011 to an existing point with N/F Richer and Richere Levert (PIN 0720-98-8948);
thence S 13°53'21” E for 105.22’ along the common line with N/F Richer and Richere Levert 
(PIN 0720-98-8948) to an existing point;
thence S 32°49'07” W for 238.60’ along the common line with N/F Richer and Richere Levert 
(PIN 0720-98-8948) to an existing point;
thence S 28°07'41” E for 120.97’ along the common line with N/F Richer and Richere Levert 
(PIN 0720-98-8948) to an existing point on the centerline of Vaudry Court
thence N 82°52'56” W along a curve at a radius of 150.00 for 117.36' (chord) along the 
centerline of Vaudry Court to an existing point;
thence N 30°50'28” W along a curve at a radius of 150.00 for 151.91' (length) along the 
centerline of Vaudry Court to an existing point;
thence N 01°49'43” W for 186.25’ to an existing iron point at the intersection of Vaudry Court 
centerline and the southern right-of-way for SR 1011, said point being the POINT OF 
BEGINNING.

Said property includes approximately 69,842 square feet or 1.6033 acres.

The property hereinabove described was acquired by the Grantor by Deed Book 15723 Page 
2185 and BM2019 Pg01041.

- Page 68 -

lstaudenmaier
Typewritten Text
Attachment "A"

lstaudenmaier
Typewritten Text
20CZ07

lstaudenmaier
Typewritten Text
7/1/2020



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  20 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  She l l y  M ay o ,  P lan ner  I I  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  P l ann i n g and  C o mmu n i ty  D e ve l op men t  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  to  ap pr o ve  S t at e men t  o f  the  To wn  Counc i l  an d Or d i na nc e fo r  R ez on i ng Ca s e  #20CZ0 8  

Ap e x  F r i en d sh i p  E l e men t ary  S c ho o l .   Be t ty  Park e r  f o r  Wa k e  C oun ty  Pub l i c  Sc h oo l  S ys te m,  

pe t i t i one r ,  f o r  the  p r o per ty  loc a te d at  7901  Hu mi e  O l i ve  R oa d .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

P l ann i n g and  C o mmu n i ty  D e ve l op men t  De par t men t  rec o mme nd s  a p pro va l .  

I tem De ta i l s  

R ezon i n g C ase  # 20C Z 08  w as  a ppr o ve d a t  t he  Oc to ber  6 ,  2020  To wn C ounc i l  mee t i n g .  

At t ac h men t s  

  S ta te men t  o f  the  To w n Counc i l  

  Ord i n anc e to  Ame nd  the  Of f i c i a l  Z on i n g D i s t r i c t  Ma p  

 

- Page 69 -



STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-383 
ADDRESSING ACTION ON ZONING PETITION #20CZ08 

Page 1 of 2 

 Wake County Public School System, owner/applicant (the “Applicant”), submitted a 
completed application for a conditional zoning on the 31st day of July 2020 (the “Application”).  The 
proposed conditional zoning is designated #20CZ08. 

 The Planning Director for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused proper notice to be given 
(by publication and posting) of a public hearing on #20CZ08 before the Planning Board held on the 
14th day of September 2020. 

 Pursuant to G.S. §160A-384 and Sec. 2.2.11(E) of the Unified Development Ordinance, the 
Planning Director caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting), of a public hearing 
on #20CZ08 before the Town Council on the 6th day of October 2020. 

   The Apex Planning Board held a public hearing on the 14th day of September 2020, gathered 
facts, received public comments and, following a 24 hour public comment period, on the 16th day of 
September 2020 formulated a recommendation regarding the application for conditional zoning 
#20CZ08. A motion was made at the Apex Planning Board to recommend approval; the motion 
passed by a vote of 6-0 with 1 abstention due to technical difficulties for the application for #20CZ08. 

 The Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 6th day of October 2020. Amanda Bunce, 
Current Planning Manager, presented the Planning Board's recommendation at the public hearing.   

 All persons who desired to present information relevant to the application for #20CZ08 and 
who were residents of Apex or its extraterritorial jurisdiction, or who owned property adjoining the 
property for which the conditional zoning is sought, were allowed to present evidence at the public 
hearing before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to speak was turned away. 

 The Town Council by a vote of 5 to 0 approved Application #20CZ08 rezoning the subject 
tract located at 7901 Humie Olive Road from Planned Unit Development - Conditional Zoning (PUD-
CZ) to Rural Residential - Conditional Zoning (RR-CZ). 

 The Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is generally consistent with 
the 2045 Land Use Plan and other adopted plans in that: The 2045 Land Use Map designates this area 
as Mixed Use: High Density Residential/Office Employment/Commercial Services, and the proposed 
zoning district is generally consistent given the list of permitted uses. The Apex Town Council has 
further considered that the proposed rezoning to Rural Residential - Conditional Zoning (RR-CZ) will 
maintain the character and appearance of the area and provide the flexibility to accommodate the 
growth in population, economy, and infrastructure consistent with that contemplated by the 2045 
Land Use Map.  

- Page 70 -



STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL ZONING PETITION #20CZ08 

Page 2 of 2 

The Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is reasonable and in the public 
interest in that: it will permit greater flexibility in planning and building schools to support the new 
residential development in the area. The rezoning will encourage compatible development of the 
property and increase the tax base.   

   

  
Jacques K. Gilbert 
Mayor 

ATTEST:   

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 

  

   

Date   

 

- Page 71 -



ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE TOWN OF APEX TO 
CHANGE THE ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 5.762 ACRES LOCATED AT 7901 HUMIE OLIVE ROAD 

FROM PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT – CONDITIONAL ZONING (PUD-CZ) TO RURAL RESIDENTIAL 
– CONDITIONAL ZONING (RR-CZ) 

#20CZ08 

Page 1 of 2 

WHEREAS, the application of Wake County Public School System, petitioner, for the rezoning of lands 
hereinafter described was duly filed with the office of the Planning Director and thereafter a public hearing 
was held hereon on the 14th day of September 2020 before the Planning Board and the 6th day of October 
2020, before the Town Council, respectively, pursuant to due notice mailed and published pursuant to G.S. 
§ 160A-384. Thereafter, the Planning Board submitted its final report to the Town Council recommending 
approval of said application for the rezoning of the lands hereinafter described, all in accordance with the 
requirements of the Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance and the provisions of Chapter 160A, 
Article 19, of the North Carolina General Statutes; NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF APEX 

 Section 1:  The lands that are the subject of the Ordinance are those certain lands described in 
Attachment “A” – Legal Description which is incorporated herein by reference, and said lands are hereafter 
referred to as the “Rezoned Lands.” 

            Section 2:  The Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance, including the Town of Apex North 
Carolina Official Zoning District Map which is a part of said Ordinance, is hereby amended by changing the 
zoning classification of the “Rezoned Lands” from Planned Unit Development - Conditional Zoning (PUD-
CZ)to Rural Residential - Conditional Zoning (RR-CZ) District, subject to the conditions stated herein. 

Section 3:   The “Rezoned Lands” are subject to all of the following conditions which are imposed as 
part of this rezoning: 

The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses 
are subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or 
regulations stated below. For convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such 
references do not imply that other sections of the UDO do not apply.  

1. School, public or private  

2. Day care facility  

3. Communication tower, constructed stealth  

4. Communication tower, camouflage stealth  

5. Communication tower, public safety  

6. Wireless communication facility  

7. Wireless support structure  

8. Youth or day camps  

9. Church or place of worship  

10. Assembly hall, for profit  

11. Assembly hall, not for profit  

12. Government service  

Zoning Conditions: 

1. The project shall preserve trees of equal to or larger than 18-inches in diameter at breast height to 
the maximum extent reasonably possible.  

2. In compliance with UDO Section 8.2.2.E.1.b and to optimize landscaping survival, installing the 
landscaping may be delayed by up to 6 months after a Certificate of Occupancy would otherwise be 
required.  

3. To support the re-establishment of forest, this project shall utilize a reforestation seed mix on any 
disturbed areas which have slopes of 3:1 or less and are not located with RCA or SCMs.  

- Page 72 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map  

#20CZ08 

Page 2 of 2 

4. Provide a 20-foot Public Greenway Easement for future connection from the Apex Friendship 
Elementary School campus to the Little Beaver Creek greenway, consistent with a proposed 
amendment to the Town of Apex Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map.  

 Section 4:  The Planning Director is hereby authorized and directed to cause the said Official 
Zoning District Map for the Town of Apex, North Carolina, to be physically revised and amended to reflect 
the zoning changes ordained by this Ordinance. 

Section 5:  The “Rezoned Lands” shall be perpetually bound to the conditions imposed including 
the uses authorized, unless subsequently changed or amended as provided for in the Unified Development 
Ordinance.  Site plans for any development to be made pursuant to this amendment to the Official Zoning 
District Map shall be submitted for site plan approval as provided for in the Unified Development 
Ordinance. 

Section 6:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 Motion by Council Member___________________________________ 

 Seconded by Council Member__________________________________ 

 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "aye." 

 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "no." 

 This the _____ day of _________________ 2020. 

  TOWN OF APEX 

  Mayor 
ATTEST:   

Town Clerk   

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   
   

Town Attorney                   
 

- Page 73 -



- Page 74 -

smayo
Typewritten Text
Attachment A:



- Page 75 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for  cons iderat ion by the Apex Town Counci l  

 

 I tem Type:  CONSENT AGEND A 

 Meeting Date:  October 20 , 2020  

Item Details  

Presenter :  Amanda Bunce , Current Planning Manager  

Depar tment:  P lanning and Communi ty Development  

Requested Motion  

Motion to adopt a Resolut ion Di rect ing the Town Clerk  to Invest igate Pet i t ion  Received, to accept the 

Cert i f icate of  Suf f ic iency by the Town Clerk , and to adopt a Resolut ion Sett ing Date of  Publ ic Hear ing  

for  November  4 , 2020 on the Quest ion of  Annexation –  Apex Town Counci l ’s  intent to annex Lecter  

Mar ie Atwater , Donna M. Atwater  and Jerome Kenneth Atwater  HEIRS  (Kings  Grant) proper ty 

contain ing 11 .275 acres located at  2504,  2508, 2512 ,  2516 and 2600 Mt. Z ion Church Road, Anne xation 

#693 into the Town’s  corporate l imi ts .  

Approval  Recommended?  

Yes , by the P lanning and Communi ty Development Depar tment.  

I tem Detai l s  

The Town Clerk cert i f ies to the invest igat ion of  said annexation.  Adoption of  the Resolut ion 

author i zes the Town Clerk to advert i se said publ ic hear ing by e lectronic means and on the Town 

of Apex’s websi te .   

Attachments  

  Annexation Pet i t ion  

  Legal  Descr ipt ion  

  Vicin i ty Map 

  Resolut ion Di rect ing the Town Clerk to Invest igate Pet i t ion  

  Cert i f icate of  Suf f ic iency by the Town Clerk  

  Resolut ion Sett ing Date of  Publ ic Hear ing  

 

 

- Page 76 -



    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK 
TO INVESTIGATE PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S.§ 160A-31 

 
Annexation Petition #693  

Kings Grant  
 
 

   WHEREAS, G.S. §160-A 31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall 
be investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may 
take place; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Apex deems it advisable to 
proceed in response to this request for annexation; 
 
   NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Apex, that the Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the 
above-described petition and to certify to the Town Council the result of her 
investigation. 
 
This the 20th day of October 2020. 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Jacques K. Gilbert 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
 
  

- Page 77 -



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY BY THE TOWN CLERK 
 

Annexation Petition #693 
Kings Grant 

 
 
 

 
To:     The Town Council of the Town of Apex, North Carolina 
 
    I,  Donna B. Hosch, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the 
annexation petition attached hereto, and have found, as a fact, that said petition 
is signed by all owners of real property lying in the area described therein, in 
accordance with G.S.§ 160A-31, as amended. 
 
    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 
Town of Apex, North Carolina this 20th day of October 2020. 
 
 
 
 

                                                                      
________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 

                                                           Town Clerk 
      

    
 
 
 
         (Seal) 
 
 

 
 

- Page 78 -



- Page 79 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text

bbrock
Typewritten Text
0721-43-5444



- Page 80 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
693

bbrock
Typewritten Text
6/22/2020



- Page 81 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
0721-43-5444



- Page 82 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
693

bbrock
Typewritten Text
6/22/2020



- Page 83 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
693

bbrock
Typewritten Text
6/22/2020



- Page 84 -



- Page 85 -



- Page 86 -



- Page 87 -



10/14/2020 Account Summary - 0002622

services.wakegov.com/realestate/Account.asp?id=0002622&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=2558&stype=pin&spg=1 1/1

Home Wake County Real Estate Data iMaps
Account Summary Tax Bills

Real Estate ID 0002622 PIN #  0721432558
  
Location Address Property Description
2504 MT ZION CHURCH
RD

JOHN R RICHARDSON SR LAND

Pin/Parcel History  Search Results  New Search 
Account | Buildings | Land | Deeds | Notes | Sales | Photos | Tax Bill | Map

Account
Search

Property Owner
ATWATER, LECTOR MARIE R
(Use the Deeds link to view any additional owners)

Owner's Mailing Address
2504 MOUNT ZION CHURCH RD
APEX NC 27502-9636

Property Location Address
2504 MT ZION CHURCH RD
APEX NC 27502-9636
 

Administrative Data
Old Map # 669--
Map/Scale 0721 03
VCS 03AP900
City
Fire District 23
Township BUCKHORN
Land Class R-<10-HS
ETJ AP
Spec Dist(s)
Zoning PUD-CZ
History ID 1
History ID 2
Acreage 2.97
Permit Date
Permit #

Transfer Information
 
Deed Date 11/21/1966
Book & Page 01758  0143
Revenue Stamps  
Pkg Sale Date
Pkg Sale Price
Land Sale Date
Land Sale Price
  
Improvement Summary
 
Total Units 1
Recycle Units 1
Apt/SC Sqft
Heated Area 1,125

Assessed Value
 
Land Value Assessed $249,780
Bldg. Value Assessed $99,201
  
  
Tax Relief $101,001
  
Land Use Value
Use Value Deferment
Historic Deferment
Total Deferred Value

 
 

Use/Hist/Tax Relief
Assessed

$247,980

Total Value Assessed* $348,981

*Wake County assessed building and land values reflect the market value as of January 1, 2020, which is the date of the last
county-wide revaluation. Any inflation, deflation or other economic changes occurring after this date does not affect the
assessed value of the property and cannot be lawfully considered when reviewing the value for adjustment.

The January 1, 2020 values will remain in effect until the next county-wide revaluation. Until that time, any real estate
accounts created or new construction built is assessed according to the 2020 Schedule of Values.

For questions regarding the information displayed on this site, please contact the Department of Tax Administration
at Taxhelp@wakegov.com or call 919-856-5400.

- Page 88 -

http://www.wakegov.com/
http://www.wakegov.com/tax/
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps/
http://services.wakegov.com/ptax/main/billing
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/pinhistory/default.aspx?reid=0002622
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/DoSearch.asp?id=0002622&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=2558&stype=pin&spg=1
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/search.asp?id=0002622&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=2558&stype=pin&spg=1
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Building.asp?id=0002622&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=2558&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2504++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=JOHN+R+RICHARDSON+SR+LAND&pin=0721432558
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Land.asp?id=0002622&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=2558&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2504++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=JOHN+R+RICHARDSON+SR+LAND&pin=0721432558
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Deeds.asp?id=0002622&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=2558&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2504++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=JOHN+R+RICHARDSON+SR+LAND&pin=0721432558
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Notes.asp?id=0002622&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=2558&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2504++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=JOHN+R+RICHARDSON+SR+LAND&pin=0721432558
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/ImpSales.asp?id=0002622&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=2558&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2504++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=JOHN+R+RICHARDSON+SR+LAND&pin=0721432558
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Photo.asp?id=0002622&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=2558&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2504++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=JOHN+R+RICHARDSON+SR+LAND&pin=0721432558
http://services.wakegov.com/ptax/main/billing/acctsummary.aspx?search=re&yrs=2&prev=re&id=0002622
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps/?pin=0721432558
mailto:Taxhelp@wakegov.com


10/14/2020 Account Summary - 0149560

services.wakegov.com/realestate/Account.asp?id=0149560&map=0721&sheet=&block=42&lot=4940&stype=pin&spg=1 1/1

Home Wake County Real Estate Data iMaps
Account Summary Tax Bills

Real Estate ID 0149560 PIN #  0721424940
  
Location Address Property Description
2600 MT ZION CHURCH
RD

LO3 PROP J R RICHARDSON HRS BM1984-01690

Pin/Parcel History  Search Results  New Search 
Account | Buildings | Land | Deeds | Notes | Sales | Photos | Tax Bill | Map

Account
Search

Property Owner
ATWATER, LECTOR MARIE
(Use the Deeds link to view any additional owners)

Owner's Mailing Address
2504 MOUNT ZION CHURCH RD
APEX NC 27502-9636

Property Location Address
2600 MT ZION CHURCH RD
APEX NC 27502-0000
 

Administrative Data
Old Map # 669-00000-0124
Map/Scale 0721 03
VCS 03AP900
City
Fire District 23
Township BUCKHORN
Land Class VACANT
ETJ AP
Spec Dist(s)
Zoning PUD-CZ
History ID 1
History ID 2
Acreage 4.60
Permit Date
Permit #

Transfer Information
 
Deed Date 12/19/1985
Book & Page 03621  0855
Revenue Stamps  
Pkg Sale Date
Pkg Sale Price
Land Sale Date
Land Sale Price
  
Improvement Summary
 
Total Units 0
Recycle Units 0
Apt/SC Sqft
Heated Area

Assessed Value
 
Land Value Assessed $370,400
Bldg. Value Assessed
  
  
Tax Relief
  
Land Use Value
Use Value Deferment
Historic Deferment
Total Deferred Value

 
 

Use/Hist/Tax Relief
Assessed

 

Total Value Assessed* $370,400

*Wake County assessed building and land values reflect the market value as of January 1, 2020, which is the date of the last
county-wide revaluation. Any inflation, deflation or other economic changes occurring after this date does not affect the
assessed value of the property and cannot be lawfully considered when reviewing the value for adjustment.

The January 1, 2020 values will remain in effect until the next county-wide revaluation. Until that time, any real estate
accounts created or new construction built is assessed according to the 2020 Schedule of Values.

For questions regarding the information displayed on this site, please contact the Department of Tax Administration
at Taxhelp@wakegov.com or call 919-856-5400.

- Page 89 -

http://www.wakegov.com/
http://www.wakegov.com/tax/
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps/
http://services.wakegov.com/ptax/main/billing
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/pinhistory/default.aspx?reid=0149560
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/DoSearch.asp?id=0149560&map=0721&sheet=&block=42&lot=4940&stype=pin&spg=1
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/search.asp?id=0149560&map=0721&sheet=&block=42&lot=4940&stype=pin&spg=1
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Building.asp?id=0149560&map=0721&sheet=&block=42&lot=4940&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2600++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=LO3+PROP+J+R+RICHARDSON+HRS+BM1984%2D01690&pin=0721424940
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Land.asp?id=0149560&map=0721&sheet=&block=42&lot=4940&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2600++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=LO3+PROP+J+R+RICHARDSON+HRS+BM1984%2D01690&pin=0721424940
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Deeds.asp?id=0149560&map=0721&sheet=&block=42&lot=4940&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2600++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=LO3+PROP+J+R+RICHARDSON+HRS+BM1984%2D01690&pin=0721424940
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Notes.asp?id=0149560&map=0721&sheet=&block=42&lot=4940&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2600++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=LO3+PROP+J+R+RICHARDSON+HRS+BM1984%2D01690&pin=0721424940
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/ImpSales.asp?id=0149560&map=0721&sheet=&block=42&lot=4940&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2600++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=LO3+PROP+J+R+RICHARDSON+HRS+BM1984%2D01690&pin=0721424940
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Photo.asp?id=0149560&map=0721&sheet=&block=42&lot=4940&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2600++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=LO3+PROP+J+R+RICHARDSON+HRS+BM1984%2D01690&pin=0721424940
http://services.wakegov.com/ptax/main/billing/acctsummary.aspx?search=re&yrs=2&prev=re&id=0149560
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps/?pin=0721424940
mailto:Taxhelp@wakegov.com


10/14/2020 Account Summary - 0150542

services.wakegov.com/realestate/Account.asp?id=0150542&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=5444&stype=pin&spg=1 1/1

Home Wake County Real Estate Data iMaps
Account Summary Tax Bills

Real Estate ID 0150542 PIN #  0721435444
  
Location Address Property Description
2508 MT ZION CHURCH
RD

JOHN R RICHARDSON SR LD

Pin/Parcel History  Search Results  New Search 
Account | Buildings | Land | Deeds | Notes | Sales | Photos | Tax Bill | Map

Account
Search

Property Owner
ATWATER, JEROME KENNETH HEIRS
(Use the Deeds link to view any additional owners)

Owner's Mailing Address
DONNA ATWATER
179 ARLINGTON AVE
JERSEY CITY NJ 07305-4438

Property Location Address
2508 MT ZION CHURCH RD
APEX NC 27502-9636
 

Administrative Data
Old Map # 669--
Map/Scale 0721 03
VCS 03AP900
City
Fire District 23
Township BUCKHORN
Land Class VACANT
ETJ AP
Spec Dist(s)
Zoning PUD-CZ
History ID 1
History ID 2
Acreage 1.16
Permit Date
Permit #

Transfer Information
 
Deed Date 6/28/2011
Book & Page -E-  -
Revenue Stamps  
Pkg Sale Date
Pkg Sale Price
Land Sale Date
Land Sale Price
  
Improvement Summary
 
Total Units 0
Recycle Units 0
Apt/SC Sqft
Heated Area

Assessed Value
 
Land Value Assessed $115,840
Bldg. Value Assessed
  
  
Tax Relief
  
Land Use Value
Use Value Deferment
Historic Deferment
Total Deferred Value

 
 

Use/Hist/Tax Relief
Assessed

 

Total Value Assessed* $115,840

*Wake County assessed building and land values reflect the market value as of January 1, 2020, which is the date of the last
county-wide revaluation. Any inflation, deflation or other economic changes occurring after this date does not affect the
assessed value of the property and cannot be lawfully considered when reviewing the value for adjustment.

The January 1, 2020 values will remain in effect until the next county-wide revaluation. Until that time, any real estate
accounts created or new construction built is assessed according to the 2020 Schedule of Values.

For questions regarding the information displayed on this site, please contact the Department of Tax Administration
at Taxhelp@wakegov.com or call 919-856-5400.

- Page 90 -

http://www.wakegov.com/
http://www.wakegov.com/tax/
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps/
http://services.wakegov.com/ptax/main/billing
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/pinhistory/default.aspx?reid=0150542
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/DoSearch.asp?id=0150542&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=5444&stype=pin&spg=1
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/search.asp?id=0150542&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=5444&stype=pin&spg=1
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Building.asp?id=0150542&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=5444&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2508++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=JOHN+R+RICHARDSON+SR+LD&pin=0721435444
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Land.asp?id=0150542&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=5444&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2508++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=JOHN+R+RICHARDSON+SR+LD&pin=0721435444
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Deeds.asp?id=0150542&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=5444&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2508++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=JOHN+R+RICHARDSON+SR+LD&pin=0721435444
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Notes.asp?id=0150542&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=5444&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2508++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=JOHN+R+RICHARDSON+SR+LD&pin=0721435444
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/ImpSales.asp?id=0150542&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=5444&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2508++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=JOHN+R+RICHARDSON+SR+LD&pin=0721435444
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Photo.asp?id=0150542&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=5444&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2508++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=JOHN+R+RICHARDSON+SR+LD&pin=0721435444
http://services.wakegov.com/ptax/main/billing/acctsummary.aspx?search=re&yrs=2&prev=re&id=0150542
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps/?pin=0721435444
mailto:Taxhelp@wakegov.com


10/14/2020 Account Summary - 0059759

services.wakegov.com/realestate/Account.asp?id=0059759&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=5322&stype=pin&spg=1 1/1

Home Wake County Real Estate Data iMaps
Account Summary Tax Bills

Real Estate ID 0059759 PIN #  0721435322
  
Location Address Property Description
2512 MT ZION CHURCH
RD

BEAVER CRK LD

Pin/Parcel History  Search Results  New Search 
Account | Buildings | Land | Deeds | Notes | Sales | Photos | Tax Bill | Map

Account
Search

Property Owner
ATWATER, JEROME KENNETH HEIRS
(Use the Deeds link to view any additional owners)

Owner's Mailing Address
DONNA ATWATER
179 ARLINGTON AVE
JERSEY CITY NJ 07305-4438

Property Location Address
2512 MT ZION CHURCH RD
APEX NC 27502-9636
 

Administrative Data
Old Map # 669--
Map/Scale 0721 03
VCS 03AP900
City
Fire District 23
Township BUCKHORN
Land Class VACANT
ETJ AP
Spec Dist(s)
Zoning PUD-CZ
History ID 1
History ID 2
Acreage 1.16
Permit Date
Permit #

Transfer Information
 
Deed Date 6/28/2011
Book & Page -E-  -
Revenue Stamps  
Pkg Sale Date
Pkg Sale Price
Land Sale Date
Land Sale Price
  
Improvement Summary
 
Total Units 0
Recycle Units 0
Apt/SC Sqft
Heated Area

Assessed Value
 
Land Value Assessed $115,840
Bldg. Value Assessed
  
  
Tax Relief
  
Land Use Value
Use Value Deferment
Historic Deferment
Total Deferred Value

 
 

Use/Hist/Tax Relief
Assessed

 

Total Value Assessed* $115,840

*Wake County assessed building and land values reflect the market value as of January 1, 2020, which is the date of the last
county-wide revaluation. Any inflation, deflation or other economic changes occurring after this date does not affect the
assessed value of the property and cannot be lawfully considered when reviewing the value for adjustment.

The January 1, 2020 values will remain in effect until the next county-wide revaluation. Until that time, any real estate
accounts created or new construction built is assessed according to the 2020 Schedule of Values.

For questions regarding the information displayed on this site, please contact the Department of Tax Administration
at Taxhelp@wakegov.com or call 919-856-5400.

- Page 91 -

http://www.wakegov.com/
http://www.wakegov.com/tax/
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps/
http://services.wakegov.com/ptax/main/billing
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/pinhistory/default.aspx?reid=0059759
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/DoSearch.asp?id=0059759&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=5322&stype=pin&spg=1
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/search.asp?id=0059759&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=5322&stype=pin&spg=1
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Building.asp?id=0059759&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=5322&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2512++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=BEAVER+CRK+LD&pin=0721435322
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Land.asp?id=0059759&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=5322&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2512++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=BEAVER+CRK+LD&pin=0721435322
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Deeds.asp?id=0059759&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=5322&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2512++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=BEAVER+CRK+LD&pin=0721435322
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Notes.asp?id=0059759&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=5322&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2512++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=BEAVER+CRK+LD&pin=0721435322
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/ImpSales.asp?id=0059759&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=5322&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2512++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=BEAVER+CRK+LD&pin=0721435322
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Photo.asp?id=0059759&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=5322&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2512++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=BEAVER+CRK+LD&pin=0721435322
http://services.wakegov.com/ptax/main/billing/acctsummary.aspx?search=re&yrs=2&prev=re&id=0059759
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps/?pin=0721435322
mailto:Taxhelp@wakegov.com


10/14/2020 Account Summary - 0149562

services.wakegov.com/realestate/Account.asp?id=0149562&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=4156&stype=pin&spg=1 1/1

Home Wake County Real Estate Data iMaps
Account Summary Tax Bills

Real Estate ID 0149562 PIN #  0721434156
  
Location Address Property Description
2516 MT ZION CHURCH
RD

LO4B PROP J R RICHARDSON HRS BM1984-1690

Pin/Parcel History  Search Results  New Search 
Account | Buildings | Land | Deeds | Notes | Sales | Photos | Tax Bill | Map

Account
Search

Property Owner
ATWATER, JEROME KENNETH HEIRS
(Use the Deeds link to view any additional owners)

Owner's Mailing Address
DONNA ATWATER
179 ARLINGTON AVE
JERSEY CITY NJ 07305-4438

Property Location Address
2516 MT ZION CHURCH RD
APEX NC 27502-9636
 

Administrative Data
Old Map # 669-00000-0126
Map/Scale 0721 03
VCS 03AP900
City
Fire District 23
Township BUCKHORN
Land Class VACANT
ETJ AP
Spec Dist(s)
Zoning PUD-CZ
History ID 1
History ID 2
Acreage 1.41
Permit Date
Permit #

Transfer Information
 
Deed Date 6/28/2011
Book & Page -E-  -
Revenue Stamps  
Pkg Sale Date
Pkg Sale Price
Land Sale Date
Land Sale Price
  
Improvement Summary
 
Total Units 0
Recycle Units 0
Apt/SC Sqft
Heated Area

Assessed Value
 
Land Value Assessed $182,008
Bldg. Value Assessed
  
  
Tax Relief
  
Land Use Value
Use Value Deferment
Historic Deferment
Total Deferred Value

 
 

Use/Hist/Tax Relief
Assessed

 

Total Value Assessed* $182,008

*Wake County assessed building and land values reflect the market value as of January 1, 2020, which is the date of the last
county-wide revaluation. Any inflation, deflation or other economic changes occurring after this date does not affect the
assessed value of the property and cannot be lawfully considered when reviewing the value for adjustment.

The January 1, 2020 values will remain in effect until the next county-wide revaluation. Until that time, any real estate
accounts created or new construction built is assessed according to the 2020 Schedule of Values.

For questions regarding the information displayed on this site, please contact the Department of Tax Administration
at Taxhelp@wakegov.com or call 919-856-5400.

- Page 92 -

http://www.wakegov.com/
http://www.wakegov.com/tax/
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps/
http://services.wakegov.com/ptax/main/billing
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/pinhistory/default.aspx?reid=0149562
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/DoSearch.asp?id=0149562&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=4156&stype=pin&spg=1
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/search.asp?id=0149562&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=4156&stype=pin&spg=1
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Building.asp?id=0149562&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=4156&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2516++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=LO4B+PROP+J+R+RICHARDSON+HRS+BM1984%2D1690&pin=0721434156
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Land.asp?id=0149562&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=4156&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2516++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=LO4B+PROP+J+R+RICHARDSON+HRS+BM1984%2D1690&pin=0721434156
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Deeds.asp?id=0149562&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=4156&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2516++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=LO4B+PROP+J+R+RICHARDSON+HRS+BM1984%2D1690&pin=0721434156
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Notes.asp?id=0149562&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=4156&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2516++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=LO4B+PROP+J+R+RICHARDSON+HRS+BM1984%2D1690&pin=0721434156
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/ImpSales.asp?id=0149562&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=4156&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2516++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=LO4B+PROP+J+R+RICHARDSON+HRS+BM1984%2D1690&pin=0721434156
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Photo.asp?id=0149562&map=0721&sheet=&block=43&lot=4156&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=2516++MT+ZION+CHURCH+RD&des=LO4B+PROP+J+R+RICHARDSON+HRS+BM1984%2D1690&pin=0721434156
http://services.wakegov.com/ptax/main/billing/acctsummary.aspx?search=re&yrs=2&prev=re&id=0149562
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps/?pin=0721434156
mailto:Taxhelp@wakegov.com


 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON THE QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S.§ 160A-31 AS AMENDED 

 
Annexation Petition #693 

Kings Grant 
 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described herein has 
been received; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina has by Resolution 
directed the Town Clerk to investigate the sufficiency thereof; and 
 
         WHEREAS, Certification by the Town Clerk as to the sufficiency of said petition 
has been made; 
 
      NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex, 
North Carolina that: 
 
     Section 1.   A public hearing on the question of annexation of the area 
described herein will be held at the Apex Town Hall at 6 o’clock p.m. on the 4th day of 
November 2020. 
 
      Section 2.   The area proposed for annexation is described as attached. 
 
      Section 3.   Notice of said public hearing shall be published on the Town of 
Apex Website, www.apexnc.org, Public Notice, at least ten (10) days prior to the date 
of said public hearing. 
 
     This the 20th day of October 2020. 
 

 
                ________________________________________ 
              Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor  
 
ATTEST:                        
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 

- Page 93 -



- Page 94 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text

bbrock
Typewritten Text
0721-43-5444



- Page 95 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
693

bbrock
Typewritten Text
6/22/2020



- Page 96 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
0721-43-5444



- Page 97 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
693

bbrock
Typewritten Text
6/22/2020



- Page 98 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
693

bbrock
Typewritten Text
6/22/2020



- Page 99 -



- Page 100 -



- Page 101 -



- Page 102 -



- Page 103 -



- Page 104 -



- Page 105 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  20 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Co l leen  Mer ay s  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Ec on o mi c  D e ve l op me nt  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  t o  a ppr o ve  t he  Sp ec i a l  E ve nt  Pe r mi t  a nd To wn Co - Sp ons or sh i p  re que s t  f o r  the  2020  

Chanuk ah  Fes t i va l  on  Sund a y ,  Dec e mb er  13 ,  2020 ,  f ro m 5 :00  P M  to  7 :00  P M i n  the  Ap ex  Dep o t  

Par k i ng L o t  a nd  P a t i o .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

 Ye s   

I tem De ta i l s  

Cha ba d  of  Car y ’ s  an n ua l  Ap ex  Ch anuk ah  i s  a  h i g h l i g h t  o f  t he  year  man y  i n  the  Je wi sh  C o mmun i ty .  

Th i s  ye ar ,  t he i r  p l ans  t ake  i n t o  c ons i de r at i o n  the  c u r ren t  c ha l le n g i ng s i tu at i o n .  Th i s  ye ar  th ey  a re  

no t  ho s t i ng the  i nd oo r  Chanuk ah  Wo n der la nd at  the  Ap ex  Co m mun i t y  Cen te r ,  a s  i n  mo s t  ye ar s ,  

bu t  w i l l  ra th e r  sh i f t  th e  en t i re  even t  ou t do o r s  fo r  s a fe ty  pu rp o ses .   

 

We / the y  w i l l  mo n i to r  the  s i tu a t i on  a nd ad j u s t  ac c or d i n g l y  w i th  s i ze  o f  c row d ,  an d soc i a l  

d i s tanc i n g .   Ten t a t i ve  p l an s  c a l l  fo r  a n  ou t d oor  c onc er t  a l o ng w i t h  the  Men orah  L i gh t i ng .  A 

mus i c i an  w i l l  be  s i tu at ed a t  th e  mi d d le  a rea  a t  th e  to p o f  th e  s t a i r s  w i th  t he  Menor ah  o n  t he  s i de  

p l a t fo r m as  i n  p re v i o us  ye ar s .  The y  w i l l  u s e  the  Ap ex  De po t  P ark i ng  Lo t  fo r  se a t i ng s i mi l a r  to  

ou t d oor  c onc er t s .  Th ey  a re  an t i c i pa t i n g a bou t  150  p eo p le  p r es ent ;  bu t  w i l l  c h an ge  t h i s  nu mber  

an d ma y re qu i re  a  s i g n -up shee t  t o  c on t r o l  g at he r i ng s i ze  pe r  NC  requ i re me nt s .  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Sp ec i a l  E ven t  Ap p l i c a t i on  E ven t  De t a i l  Shee t  -  Ch anuk ah  Fes t i va l  

  Chanuk ah  Fe s t i va l  -  S e tu p M ap  

 

 

- Page 106 -



 

Town of Apex 
2020 Cosponsored Special Event Applications 

 
 
Event Name: Chanukah Festival 
 
Event Date & Time: Sunday, December 13, 2020 from 5:00 PM to 7:00 PM 
 
Roads & Parking Closed Date & Time: Town Hall Parking Lot Closed from 7:00 AM to 5:00 PM 
 
Rain Date: NA 
 
Event Organizer: Chabad of Cary 
 
2020 Co-Sposonsorship Request: Blocking Apex Depot Parking Lot 
 
2020 Estimated Town of Apex Cost: $0.00 
 
Event Description: Chabad of Cary’s annual Apex Chanukah is a highlight of the year many in 
the Jewish Community. This year, their plans take into consideration the current challenging 
situation. This year they are not hosting the indoor Chanukah Wonderland at the Apex 
Community Center, as in most years, but will rather shift the entire event outdoors for safety 
purposes.  
 
We/they will monitor the situation and adjust accordingly with size of crowd, and social 
distancing.  Tentative plans call for an outdoor concert along with the Menorah Lighting. A 
musician will be situated at the middle area at the top of the stairs with the Menorah on the 
side platform as in previous years. They will use the Apex Depot Parking Lot for seating similar 
to outdoor concerts. They are anticipating about 150 people present; but will change this 
number and may require a sign-up sheet to control gathering size per NC requirements. 
 
Questions to Consider: None 
 

- Page 107 -



- Page 108 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  20 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Co l leen  Mer ay s  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Ec on o mi c  D e ve l op me nt  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  to  a ppr o ve  a men di ng  t he  Spec i a l  E ven t  Pe r mi t  f o r  the  Amer i c an  L eg i o n  F a l l  C ar  Sho w 

or i g i na l l y  sc h edu le d f o r  S a tu r da y ,  N o ve mb er  3  t o  Sa tu r d ay ,  No ve mber  7 ,  2020  f r o m 8 :00  AM  t o  

2 :00  PM  i n  th e  Tow n H a l l  Park i n g Lo t .   

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

 Ye s   

I tem De ta i l s  

The  up d a te d Ame r i c a n  Leg i o n  Fa l l  Car s  & C of fee  c ar  sh o w i s  on l y  fo r  “ Sho w Car ”  o wne r s .  I t  i s  a  

dr i ve  i n  an d park  an d  dr i nk  c of fe e  e ven t  f o r  th ose  c ar  o wner s .   

 

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Sp ec i a l  E ven t  Ap p l i c a t i on  E ven t  De t a i l  Shee t  -  Ame r i c a n  Le g i on  F a l l  2020  C ar s  &  C of fe e  

Sho w  

  Am e r i c an  Le g i on  F a l l  2020  Car s  &  Cof fee  S how  F ly e r  

 

 

- Page 109 -



 

Town of Apex 
2020 Cosponsored Special Event Applications 

 
 
Amended Event Name: 2020 Fall Cars & Coffee Apex American Legion Fall Car Show  

Previous Event Name: Apex American Legion Fall Car Show 
 
Event Organizer: Apex American Legion Post 124 
 
Amended Event Date & Time: Saturday, November 7, 2020 from 8:00 AM to 2:00 PM 

Previous Event Date & Time: Saturday, October 3, 2020 from 8:00 AM to 4:00 PM 
 
Roads & Parking Closed Date & Time: Town Hall Parking Lot Closed from 6:30 AM to 2:30 PM 
 
Rain Date: Saturday, November 14, 2020 from 8:00 AM to 4:00 PM 
 
2020 Co-Sposonsorship Request: Trash bins and liners, and water barricades to block Town Hall 
Parking Lot 
 
2020 Estimated Town of Apex Cost: $279.00 
 
Event Description: Car show in town hall parking lot. This car show is only for those with “Show 
Cars” and is a drive-in and park event.  
 
Questions to Consider: None 
 

 

 

- Page 110 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  20 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  M i c hae l  Dea t on  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Wa t e r  R e sou rc es  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  to  a ppr o ve  an  Ame n d men t  to  t he  C onse rv at ion  Ea se ment  R u t h  Ho l l eman P r ope r t y  and 

au thor i ze  the  To wn  M ana g er  to  s i gn  a l l  re l a t ed  d oc u men ts  on  b eha l f  o f  the  To wn .   

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

 Ye s   

I tem De ta i l s  

Th i s  Ame nd me nt  i s  ne c ess ary  t o  p ro v i d e  a d equa te  se wer  c a pac i t y  a nd  mai n t ena nc e c or r i do r  f o r  

a  ne w 18 - i nc h  p ara l le l  g ra v i t y  se wer  l i ne  be i ng c on s t ruc t ed  t h rou gh  the  Ap e x  Na tu re  P ark  i n  

ac c or d anc e w i th  the  To wn ’s  Ma s te r  Se wer  P l an .   Th e  ne w se wer  l i ne  (c ons t ruc te d by  t he  

de ve lo per )  w i l l  p ro v i d e  a de qua te  se wer  c a pac i t y  f o r  a  var i e ty  o f  new de ve l op me n t  p r o j ec t s  

i nc lud i ng  We s t  V i l l a g e  P UD ,  Dep o t  499  PU D ,  Ap ex  P le as an t  P ark ,  an d o the r  p r oper t i e s  w i th i n  the  

ba s i n .  The  a d di t i on a l  sew er  c a p ac i ty  p r o v i de d by  th e  ne w s ew er  l i ne  w i l l  a l s o  a l lo w th e  

dec o m mi s s i o n i ng o f  t he  Sc o t t s  R i d ge  E le m ent ary  Sc h o o l  Pu mp  S ta t i on  p r o v i d i ng  s i g n i f i c ant  c os t  

sa v i n gs  t o  the  To wn .  

 

The  Ame n d men t  re mo ve s  14 ,421  squ are  fe e t  (0 .331 0  ac re s )  o f  To wn pro per ty  f ro m the  ex i s t i n g  

Con se r va t i on  E as e me nt  an d re p l ac es  i t  w i t h  44 ,440  s quar e  fee t  ( 1 .0202  ac re s )  o f  To wn  pro per ty ,  

a l l  a s  sho wn on  the  a t tac he d su r ve y  shee t .   A 3 :1  mi t i g at i o n  ra t i o  w as  re qu i red  b y  the  C le an  

Wa t e r  Man a ge men t  T r u s t  Fu nd  (C WM TF ) .   S t a f f  re v i ewe d th e  1 .02 02 -ac re s  o f  To wn pro per ty  w i t h  

C WM TF  s t a f f  an d a gre ed th e  l an d  w a s  su i ta b le  f o r  mi t i g a t i on  as  i t  wa s  s i mi la r  i n  na tu re  

(c o n ta i n i ng s t re a ms ,  r i par i an  bu f fe r ,  we t l an ds ,  a nd  f lo o dp la i n ) .   Ad d i t i on a l l y ,  th i s  mi t i g at i on  

lan d i s  ge nera l l y  un d eve lo p ab le  and  i s  n ot  i den t i f i ed fo r  an y  fu t u re  P ark s  &  R ec re a t i o n  

Dep ar t me nt  nee ds .    

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Am e n d men t  to  Co nse rvat i o n  E a se men t  

  Ap e x  N a tu re  Park  C on se r va t i on  E ase me nt  P l a t  

 

 

- Page 111 -



- Page 112 -



- Page 113 -



- Page 114 -



- Page 115 -



- Page 116 -



- Page 117 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  20 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Jo se  M ar t i nez ,  D i rec t o r  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Pub l i c  Work s  &  T ra ns p or t a t i on  

 

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  to  a ppr o ve  an d aut hor i ze  the  To wn  Man a ger  to  exec u te  t he  s a me fo r  an  Enc r o ac h men t  

Ag r ee men t  be t ween t he  To wn an d pro per t y  ow ner s ,  J oshu a R .  K l a t t  an d E l i z abe th  T .  K l a t t  

(G r an tees ) ,  re g ard i n g  Wake  C oun ty ,  NC P I N# 0 7 3 2 -7 0 -6 3 7 9 ,  104  G u l l ane  C our t ,  as  rec or de d i n  

Bo ok  o f  Ma p s  2 0 0 3 ,  P a ge  0 0 8 1 2 ,  Wa ke  C ou nt y  R e g i s te r  o f  Dee d s .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

Ap p r o ve  Enc ro ac h me nt  Ag ree men t  be t wee n th e  Town  an d pr ope r ty  o wner s  J o shua  R .  K l a t t  an d 

E l i za be th  T .  K l a t t  (G ra ntee s )  f o r  the  p ro per t y  desc r i be d a s  a  re s i d ent i a l  l o t  kn ow n a s  Wake  

Coun t y  P I N# 0 7 3 2 -7 0 -6 379 ,  Bo ok  o f  M ap s  20 03 ,  P a ge 0 0 8 1 2 ,  L o t  1 29 ,  1 0 4  Gu l l ane  Cour t ,  Ap ex ,  NC 

2 7 5 0 2 .   Gr an tee s  w i sh  t o  i n s ta l l  420  S . F .  o f  f enc e ,  53  S . F .  o f  c onc r e te  po o l  p a d  a nd  l an dsc a p i ng 

th at  w i l l  enc r oac h  i n t o  the  Pub l i c  D ra i n ag e  Ea se men t .   

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Enc ro ac h men t  Ag ree men t  

  Exh i b i t  A 

 

- Page 118 -



- Page 119 -



- Page 120 -



- Page 121 -



- Page 122 -



- Page 123 -



- Page 124 -



- Page 125 -

jweatherman
Text Box
Exhibit A104 Gullane CourtApex, North Carolina

jweatherman
Rectangle

jweatherman
Polygon

jweatherman
Dimension

nmaynard
Pen
.

nmaynard
Pen
*

nmaynard
Highlight

nmaynard
Pen
$eigh.si....

nmaynard
Pen
.

nmaynard
Pen
$ogon

nmaynard
Pen
@

nmaynard
PolyLine

nmaynard
Pen
Me.

nmaynard
Highlight

nmaynard
Highlight

nmaynard
Pen
...e

nmaynard
Pen
gas

nmaynard
Pen
...soon.

nmaynard
Pen
.

nmaynard
Pen
s.

nmaynard
PolyLine

nmaynard
Text Box
20' Town of ApexPublic Drainage Easement

nmaynard
Arrow

nmaynard
Text Box
53 SF of a concrete pool pad to encroach into the Public Drainage Easement

nmaynard
Arrow

nmaynard
Text Box
Existing landscaping that will encroach into the Public Drainage Easement includes: three loropetalums, one dogwood tree, three purple verbenas, one fragrant tea olive bush, three boxwoods and one gardenia bush.     

nmaynard
Ellipse

nmaynard
Arrow

nmaynard
Pen
.

nmaynard
Pen
m....

nmaynard
Text Box
420 SF of fence to encroach into the Public Drainage Easement

nmaynard
Arrow

nmaynard
Text Box
               NOTE:THIS MAP MAY NOT BE A CERTIFIED SURVEY AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND HAS NOT BEEN REVEIWED FOR COMPLIANCE WITH RECORDING REQUIREMENTS FOR PLATS. 



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  20 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Mar y  Be th  M an v i l le ,  H u ma n R es ou rc e s  D i rec to r  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Hu man R es ou rc es  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  t o  a ppr o ve  a  th re e  (3 )  year  c o nt r ac t  w i th  C CS  M e di c a l  to  ad mi n i s te r  the  “L i v i n g 

Connec te d ”  D i abe te s  Man a ge men t  P r ogr a m  fo r  To wn e mpl o yees  c o vere d un der  t he  To w n’s  he a l th  

i n su ranc e p l an .  At  t h e  en d o f  the  3  ye ar  te r m,  the  c on t r ac t  w i l l  au to - re ne w fo r  pe r i o d s  o f  on e  (1 )  

year .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

The  Tow n h as  p ar t ne r ed w i th  CC S f o r  s e ve r a l  ye ar s  t o  p ro v i de  a  D i abe te s  M an ag e men t  P ro gr a m 

to  e mpl o yee s  w ho ar e  on  the  To wn ’ s  he a l t h  i n su ranc e  p lan .  I n  p rev i ou s  y ear s ,  th i s  w a s  a  su b -

c ont r ac t  un der  th e  To wn ’s  ph ar mac y c o nt r ac t ,  bu t  th e  Tow n i s  n ow en te r i ng  i n to  c on t rac t  

d i rec t l y  w i t h  C CS  t o  e nhanc e se r v i c es  an d sa ve  on  c os t s .    

At t ac h men t s  

  CC S_ To wn of  Ap ex  Co nt r ac t  

 

- Page 126 -



LIVINGCONNECTED 

 1 

 

DIABETES MANAGEMENT PROGRAM AGREEMENT 
 

This agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into this ___1st__ day of ___July________ 2020 (“Effective 

Date”), by and between CCS Medical, Inc. (“CCS”) and Town of Apex (hereinafter referred to as “Health 

Plan”) (collectively referred to hereafter as the “Parties” or individually as a “Party”).   

 

RECITALS 

 

Whereas, CCS is a provider of durable medical equipment and supplies to patients with chronic conditions 

(including, but not limited to diabetic testing supplies, insulin pumps and pump supplies, incontinence, urological, 

ostomy, wound care, and orthotic products and supplies); 

 

 Whereas, CCS has established or provides access to additional services related to the durable medical 

equipment and supplies it offers, including its LivingConnected Diabetes Management Program (the “Program”) 

and other related services;  

 

 Whereas, Health Plan is a municipal corporation which has established a self-funded employee benefit 

plan, which provides for payment of certain health and welfare benefits to and for certain individuals pursuant to 

Health Plan’s master plan document (“Plan Members”); and  

 

Whereas, Health Plan seeks to provide Plan Members with enhanced quality durable medical 

equipment, supplies, and services through participation in the Program (“Participants”). 

 

TERMS 

 

The Parties therefore agree as follows: 

 

1. COMMENCEMENT DATE AND TERM 

 

1.1 Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall run for a 

period of three (3) years (the “Term”), subject to earlier termination as provided in this Agreement.  At the end 

of the Term, unless this Agreement has been terminated in accordance with the termination provisions contained 

herein, the Agreement shall renew automatically for periods of one (1) year.  

 

2.  SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES  

 

2.1 Diabetes Management Program.  CCS agrees to provide the Program to Participants.  In order for 

CCS to make the Program available, Health Plan shall provide CCS with a file containing at a minimum, a listing 

of all Plan Members eligible for the Program, claims data, and member target lists (“Participant File”). The 

Participant File shall contain all applicable and necessary information regarding all Participants, including phone 

numbers, and be in a format acceptable to CCS.  Health Plan will be required to update the Participant File on a 

monthly basis and provide CCS with the updated Participant File by the fifteenth (15th) of every month during the 

term of this Agreement. CCS shall enroll all Plan Members listed in the Participant File in the Program and make 

its Program available to Participants, unless the Plan Member disenrolls from the Program.  

 

2.2 Products and Services.  CCS agrees to provide and make available those durable medical 

equipment, supplies, and services it offers, including those identified in Exhibit A (collectively, the “Products 

and Supplies”), to Participants in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.   

 

- Page 127 -



 LIVINGCONNECTED 

DIABETES MANAGEMENT PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 2 

 

2.3 Delivery.  CCS will deliver Products and Supplies, as applicable, to Participants in a timely 

manner.  Specifically, CCS, at its sole and reasonable discretion, will ship either a Starter Kit (as that term is 

defined in Exhibit A) or a resupply package to Participants after receipt of Participant files enrolling Plan 

Member in the Program and receipt of all necessary information and shall timely deliver subsequent orders of 

Products and Supplies.  CCS will supply Products and Supplies reimbursed by Health Plan to Participants 

F.O.B. Shipping Point.  

 

2.4 Program Implementation.  Health Plan or third party administrator providing administrative 

services to, and authorized to act on behalf of, the plan sponsor (“Third Party Administrator”) will participate in 

implementing the Program, including attending training sessions, performing file builds where applicable, 

creating data feeds, and other reasonable requests by CCS regarding the Program implementation.    

 

2.5 Program Education and Outreach.  Health Plan will inform Plan Members of CCS’s services 

and in doing so shall have the right to use CCS’s name, address, telephone number, and other information, with 

CCS’s approval, for purposes of informing current and prospective Plan Members of CCS and the Program 

available to Plan Members.  Except as provided herein, Health Plan and CCS each reserve the right to, and 

control of the use of, its name, symbols, trademarks, and service marks presently existing or later established.  In 

addition, except as provided herein, neither Health Plan nor CCS shall use the other’s name, symbols, 

trademarks or service marks in advertising or promotional material or otherwise, without the prior written 

consent of that party, and shall cease any such usage immediately upon written notice of the party or upon 

termination of this Agreement.  Health Plan will provide relevant employees, agents, and contractors, including 

those in plan sponsor’s human resources, with information and training related to the Program.     

 

2.6 Communication with Participants.  CCS may communicate directly with Participants and Plan 

Members regarding the Program and the Products and Supplies it offers.  Prior to providing the Participant File 

or any other contact information, Health Plan shall have obtained any necessary consents and authorizations to 

permit CCS to communicate, by any means, including but not limited to, SMS messaging, prerecorded/artificial 

voice messages and/or automatic dialing devices, as applicable, with Participants and Plan Members using the 

information provided by Health Plan.  

 

2.7 Compliance.  In performing this Agreement, the Parties warrant they shall each comply with all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws.  CCS and Health Plan agree that each are “Covered Entities” for 

purposes of HIPAA and other privacy laws.  The Parties warrant they shall maintain Plan Member information 

and medical records in accordance with federal and state laws related to privacy and confidentiality of Plan 

Member information and medical records, including HIPAA, and shall use and disclose such information or 

records only in accordance with such laws and requirements. Further, the Parties shall comply with laws 

designed to prevent or ameliorate fraud, waste, and abuse, including applicable provisions of federal criminal 

law, the False Claims Act (31 U.S.C. § 3729 et. seq.), and the Anti-Kickback Statute (42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b et. 

seq.). 

 

3.  COMPENSATION AND BILLING 

 

3.1 Fees and Invoicing Process.  CCS shall seek payment from Health Plan for the provision of 

Products and Services. CCS will bill and Health Plan shall pay through the Benefit Plan or as requested the fees 

provided for in Exhibit A or as amended.  Health Plan is ultimately responsible for payment, irrespective of 

payment by any other party that may be responsible for covering the service such as a Benefit Plan, Insurer, 

Third Party Administrator, etc. and CCS shall be reimbursed at one-hundred percent (100%) of its billed charges 

within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice or claim from CCS, with no reduction of payment due to copays 

or deductibles, for all claims submitted pursuant to this Agreement.    

 

- Page 128 -



 LIVINGCONNECTED 

DIABETES MANAGEMENT PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 3 

 

3.2 Fair Market Value.  To the extent applicable to the products and services to be provided by CCS 

pursuant to this Agreement, the Parties acknowledge that any amounts paid under this Agreement shall at all 

times be in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, policies and interpretations and shall not 

exceed the fair market value for the services provided and is not determined in a manner that takes into account 

the volume or value of any referrals or business that otherwise may be generated by either Party for which 

payment may be made, in whole or in part, under any Federal health care program, including Medicare or 

Medicaid. If either Party reasonably determines at any time or is reliably informed by governmental authorities 

that the compensation or other terms set forth herein violate or are likely to be determined by a governmental 

authority to violate such laws, rules, regulations, policies or interpretations, the Parties agree to meet 

immediately and in good faith to amend this Agreement so as to eliminate such concern or violation with respect 

to such government healthcare insurance programs and to bring this Agreement into compliance with the 

foregoing.   

 

3.3 Health Plan acknowledges and understands that CCS and AOR (as defined in Section 8.2) have 

entered into a separate services agreement, under which AOR provides certain services to CCS with respect to 

the Program and Services, and that CCS compensates AOR for the provision of such services.   

 

4. TERMINATION 

 

4.1 Without Cause.  Either Party may terminate this Agreement without cause upon ninety (90) 

days advance, written notice to the other Party.   

 

4.2 With Cause.  In addition to the other terms of this Agreement permitting immediate termination, 

if any Party commits a material breach of any of the terms of this Agreement and has not corrected such breach 

within thirty (30) days’ of written notice from the non-breaching party, then the non-breaching party may 

terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the breaching party. 

 

4.3 Effect of Termination. The termination of this Agreement shall not limit either Party from 

seeking other remedies available to it, including injunctive relief.  Upon expiration or termination of this 

Agreement, the Program will no longer be available to Plan Members, and all amounts due and owing shall 

immediately become due and payable to CCS.  Additionally, except as otherwise provided herein, the provisions 

of this Agreement which by their terms should survive expiration or termination of this Agreement shall survive 

the expiration or termination of this Agreement including but not limited to Sections 2.6, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8, 

which shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement.  CCS shall have no obligation to Health Plan or 

to Participants after such termination with respect to fulfillment of orders under the Program or the provision of 

Services, nor will CCS be required to maintain or transfer any data to Health Plan after such termination other 

than as specifically required herein. 

  

5. INDEMNIFICATION 

 

5.1 Intentionally Omitted 

 

 

6. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

 

6.1 General.  Each Party recognizes and acknowledges that, by virtue of entering into this Agreement 

and performing their respective obligations hereunder, each Party may have access to certain information of the 

other Party that is confidential and constitutes proprietary, valuable, special and unique property of the other Party. 

For the purposes of this Agreement:   

 

- Page 129 -



 LIVINGCONNECTED 

DIABETES MANAGEMENT PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 4 

 

6.1.1 “Confidential Information” means, without limitation, all information proprietary to 

either Party, whether or not marked “confidential,” that constitutes trade secrets and/or confidential information 

as construed by applicable law or information that is not already available to the public, all of which the parties 

hereto agree constitutes trade secrets under the Uniform Trade Secrets Act, including, but not limited to, all 

information relating directly or indirectly to the business of either Party, prospect lists, referral sources, customer 

lists and customer information, information concerning services and supplies, marketing programs, computer 

program and systems, business and supplier contracts, techniques, processes, methods, technologies, business 

information, financial data, financial plans, products, equipment, sales information, costs data, personnel, product 

tests, pricing policies, distributorship arrangements, business plans or business strategies, information regarding 

any acquisition or joint venture arrangements or other enterprises with whom either Party has business 

relationships. 

 

6.1.2 Confidential Information does not include information that (a) is now, or hereafter 

becomes, through no act or failure to act on the part of the receiving Party, generally known or available; (b) is 

known by the receiving Party at the time of receiving such information as evidenced by its records; (c) is hereafter 

furnished to the receiving Party by a third party, as a matter of right and without restriction on disclosure; (d) is 

independently developed by the receiving Party without use of any Confidential Information; or (e) is required to 

be disclosed by judicial or administrative process or by law or regulation, provided that the Party so required to 

disclose the Confidential Information shall notify the other Party and shall provide reasonably cooperate with the 

other Party to enable the other Party to take action designed to protect such Party’s interests. Notwithstanding 

anything to the contrary in this Agreement the Parties recognize that public records as defined by Chapter 132 of 

the North Carolina General Statutes are not Confidential Information as defined in this Agreement and may be 

released in accordance with North Carolina law without notification to either Party. 

 

6.2 Duty to Keep Confidential Information Confidential. Each Party hereby agrees and undertakes 

that with respect to Confidential Information each Party will: 

 

6.2.1 treat and keep all Confidential Information of the other Party as secret and confidential; 

 

6.2.2 not divulge, reveal, publish, communicate or disclose any Confidential Information, 

directly or indirectly, of the other Party to any other person except with the prior written consent of the disclosing 

Party, as may be required by law, in which case the receiving Party agrees to provide the disclosing Party with 

prior written notice and to cooperate with the disclosing Party in seeking such legal remedies as may be available 

to prevent such disclosure; 

 

6.2.3 not use any Confidential Information of the other Party in any way or for any purpose 

other than for the purpose of fulfilling the terms and obligations of this Agreement;  

 

6.2.4 not use any Confidential Information of the other Party for personal benefit or for the 

personal benefit of any other person or entity;  

 

6.2.5 use commercially reasonable efforts to maintain the secrecy and confidentiality of 

Confidential Information of the other Party and ensure that Confidential Information is not disclosed by any 

person, in whole or in part, contrary to any of the terms of this Agreement; and 

 

6.2.6 not disclose the terms of this Agreement to any person who is not a party or signatory, 

unless disclosure thereof is required by law or otherwise authorized by this Agreement or consented to in writing 

by the other Party, such that the unauthorized disclosure of the terms of this Agreement shall be a material breach 

of this Agreement and shall provide the other Party with the option of pursuing remedies for breach or termination 

of this Agreement. 

- Page 130 -



 LIVINGCONNECTED 

DIABETES MANAGEMENT PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 5 

 

 

6.3 Misuse of Confidential Information.  The receiving Party’s failure to fulfill the obligations and 

conditions with respect to any use, disclosure, publication, release, or dissemination to any third party of the 

disclosing Party’s Confidential Information constitutes a material breach of this Agreement.  In that event the 

disclosing Party may, at its option and in addition to any other remedies that it may have, terminate this Agreement.  

In addition to any other remedies it may have, the disclosing Party has the right to demand the immediate return 

of all copies of Confidential Information provided to the receiving Party under this Agreement. The receiving 

Party recognizes that disclosure of Confidential Information in violation of this Agreement may result in 

irreparable harm to the disclosing Party. The disclosing Party shall have the right to seek injunctive relief in the 

event of a disclosure in violation of this Agreement. 

 

6.4 Survival. The provisions of this Section 6 shall survive expiration or other termination of this 

Agreement, regardless of the cause of such termination.  The obligations of confidentiality set forth in this Section 

6 shall commence as of the Effective Date and shall continue (a) at all times thereafter with respect to trade secrets 

(so long as they qualify as trade secrets under applicable law) and (b) with respect to all other Confidential 

Information, for a period of three (3) years after the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

 

7.  LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY  

 

7.1 Exclusive Warranties. THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT 

ARE EXCLUSIVE AND THE ONLY WARRANTIES MADE BY CCS TO HEALTH PLAN HEREUNDER.  

CCS MAKES AND HEALTH PLAN RECEIVES NO OTHER WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AND 

ANY AND ALL WARRANTIES OF NON-INFRINGEMENT, MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR 

A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE EXPRESSLY EXCLUDED. CCS DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE 

PROGRAM WILL MEET ANY PARTICIPANT’S REQUIREMENTS OR THAT THE OPERATION OF THE 

PROGRAM WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR FREE.   

 

7.2 Limitation of Liability. EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED FOR IN THIS 

AGREEMENT, IN NO EVENT SHALL CCS BE LIABLE TO HEALTH PLAN, ANY PLAN MEMBER, OR 

OTHER THIRD PARTY IN ANY MANNER FOR ANY SPECIAL, NON-COMPENSATORY, 

CONSEQUENTIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, STATUTORY, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES OF ANY 

KIND, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, FOR LOST PROFITS, LOST SALES, LOST REVENUE, 

OR LOSS OF USE, REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT, 

NEGLIGENCE, STRICT PRODUCTS LIABILITY, OR OTHERWISE, EVEN IF CCS HAS BEEN 

INFORMED OF OR IS AWARE OF THE POSSIBILITY OF DAMAGES IN ADVANCE. HEALTH PLAN 

AGREES THAT CCS’S LIABILITY FOR ANY CLAIM OR COMBINATION OF CLAIMS, INCLUDING 

BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THOSE LISTED ABOVE IN THIS SECTION 7.2 AND AS COVERED UNDER 

SECTION 5.2, SHALL BE, IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT, LIMITED TO THE FEES PAID BY HEALTH 

PLAN TO CCS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT DURING THE TWELVE (12) MONTH PERIOD 

IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE EVENT GIVING RISE TO THE CLAIM.  THESE LIMITATIONS 

SHALL APPLY NOTWITHSTANDING ANY FAILURE OF ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OF ANY LIMITED 

REMEDY PROVIDED HEREIN. HEALTH PLAN HAS ACCEPTED THIS LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

AS PART OF A BARGAIN WITH RESPECT TO THE PRICING OF THE PRODUCTS AND SUPPLIES 

WITH THE UNDERSTANDING THAT THE PRICING WOULD BE HIGHER IF CCS WERE REQUIRED 

TO BEAR LIABILITY IN EXCESS OF THAT STATED HEREIN. 

 

7.3 Information Tool Only.  HEALTH PLAN UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES THAT CCS IS 

NOT ENGAGED IN THE PRACTICE OF MEDICINE AND THAT THE PROGRAM IS AN 

INFORMATION TOOL ONLY AND IS NOT A SUBSTITUTE FOR PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT OF 

HEALTHCARE PROVIDERS IN DIAGNOSING AND TREATING PATIENTS.  HEALTH PLAN 

- Page 131 -



 LIVINGCONNECTED 

DIABETES MANAGEMENT PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 6 

 

ACKNOWLEDGES THAT PROVIDERS SHALL HAVE FULL AND SOLE RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE 

CARE AND WELL BEING OF THEIR PATIENTS, AND ANY RELIANCE UPON THE PROGRAM 

SHALL NOT DIMINISH OR ALTER SUCH RESPONSIBILITY.  

 

8.  MISCELLANEOUS  

 

8.1 Notices.  All notices or other communications required or permitted under this Agreement shall 

be in writing and shall be deemed given to a Party when (i) delivered to the appropriate address by hand or by a 

nationally recognized overnight courier service (costs prepaid) or (ii) received or rejected by the addressee, if 

sent by certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, and addressed to the recipient. Notices shall be 

delivered to the following addresses:   

 

 

If to CCS:  

 

CCS Medical, Inc.  

1505 LBJ Freeway, Suite 550 

Farmers Branch, TX 75234 

ATTN: Michael Capone 

 

If to Health Plan: 

 

Town of Apex  

P.O. Box 250 

Apex, NC 27502 

ATTN:  Drew Havens, Town Manager 

  
 

Either Party may change its address by written notice to the other Party given in accordance with this Section. 

 

8.2 Agency of Record.  Health Plan has engaged Marsh & McLennan Agency, LLC as its Agent of 

Record (“AOR”) for the provision of services, as outlined in this Agreement, on Health Plan’s behalf.  Health 

Plan agrees to immediately notify CCS if Health Plan intends to change or makes any change in AOR and the 

parties agree to cooperate in facilitating any such change to ensure continuity of the Program.  

 

8.3 Nature of Relationship.  In the performance of their respective obligations under this 

Agreement, it is mutually understood and agreed that the nature of the Parties’ relationship will be that of an 

independent contractor.  Nothing herein will be interpreted or applied (or is intended to be interpreted or 

applied) to create a partnership, joint venture, principal and agent, employment or other relationship between 

CCS and Health Plan other than that of solely independent contractors. 

 

8.4 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Parties and 

supersedes all prior negotiations or agreements, whether written or oral, between them with respect to the 

matters set forth herein.  

 

8.5 Severability.  If any provision or term of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable or void, 

in whole or in part, the offending term or provision will be construed as valid and enforceable to the maximum 

extent permitted and the balance of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect. 

 

8.6 Non-Exclusive Arrangement.  Nothing in this Agreement or otherwise will, or is intended by 

the Parties to, prevent either Party from utilizing, marketing and selling the Products and Services or products 

and services similar to or competitive with the Products and Services, either directly or via a contract or 

arrangement with a third party provider of such products and services or substitutes therefore. 

 

8.7 No Exclusions.  Neither party, nor any of its officers, directors or owners is subject to any 

disciplinary order, sanction or decree of any federal or state governmental agency having jurisdiction over the 

- Page 132 -



 LIVINGCONNECTED 

DIABETES MANAGEMENT PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 7 

 

services it provides, including eligibility for participation in Medicare and Medicaid, and no such action is 

presently pending.  Neither party has been sanctioned by the Department of Health and Human Services, Office 

of the Inspector General, Cumulative Sanctions Report, or excluded by the General Services Administration, 

List of Excluded Providers [see http://exclusions.oig.hhs.gov/ and https://www.epls.gov]. Each party agrees to 

notify the other party of any such actions or proposed actions within five (5) days of occurrence. 

 

8.8 Assignments.  Neither party may assign any right or interest or delegate any obligation under 

this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party, such approval not to be unreasonably 

withheld. Any assignment in violation of this Section 8.8 shall be invalid and will constitute a material breach of 

this Agreement. 

 

8.9 Modifications and Amendments.  Except as otherwise provided for in this Agreement, CCS 

retains the right to amend this Agreement or any attachments or addenda, by making a good faith effort to 

provide notice to Health Plan not less than thirty (30) days before the effective date of the amendment. 

 

8.10 Waiver.  The failure of either Party to insist upon strict performance of any of the provisions of 

this Agreement by the other Party will not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent fault by the other Party of 

the same or a similar nature.  If one provision is deemed modified or waived by the mutual consent of the 

Parties, this Agreement will continue to be valid between the parties with a modification as agreed upon. 

 

8.11 Force Majeure.  CCS will not be liable for any failure or delay in its performance or in the 

delivery of services or shipment of products, or for any damages suffered by Health Plan by reason of such 

failure or delay, when such failure or delay is caused by, or arises in connection with, any fire, flood, accident, 

riot, earthquake, severe weather, war, governmental interference or embargo, strike, shortage of labor, fuel, 

power, materials or supplies, delay in delivery by CCS’s suppliers, product manufacturers, or other contracted 

entity or any other cause or causes beyond CCS’s reasonable control.  CCS reserves the right to allocate in its 

sole discretion among customers or potential customers, or defer or delay the shipment of, any product which is 

in short supply. 

 

8.12 Successors.  Except as otherwise provided in the preceding section, all of the obligations, 

conditions, terms, covenants, and provisions of this Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon 

the parties hereto and their successors and assigns.  

 

8.13 Governing Law.  This Agreement as well as all rights and obligations of the parties hereunder 

shall be governed by the laws of the state of North Carolina without giving effect to the principles of conflicts of 

laws applied by any jurisdiction.  Venue for any action brought hereunder shall be proper exclusively in Wake 

County, North Carolina. 

 

8.14 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts.  All 

counterparts taken together shall constitute a single agreement.  Signatures executed and delivered via electronic 

mail or facsimile transmission shall be deemed original signatures. 

 

8.15 Headings and Titles.  The headings and titles of the several paragraphs contained herein are for 

convenience only and shall not be considered in construing this Agreement. 

 

8.16 Insurance. Each Party shall maintain general liability, professional liability, and employee 

dishonesty insurance policies or bonds in amounts and forms standard and adequate for each Party’s business and 

acceptable to the other Party.  Each Party shall provide proof of such insurance upon request and shall immediately 

give written notice to the other Party in the event the Party receives notice of any termination, cancellation or 

material modification to or change in such insurance or bonds. 

- Page 133 -



 LIVINGCONNECTED 

DIABETES MANAGEMENT PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 8 

 

 

 

8.17 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is entered into by and between the Parties hereto 

solely for their benefit.  The Parties have not created or established any third-party beneficiary status or rights in 

any person or entity not a party hereto including, but not limited to, any Participant, subcontractor, or other third-

party, and no such third-party will have any right to enforce any right or enjoy any benefit created or established 

under this Agreement. 

 

8.18 E-Verify Compliance. CCS shall comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the 

North Carolina General Statutes (E-Verify). CCS shall require all of its subcontractors to comply with the 

requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North Carolina General Statutes (E-Verify). 

 

8.19 Anti-Human Trafficking. CCS warrants and agrees that no labor supplied by CCS or its 

subcontractors in the performance of this Agreement shall be obtained by means of deception, coercion, 

intimidation or force, or otherwise in violation of North Carolina law, specifically Article 10A, Subchapter 3 of 

Chapter 14 of the North Carolina General Statutes, Human Trafficking. 

 

8.20 Electronic Signature. Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes 

(the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act) this Agreement and all documents related hereto containing an 

electronic or digitized signature are legally binding in the same manner as are hard copy documents executed by 

hand signature. The Parties hereby consent to use electronic or digitized signatures in accordance with the Town’s 

Electronic Signature Policy and intend to be bound by the Agreement and any related documents. If electronic 

signatures are used the Agreement shall be delivered in an electronic record capable of retention by the recipient 

at the time of receipt. 

 
 

[Signatures are on the following page.]

- Page 134 -



 LIVINGCONNECTED 

 DIABETES MANAGEMENT PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 

 9 

 

SIGNATURES  

 

 This Agreement is entered into effective as of the Effective Date as evidenced by the signatures of the 

duly authorized officers of each Party below. 

 

      CCS MEDICAL, INC.  

     

 _________________________________________ 

`     By:         

      Title:         

Date: ___________________________________ 

 

      HEALTH PLAN  

_________________________________________ 

     By:  Drew Havens     

      Title:  Town Manager     

Date: ___________________________________ 

 

- Page 135 -



LIVINGCONNECTED  

DIABETES MANAGEMENT PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 
 

Exhibit A – Page 1of 2 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

FEE SCHEDULE  
 

1.  Reimbursement for Products and Supplies.  CCS shall be entitled to reimbursement for 

the Products and Supplies, inclusive of related services explicitly covered under this Agreement, as 

follows: 

 

Products and Services Reimbursement 

Starter Kits $304.00 

Replacement Meter $100.00 

Blood Glucose Test Strips (50 count vial)  $65.00 

Control Solutions High and Low 
$7.00 

(each) 

Lancing Device $15.00 

Lancets 30G (100 count box)  $7.50 

 

1.1 As necessary CCS provides Participants with Starter Kits includes four (4) vials of Blood 

Glucose Test Strips and two (2) boxes of Lancets 30G and may also include the following items: 

a. One (1) Bluetooth/Cellular Blood Glucose Meter  

b. Ten (10) Blood Glucose Test Strips  

c. One (1) each of Control Solution High and Low  

d. One (1) Lancing Device  

e. Ten (10) Lancets  

f. One (1) Battery Charger  

g. One (1) Meter Case   

 

1.2 Defective Starter Kit Meters, as determined to be defective by CCS, in its sole and 

reasonable discretion, will be replaced by CCS at no cost to the Participant.  

 

1.3 Ninety (90) day supplies of additional Products and Supplies are provided to Participants 

following enrollment or receipt of Starter Kit based on utilization or need, which may include appropriate 

quantities of the following:  

a. Fifty (50) count vials of Blood Glucose Test Strips 

b. Control Solutions High and Low 

c. Lancing Devices 

d. One-hundred (100) count boxes of Lancets 30G   

1.4 All products under provided for under this Agreement will be shipped FOB shipping 

point. Unused delivered products may only be returned in accordance with CCS’s return policy.  

 

1.5 The above charges shall not change unless mutually agreed to by the Parties in writing. 

However, CCS may adjust such charges in proportion to any increase in CCS’s cost of acquiring such 

goods, upon providing Health Plan thirty (30) days advance notice of such adjustments, which shall be 

considered accepted by Health Plan unless Health Plan provides CCS with written notice within the thirty 

(30) days provided objecting to such changes, in which case, the Parties agree to enter into good-faith 

negotiations for the cost of goods adjustment to charges.  Any adjustment to charges made pursuant to 

this Section shall be attached hereto as an amendment to this Exhibit A.   

- Page 136 -



LIVINGCONNECTED  

DIABETES MANAGEMENT PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 
 

Exhibit A – Page 2of 2 

 

 

 

 

Accepted and Agreed to:   

 

CCS MEDICAL, INC. 

 

____________________________________ 

 

By:   

 

Title:   

 

Date:  _______________________________ 

 

HEALTH PLAN  

 

____________________________________ 

 

By:  Drew Havens 

 

Title:  Town Manager 

 

Date:  _______________________________ 

 
 

- Page 137 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  20 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  John  M .  B ro wn ,  D i rec t o r  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Par k s ,  R ec rea t i on ,  an d Cu l tu ra l  R e sou rc e s  

 

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  to  ap pr o ve  a n  o rd i n anc e a me nd me nt  to  a d d S a le m P on d Par k  t o  s ec t i o n  (a )  (1 )  o f  Sec t i on  

1 5 -6  o f  the  To wn o f  Apex  Co de of   Or d i nan c es  a nd  se t  i t s  h ou r s  o f  o per at i o n .   

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

I t  was  rec en t l y  d i sc o vered S a le m P on d Park  w as  n o t  i nc lu de d i n  S ec t i on  15 -6  o f  th e  To wn C o de 

of  Or d i nanc es  wh i c h  s e t s  the  open i n g an d c los i n g t i me s  f o r  p ark s  a nd  gr een wa ys .  Th i s  wou l d  

ad d S a le m P on d Park  to  t he  To wn C o de an d e s ta b l i sh  th e  n or ma l  hou r s  o f  o per at i o n  a s  fo l l ow s  

s i mi la r  t o  Ap e x  Ja yc e e P ark  an d H unt e r  S t r eet  P ark .  

 

Marc h  th r ou gh  Oc t o b er  7 :00 a m un t i l  10 :00 p m  

 

No ve mber  th r ou gh  Fe bruar y  7 :00 a m un t i l  8 : 00p m  

 

At t ac h men t s  

1 )  P r op ose d Or d i nanc e  

 

- Page 138 -



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-1020-35 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TOWN CODE CHAPTER 15 RELATED TO PARK HOURS 

  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

APEX AS FOLLOWS: 

 Section 1.  That Subsection (a)(1) of Section 15-6 of the Town of Apex Code of Ordinances is 

hereby amended as shown immediately below with additions being shown by underlined text: 

Sec. 15-6. - Opening and closing town parks; remaining in parks after closing; forfeiture of right 

to use park. 

(a) Parks shall be open to the public daily during the times specified in this section. These 

times may be extended to accommodate programs offered by the town at the direction of 

the director of parks, recreation and cultural resources. Provided, however, the director of 

parks, recreation and cultural resources may close one or more parks or recreational 

facilities temporarily at any time if in the director's judgment a sufficient reason exists on 

account of severe weather or other emergency that would endanger persons using these 

facilities. 

(1) Salem Pond Park, Apex Jaycee Park and Hunter Street Park: 

March through October—7:00 a.m. until 10:00 p.m. 

November through February—7:00 a.m. until 8:00 p.m. 

Provided, however, the Rogers Family Skate Plaza located within the Hunter Street Park 

shall be open year round, 24 hours a day. These extended hours shall apply exclusively to 

the Rogers Family Skate Plaza and no other areas of Hunter Street Park. 

Section 2.  The Town Clerk and/or Town Manager are hereby authorized to renumber, revise 

formatting, correct typographic errors, to verify and correct cross references, indexes and diagrams as 

necessary to codify, publish, and/or accomplish the provisions of this ordinance or future amendments as 

long as doing so does not alter the terms of this Ordinance. 

 Section 3.  Severability, Conflict of Laws.  If this ordinance or application thereof to any person 

or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of the 

ordinance which can be given separate effect and to the end the provisions of this ordinance are declared 

to be severable.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 Section 4.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective upon adoption. 

 Introduced by Council Member: _____________________________________ 

 Seconded by Council Member:   _____________________________________ 

 This the 20th day of October 2020. 

 

        __________________________ 

        Jacques K. Gilbert 

        Mayor 

 

- Page 139 -



 

 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 

Town Clerk 

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________ 

Laurie L. Hohe 

Town Attorney 

- Page 140 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  20 ,2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  John  M .  B ro wn ,  D I rec to r  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Par k s ,  R ec rea t i on ,  an d Cu l tu ra l  R e sou rc e s  

 

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  to  ex ten d su m mer  park  o pera t i n g h ou r s  th r ou gh  Fe bruar y  28 ,  2021  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

 

A r e que s t  ha s  been  m ad e to  ex ten d the  su m mer  o per a t i ng h ou r s  fo r  a l l  p ark s  t h rou gh  Fe bruar y  

2 8 ,  2021  t o  a l lo w u se  by  c i t i zens .  The  an t i c i pa te d c os t s  fo r  a d d i t i ona l  L i mi t ed  S e r v i c e  hou r s  

wou l d  be  a s  f o l l o ws :  

 
LSE labor  
 
$14.00 per hour x 2hrs a day x 7 days = $196 per week 
 
$196 per week x 17 weeks = $3,332 
 

 

 

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Te mpor ar y  Or d i na nc e  a men di ng To wn Co d e Sec t i on  15 -6   

 

- Page 141 -



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-1020-27 

AN ORDINANCE TO TEMPORARILY AMEND TOWN CODE  

SECTION 15-6 RELATED TO PARK HOURS 

  

WHEREAS, on March 10, 2020 the Governor of North Carolina declared a State of Emergency to 

coordinate protective actions to address the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) public health 

emergency; and  

WHEREAS, to slow the community spread of COVID-19 certain recommendations have been made, 

including, but not limited to, wearing of a face covering, maintain at least 6 feet social distancing, and 

avoid large gatherings; and   

WHEREAS, with the COVID-19 pandemic many people are trying to find safe outdoor activities to keep 

active and healthy; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Apex desires to extend its park operating hours to allow greater use of the 

Town parks while enabling visitors to maintain social distancing and avoid large gatherings.  

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

APEX AS FOLLOWS: 

 Section 1.  That Section 15-6 of the Town of Apex Code of Ordinances is hereby temporarily 

amended as shown immediately below with deletions being shown by struck-through text and additions 

being shown by underlined text: 

(a) Parks shall be open to the public daily during the times specified in this section. These 

times may be extended to accommodate programs offered by the town at the direction of 

the director of parks, recreation and cultural resources. Provided, however, the director of 

parks, recreation and cultural resources may close one or more parks or recreational 

facilities temporarily at any time if in the director's judgment a sufficient reason exists on 

account of severe weather or other emergency that would endanger persons using these 

facilities. 

(1) Salem Pond Park, Apex Jaycee Park and Hunter Street Park: 

March through October—7:00 a.m. until 10:00 p.m. 

November through February—7:00 a.m. until 8:00 10:00 p.m. 

Provided, however, the Rogers Family Skate Plaza located within the Hunter 

Street Park shall be open year round, 24 hours a day. These extended hours shall 

apply exclusively to the Rogers Family Skate Plaza and no other areas of Hunter 

Street Park. 

(2) Kelly Road Park: 

March through October—7:00 a.m. until 10:00 p.m. 

November through February—7:00 a.m. until 8:00 10:00 p.m. 

(3) Apex Community Park: 

March through October—6:30 a.m. until 10:00 p.m. 

November through February—6:30 a.m. until 8:00 10:00 p.m. 

- Page 142 -



Provided, however, that Apex Community Park shall be open for purposes of 

public boating pursuant to subsection 15-7(l) and fishing pursuant to 

subsection 15-7(q) on the pond therein from 6:30 a.m. until sunset, as defined by 

the National Weather Service, unless otherwise ordered by the director of parks, 

recreation and cultural resources. 

(4) West Street Park, Claremont Park, Sue Helton Park, Kelly Glen Park and 

Seagrove's Farm Park: 

March through October—7:00 a.m. until 8:00 p.m. 

November through February—7:00 a.m. until 6:00 8:00p.m. 

(5) Nature Park and Seymour Athletic Fields: 

March through October—6:30 a.m. until 10:00 p.m. 

November through February—6:30 a.m. until 8:00 10:00 p.m. 

 

Section 2.  The Town Clerk and/or Town Manager are hereby authorized to renumber, revise 

formatting, correct typographic errors, to verify and correct cross references, indexes and diagrams as 

necessary to codify, publish, and/or accomplish the provisions of this ordinance or future amendments as 

long as doing so does not alter the terms of this Ordinance. 

 Section 3.  Severability, Conflict of Laws.  If this ordinance or application thereof to any person 

or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of the 

ordinance which can be given separate effect and to the end the provisions of this ordinance are declared 

to be severable.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 Section 4.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective upon adoption and expires on March 

1, 2021. 

 Introduced by Council Member: _____________________________________ 

 Seconded by Council Member:   _____________________________________ 

 This the 20th day of October 2020. 

 

        ________________________________ 

        Jacques K. Gilbert 

        Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 

Town Clerk 

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________ 

Laurie L. Hohe 

Town Attorney 

- Page 143 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for  cons iderat ion by the Apex Town Counci l  

 

 I tem Type:  PUBLIC HEARING 

 Meeting Date:  October 20 , 2020  

Item Details  

Presenter: Lauren Staudenmaier ,  P lanner  I  

Department: P lanning and Communi ty Development  

Requested Motion  

Publ ic hear ing and poss ible motion to adopt an Ordinance on the Quest ion of  Annexat ion –  Apex 

Town Counci l ’ s  intent to annex Powel l  Property Holdings , LLC  (The Upchurch) proper ty  contain ing 

5.5021 acres located at 7213 Rober ts  Road, Annexation #698 into the Town’s corporate l imi ts .  

Approval  Recommended?  

Yes , by the P lanning and Communi ty Development Depar tment.  

I tem Detai l s  

The Town Clerk cert i f ies to the invest igat ion of  said annexation.  

Attachments  

  Annexation Ordinance  

  Annexation Pet i t ion  

  Legal  Descr ipt ion  

  Prel iminary P lat  

 

- Page 144 -



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
   

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
Municipality No. 333 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-1020-32 
ANNEXATION PETITION NO. #698 

Powell Property Holdings, LLC (The Upchurch) 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS 
OF THE TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA  

P.O. Box 250, Apex, North Carolina  27502 
 

       WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council has been petitioned under G.S.§160A-58.1, 
as amended, to annex the area described herein; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council has by Resolution directed the Town Clerk to 
investigate the sufficiency of said petition; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of said petition and a 
public hearing on the question of this annexation was held at Apex Town Hall at 
6:00 p.m. on October 20, 2020, after due notice by posting to the Town of Apex 
website, http://www.apexnc.org/news/public-notices-legal-ads; and  
 
     WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council does hereby find as a fact that said petition 
meets the requirements of G.S.§160A-58.1, as amended. 
 

After recording, please return to: 
Donna Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 
Town of Apex 
P.O. Box 250 
Apex, NC  27502 

- Page 145 -



Page 2 
      
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina: 
 
    Section 1.   By virtue of the authority granted by G.S.§160A-58.1, as amended, 
the territory described in the attached property description and also shown as 
“Annexation Area” on the below identified survey plat is hereby annexed and 
made part of the Town of Apex, North Carolina, as of the date of adoption of this 
Ordinance on October 20, 2020.  The survey plat that describes the annexed 
territory is that certain survey plat entitled “Satellite Annexation Map for the Town 
of Apex, Smith & Smith Surveyors, P.A., dated August 12, 2015 ” and recorded in 
Book of Maps book number  2020  and page number                              , Wake 
County Registry.   

    Section 2.   Upon and after the adoption of this ordinance, the territory described 
herein and its citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances 
and regulations in force in the Town of Apex, North Carolina, and shall be entitled 
to the same privileges and benefits as other parts of the Town of Apex.  Said territory 
shall be subject to municipal taxes according to G.S.§160A-58.10, as amended. 
 
    Section 3.   The Clerk of the Town of Apex, North Carolina shall cause to be 
recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Wake County and in the Office 
of the Secretary of State at Raleigh, North Carolina and in the Office of the Wake 
County Board of Elections an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in 
Section 1 hereof, together with a duly certified copy of this Ordinance. 
 
    Adopted this the 20th day of October 2020. 
 
 

________________________________ 
      Jacques K. Gilbert 
      Mayor 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Laurie L. Hohe 
Town Attorney 
 
 

- Page 146 -



 
Page 3 
 
 
Legal Description 
 
Lying and being in White Oak Township, Wake County, North Carolina and 
described more fully as follows to wit: 
 
BEGINNING at an existing right of way disc at the southeastern intersection of 
Roberts Road (NCSR 1608) & NC 540 Highway rights of way bearing a NAD 
(83/2011) coordinate value of North 733,834.99 feet, East 2,033,673.48 feet; 
thence along and with Roberts Road right of way South 56° 04' 00" East, 202.47 
feet to an existing right of way disc; thence along and with Roberts Road right 
of way South 38° 28' 13" East, 507.19 feet to an existing right of way disc; thence 
North 57° 53' 00" East, 14.08 feet to an existing right of way disc; thence South 
31° 45' 04" East, 34.59 feet to a disturbed existing concrete monument; thence 
North 89° 45' 12" West, 854.21 feet to an existing iron pipe; thence North 32° 48' 
14" East, 628.61 feet to the BEGINNING containing 5.5021 total acres - 239,670 
total square feet more or less. 
 
 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WAKE 
 

CLERK’S CERTIFICATION 
 

I, Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk, Town of Apex, North Carolina, do 
hereby certify the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Annexation Ordinance 
No. 2020-1020-32, adopted at a meeting of the Town Council, on the 20th day of 
October 2020, the original of which will be on file in the Office of the Town Clerk of 
Apex, North Carolina. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official Seal of 
the Town of Apex, North Carolina, this the 21st day of October 2020. 
 
 
  

_______________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 

                      (SEAL) 

- Page 147 -



- Page 148 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
698

bbrock
Typewritten Text
200.00

bbrock
Typewritten Text
8/3/2020

bbrock
Typewritten Text

bbrock
Typewritten Text
1031

bbrock
Typewritten Text

bbrock
Typewritten Text
 5.5021

bbrock
Typewritten Text

bbrock
Text Box

bbrock
Typewritten Text

bbrock
Typewritten Text

bbrock
Typewritten Text
x

bbrock
Typewritten Text



- Page 149 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
698

bbrock
Typewritten Text
8/3/2020



- Page 150 -



- Page 151 -



- Page 152 -



- Page 153 -



- Page 154 -



- Page 155 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  PU BL I C  HE AR I N G  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  20 ,  2 0 2 0  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Am a n d a Bunc e ,  Cu r re n t  P l ann i n g M an a ger  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  P l ann i n g and  C o mmu n i ty  D e ve l op men t  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Pub l i c  Hear i n g an d po ss i b le  mo t i on  t o  a ppr o ve  R ezo n i ng Ap p l i c a t i on  #20 CZ10  10 9  Ho l le ma n 

S t ree t .  The  ap p l i c an ts ,  Ch ar le s  Du ane  Tay lo r ,  J r  an d She r r y  Ba i le y  Ta y l o r ,  seek  t o  rez one  

ap pro x i mat e l y  0 .24  ac re  l oc a te d a t  109  Ho l le ma n  S t ree t  (P I N  0742 3 0 5 5 7 6 )  f ro m Of f i c e  an d 

I n s t i tu t i on a l  (O &I )  to  M i xed Of f i c e -R es i den t i a l -R e ta i l -C on di t i on a l  Zon i n g (M OR R -C Z ) .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

The  P l ann i n g a nd  Co m mun i t y  De ve lo p men t  De p ar t me nt  rec o m m end s  a p pro va l  o f  the  rezon i n g 

as  p ro p ose d by  t he  a pp l i c an t .  

 

The  P l ann i n g B oar d h e ld  a  Pu b l i c  H ear i n g on  Oc t ob er  12 ,  2020  an d rec o m men de d a ppr o va l  o f  

the  re zon i n g by  a  vo t e  o f  7 -0 .  

I tem De ta i l s  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  S taf f  R e p or t  

  Vi c i n i ty  M a p  

  Ap p l i c at i on  

 

- Page 156 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ10 109 Holleman Street 

October 20, 2020 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 1 of 5   Prepared by: Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

All property owners and neighborhood associations within 300 feet of this rezoning have been notified 
per UDO Sec. 2.2.11 Public Notification. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
Location:  109 Holleman Street 
Applicant/Owners: Charles Duane Taylor, Jr & Sherry Bailey Taylor 
 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
Acreage:  ± 0.24 acre 
PIN:  0742305576 
Current Zoning:  Office and Institutional (O&I)/Small Town Character Overlay District 
Proposed Zoning:  Mixed Office-Residential-Retail-Conditional Zoning (MORR-CZ)/Small Town 

Character Overlay District  
2045 Land Use Map: Medium Density Residential/Office Employment 
Town Limits:  Inside Town Limits  
 
Adjacent Zoning & Land Uses: 
 

 Zoning Land Use 

North:  Downtown Business (B2) Holleman St; Apex Baptist Church 

South: 
Mixed Office-Residential-Retail-
Conditional Zoning (MORR-CZ) 

Vacant  

East:  Office and Institutional (O&I) Vacant building (former bank) 

West: High Density Single-Family (HDSF) Hudson Ave; Single-Family 
 

EXISTING CONDITIONS: 
The property to be rezoned is located on the south side of Holleman Street, west of Hudson Ave. The 
property contains a historic single-family home with a detached garage. The home is a contributing 
structure in Apex’s National Register Historic District. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Planning staff was asked to analyze the zoning history of the subject property and found that since at least 
1963, this property has not been in a residential zone. Prior to the adoption of the Town’s Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO) in 2000, Apex had pyramidal zoning which allowed for single-family 
residential uses in business zones, but the UDO does not allow for that same mix of single-family 
residential use with commercial use in most non-residential zoning districts. Therefore, the existing single-
family use is nonconforming. 
 
NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING: 
The applicant conducted a neighborhood meeting on September 24, 2020. The neighborhood meeting 
report is attached. 

- Page 157 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ10 109 Holleman Street 

October 20, 2020 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 2 of 5   Prepared by: Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

 
2045 LAND USE MAP: 
The 2045 Land Use Map classifies the subject property as Medium Density Residential/Office 
Employment. The proposed rezoning to Mixed Office-Residential-Retail-Conditional Zoning (MORR-CZ) is 
consistent with that land use classification.  
 
PROPOSED ZONING CONDITIONS: 
Limitation of Uses: 
The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses 
are subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or 
regulations stated below. For convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such 
references do not imply that other sections of the UDO do not apply. 
 

1. Single-family 
2. Accessory apartment  
3. Bed and breakfast (S) 
4. Office, business or professional  
5. Studio for art 

6. Medical or dental office or clinic 
7. Book store 
8. Floral shop 
9. Newsstand or gift shop 
10. Retail sales, general 

 
Conditions: 
1. All structures listed as “contributing” to the National Register Historic District shall follow the latest 

edition of the “Secretary of Interior Standards of Rehabilitation and Guidelines for Rehabilitating 
Historic Buildings”.  
 

2. In addition to the standards found in UDO Sec. 6.3.1 Small Town Character Overlay District, the 
following architectural standards shall apply to any new construction, exterior renovations, or 
additions to the front façade, or renovations of 50% or more of the entire façade are subject to 
this section. New construction, additions, and significant exterior renovations of an existing 
residential structure must be compatible with the character of quality structures located in the 
Small Town Character Overlay District.  
 
a. Architectural Features. Residential structures shall have three (3) or more of the following 

features: 
i. Wraparound porch (entire front façade and part of one or both side façades)  
ii. Predominant porch (over 75% of front façade)  
iii. Awnings  
iv. Columns  
v. Porticos  
vi. Balconies  
vii. Broken roof lines  
viii. Dormers  
ix. Arched architectural features  
x. Brick chimney  
xi. All brick façade  
xii. Other architectural features as approved by the Planning Director  

 

- Page 158 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ10 109 Holleman Street 

October 20, 2020 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 3 of 5   Prepared by: Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

b. Decorative Features. Residential structures shall have four (4) or more of the following 
features:  
i. Decorative shake  
ii. Decorative porch railing/posts  
iii. Shutters  
iv. Decorative/functional air vents on roof or foundation  
v. Trimmed Windows  
vi. Recessed windows  
vii. Decorative/period windows  
viii. Decorative brick/stone  
ix. Decorative gables  
x. Decorative cornices  
xi. Tin/metal roof  
xii. Other decorative features as approved by the Planning Director  

 
c. Roofs  

i. Roof lines shall be varied to reduce the scale of structures and add visual interest.  
 
ii. Roof shape (for example: flat, hip, mansard, or gable) and material shall be architecturally 

compatible with façade elements and the rest of the structure.  
 

d. Facades  
i. Recesses and projections  

The principal structure’s front façade must incorporate recesses and projections along at 
least 50% of the length of the façade. Windows, awnings, and porch area shall total at least 
50% of the façade length abutting a public street. 

 
ii. Repeating design patterns  

Façades shall incorporate a repeating pattern of change in color, texture, and material 
modules. 

 
iii. Renovations  

Façade renovations shall incorporate original building details to the maximum extent 
practicable.  

 
iv. Roof cornices  

If roof cornices have been removed or damaged on an existing structure, renovations of 
that structure must include retaining, repairing, and replacing the roof cornices.  

 
e. Windows  

i. Replacement of windows on the façade of an existing structure shall be accomplished by 
using windows of the same trim size and character as the original. 

 
ii. Blank exterior walls are prohibited; windows shall be present on all sides of the home. 

  

- Page 159 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ10 109 Holleman Street 

October 20, 2020 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 4 of 5   Prepared by: Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

iii. Shutters on windows shall be one half the width of the window to which they are affixed.  
 

f. Sides Facing Abutting Street. All sides of a principal structure that face an abutting public street 
shall have architectural and decorative features as described in a. and b. above. 
 

g. Entryways  
i. Required features  

Doors shall have built-in windows; alternatively, a solid door is allowed provided side lights 
(side windows) are installed immediately adjacent to the solid door.  

 

ii. Variation  
 Variations in color schemes and textures are encouraged in order to articulate entryways 

so as to give greater recognition to these features. 
 

h. Materials 
i. Predominant exterior building materials  
 Predominant exterior building materials shall be high quality materials, including brick, 

wood, stone, fiber cement, and/or wood composite. Where an existing home has vinyl 
siding, the use of vinyl siding is allowed for new additions, exterior renovations, and 
accessory structures on the same property. Vacant property or newly subdivided lots shall 
only be allowed to utilize vinyl in the form of shake and trim elements and shall not have 
vinyl as the siding material on principal or accessory structures. 

 

ii. Foundation materials  
Front and side porches with open foundations shall have brick or stone piers and openings 
shall be fully screened with evergreen plantings. 

 
 
PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning staff recommends approval of Rezoning #20CZ10 109 Holleman Street as proposed by the 
applicant.  
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board heard this rezoning at their October 12, 2020 meeting and recommended approval 
by a vote of 7-0.  
 
ANALYSIS STATEMENT OF THE REASONABLENESS OF THE PROPOSED REZONING: 
This Statement will address consistency with the Town’s comprehensive and other applicable plans, 
reasonableness, and effect on public interest: 
 

Approval of the rezoning is reasonable because the proposed Mixed Office-Residential-Retail-
Conditional Zoning (MORR-CZ) district is consistent with the Medium Density Residential/Office 
Employment land use classification on the 2045 Land Use Map.   
 
The proposed rezoning is reasonable and in the public interest because it will allow the existing 
single-family home to once again be a conforming use while also allowing a limited number of 
nonresidential uses that could utilize the existing historic structure.  

- Page 160 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ10 109 Holleman Street 

October 20, 2020 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 5 of 5   Prepared by: Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

 
CONDITIONAL ZONING STANDARDS:  
The Town Council shall find the Mixed Office-Residential-Retail-Conditional Zoning (MORR-CZ) 
designation demonstrates compliance with the following standards. Sec. 2.3.3.F: 
 

Legislative Considerations  
The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following 
considerations, which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether 
or not the proposed conditional zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest. These 
considerations do not exclude the legislative consideration of any other factor that is relevant to the 
public interest.  

1)  Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 
appropriateness for its proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
and policies of the 2045 Land Use Map.  

2)  Compatibility. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for its 
proposed location and compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses.  

3)  Zoning district supplemental standards. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 
compliance with Sec. 4.4 Supplemental Standards, if applicable.  

4)  Design minimizes adverse impact. The design of the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District 
use’s minimization of adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent 
lands; and avoidance of significant adverse impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, 
service delivery, parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and vibration and not create a nuisance.  

5)  Design minimizes environmental impact. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s 
minimization of environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water 
and air resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and other natural resources.  

6)  Impact on public facilities. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s avoidance of 
having adverse impacts on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and 
wastewater facilities, parks, schools, police, fire and EMS facilities.  

7)  Health, safety, and welfare. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s effect on the 
health, safety, or welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ.  

8)  Detrimental to adjacent properties. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is 
substantially detrimental to adjacent properties.  

9)  Not constitute nuisance or hazard. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use 
constitutes a nuisance or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of 
persons who will be using the Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use.  

10)  Other relevant standards of this Ordinance. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) 
District use complies with all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this 
Ordinance for use, layout, and general development characteristics. 

- Page 161 -



- Page 162 -



- Page 163 -



- Page 164 -



See Attachment #1

- Page 165 -



- Page 166 -



- Page 167 -



- Page 168 -



20CZ10 
Attachment #1 
 
109 Holleman Street rezoning 
 
Proposed Uses 

1. Single-family 
2. Accessory apartment  
3. Bed and breakfast (S) 
4. Office, business or professional  
5. Studio for art 
6. Medical or dental office or clinic 
7. Book store 
8. Floral shop 
9. Newsstand or gift shop 
10. Retail sales, general 

 
 
Proposed Zoning Conditions: 
1. 

 
 

2. In addition to the standards found in UDO Sec. 6.3.1 Small Town Character Overlay District, the 
following architectural standards shall apply to any new construction, exterior renovations, or 
additions to the front façade, or renovations of 50% or more of the entire façade are subject to 
this section. New construction, additions, and significant exterior renovations of an existing 
residential structure must be compatible with the character of quality structures located in the 
Small Town Character Overlay District.  
 
a. Architectural Features. Residential structures shall have three (3) or more of the following 

features: 
i. Wraparound porch (entire front façade and part of one or both side façades)  
ii. Predominant porch (over 75% of front façade)  
iii. Awnings  
iv. Columns  
v. Porticos  
vi. Balconies  
vii. Broken roof lines  
viii. Dormers  
ix. Arched architectural features  
x. Brick chimney  
xi. All brick façade  
xii. Other architectural features as approved by the Planning Director  

 
b. Decorative Features. Residential structures shall have four (4) or more of the following 

features:  
i. Decorative shake  

- Page 169 -



ii. Decorative porch railing/posts  
iii. Shutters  
iv. Decorative/functional air vents on roof or foundation  
v. Trimmed Windows  
vi. Recessed windows  
vii. Decorative/period windows  
viii. Decorative brick/stone  
ix. Decorative gables  
x. Decorative cornices  
xi. Tin/metal roof  
xii. Other decorative features as approved by the Planning Director  

 
c. Roofs  

i. Roof lines shall be varied to reduce the scale of structures and add visual interest.  
 

ii. Roof shape (for example: flat, hip, mansard, or gable) and material shall be 
architecturally compatible with façade elements and the rest of the structure.  
 

d. Facades  
i. Recesses and projections  

at least 50% of the length of the façade. Windows, awnings, and porch area shall total 
at least 50% of the façade length abutting a public street. 
 

ii. Repeating design patterns  
Façades shall incorporate a repeating pattern of change in color, texture, and material 
modules. 
 

iii. Renovations  
Façade renovations shall incorporate original building details to the maximum extent 
practicable.  
 

iv. Roof cornices  
If roof cornices have been removed or damaged on an existing structure, renovations 
of that structure must include retaining, repairing, and replacing the roof cornices.  

 
e. Windows  

i. Replacement of windows on the façade of an existing structure shall be accomplished 
by using windows of the same trim size and character as the original. 
 

ii. Blank exterior walls are prohibited; windows shall be present on all sides of the home. 
  

iii. Shutters on windows shall be one half the width of the window to which they are 
affixed.  
 

f. Sides Facing Abutting Street. All sides of a principal structure that face an abutting public street 
shall have architectural and decorative features as described in a. and b. above. 
 

- Page 170 -



g. Entryways  
i. Required features  

Doors shall have built-in windows; alternatively, a solid door is allowed provided side 
lights (side windows) are installed immediately adjacent to the solid door.  
 

ii. Variation  
Variations in color schemes and textures are encouraged in order to articulate 
entryways so as to give greater recognition to these features. 

 
h. Materials 

i. Predominant exterior building materials  
Predominant exterior building materials shall be high quality materials, including brick, 
wood, stone, fiber cement, and/or wood composite. Where an existing home has vinyl 
siding, the use of vinyl siding is allowed for new additions, exterior renovations, and 
accessory structures on the same property. Vacant property or newly subdivided lots 
shall only be allowed to utilize vinyl in the form of shake and trim elements and shall 
not have vinyl as the siding material on principal or accessory structures. 
 

ii. Foundation materials  
Front and side porches with open foundations shall have brick or stone piers and 
openings shall be fully screened with evergreen plantings. 

- Page 171 -



20CZ10

- Page 172 -



- Page 173 -



20CZ10

- Page 174 -



20CZ10

- Page 175 -



20CZ10

- Page 176 -



- Page 177 -



- Page 178 -



- Page 179 -



- Page 180 -



- Page 181 -



- Page 182 -



- Page 183 -



- Page 184 -



- Page 185 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  
Planning Board Meeting Date: 

 

Page 1 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Report Requirements:  
Per NCGS 160A-387, all proposed amendments to the zoning ordinance or zoning map shall have a written report provided 
from the Planning Board to the Town Council within 30 days of referral of the amendment to the Planning Board, or the Town 
Council may proceed in its consideration of the amendment without the Planning Board report. Furthermore, in no case is the 
Town Council bound by the recommendations, if any, of the Planning Board. 
  
Per NCGS 160A-383, the Planning Board shall advise and comment on whether the proposed zoning amendment is consistent 
with all applicable officially adopted plans, and provide a written recommendation to the Town Council that addresses plan 
consistency and other matters as deemed appropriate by the Planning Board, but a comment by the Planning Board that a 
proposed amendment is inconsistent with the officially adopted plans shall not preclude consideration or approval of the 
proposed amendment by the Town Council. 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  
Acreage:  
PIN(s):  
Current Zoning:  
Proposed Zoning:   
2045 Land Use Map:  

  
Town Limits:  

 

 
Applicable Officially Adopted Plans: 

 

The Board must state whether the project is consistent or inconsistent with the following officially adopted plans, 
if applicable.  Applicable plans have a check mark next to them.  
  

 2045 Land Use Map 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 

 Apex Transportation Plan 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 Parks, Recreation, Open Space, and Greenways Plan 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 

 

October 12, 2020 

#20CZ10 109 Holleman Street

± 0.24 acre
0742305576

Office and Institutional (O&I)/ Small Town Character Overlay District 
Mixed Office-Residential-Retail-Conditional Zoning (MORR-CZ)/ Small Town Character Overlay Dist.

Medium Density Residential/Office Employment 

Inside Town Limits

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

- Page 186 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  
Planning Board Meeting Date: 

 

Page 2 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Legislative Considerations: 
The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following 
considerations, which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or not the 
proposed conditional zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest.  These considerations do not 
exclude the legislative consideration of any other factor that is relevant to the public interest. 
 
1. Consistency with 2045 Land Use Plan. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness 

for its proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and policies of the 2045 Land 
Use Plan. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
  
 
 
 
 
2. Compatibility. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for its proposed 

location and compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
3. Zoning district supplemental standards. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s compliance 

with Sec. 4.4 Supplemental Standards, if applicable. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
4. Design minimizes adverse impact. The design of the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 

minimization of adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and 
avoidance of significant adverse impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service delivery, 
parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and vibration and not create a nuisance. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
5. Design minimizes environmental impact. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s minimization of 

environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and air resources, wildlife 
habitat, scenic resources, and other natural resources. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
  

October 12, 2020 

#20CZ10 109 Holleman Street

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

- Page 187 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  
Planning Board Meeting Date: 

 

Page 3 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

 
6. Impact on public facilities. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s avoidance of having adverse 

impacts on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater facilities, parks, 
schools, police, fire and EMS facilities. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
7. Health, safety, and welfare. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s effect on the health, 

safety, or welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
8. Detrimental to adjacent properties.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is 

substantially detrimental to adjacent properties. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
9. Not constitute nuisance or hazard.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use constitutes 

a nuisance or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons who will be using 
the Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
10. Other relevant standards of this Ordinance.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use 

complies with all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance for use, 
layout, and general development characteristics. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

October 12, 2020 

#20CZ10 109 Holleman Street

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

- Page 188 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  
Planning Board Meeting Date: 

 

Page 4 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Planning Board Recommendation: 
 

Motion:  

Introduced by Planning Board member:  

Seconded by Planning Board member:  

  
 Approval: the project is consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and the applicable legislative 

considerations listed above. 
 

 Approval with conditions: the project is not consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and/or the 
applicable legislative considerations as noted above, so the following conditions are recommended to be 
included in the project in order to make it fully consistent: 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  
 Denial: the project is not consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and/or the applicable 

legislative considerations as noted above. 
  
  

 With ____ Planning Board Member(s) voting “aye” 
 

With ____ Planning Board Member(s) voting “no” 
  

Reasons for dissenting votes: 
  

  

  

  

  
This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the  day of  2020. 
  
  
Attest:  
 
 

 

   
Michael Marks, Planning Board Chair  Dianne Khin, Planning Director 
 

To recommend approval as proposed by applicant.
Tina Sherman
Ryan Akers

As proposed by applicant.

7

0

12th October

October 12, 2020 

#20CZ10 109 Holleman Street

Michael Marks Digitally signed by Michael Marks 
Date: 2020.10.13 08:12:55 -04'00' Dianne Khin Digitally signed by Dianne Khin 

Date: 2020.10.12 17:53:27 
-04'00'

✔

- Page 189 -



TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

 

Published Dates: September 28-October 20, 2020 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

CONDITIONAL ZONING #20CZ10 
109 Holleman Street 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes §160A-364 and to the Town of Apex Unified Development 

Ordinance (UDO) Section 2.2.11, notice is hereby given of public hearings before the Planning Board and Town Council of the 
Town of Apex. The purpose of these hearings is to consider the following: 
 

Applicants: Charles Duane Taylor, Jr and Sherry Bailey Taylor 
Property Address: 109 Holleman Street 
Acreage: ±0.24 acre 
Property Identification Number (PIN): 0742305576 
2045 Land Use Map Designation: Medium Density Residential/Office Employment 
Existing Zoning of Properties: Office and Institutional (O&I) 
Proposed Zoning of Properties: Mixed Office-Residential-Retail-Conditional Zoning (MORR-CZ) 
 

Public Hearing Location:  Apex Town Hall  
                                              Council Chambers, 2nd Floor 
                                              73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  
 

Planning Board Public Hearing Date and Time:  October 12, 2020   4:30 PM 
If you would like to speak during the public hearing, you may sign-in ahead of time by emailing your name and 
address to bonnie.brock@apexnc.org. You may attend the meeting in person or view the meeting through 
the Town’s YouTube livestream at: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov.  

 

If you are unable to attend, you may provide comments no later than noon on Friday, October 9, 2020 by email 
(public.hearing@apexnc.org, 350-word limit) or voicemail (919-362-7300, 3-minute limit) according to the 
Remote Participation Policy at: http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/. You must provide 
your name and address for the record. These comments will be read during the Planning Board meeting.   

 
Town Council Public Hearing Date and Time:  October 20, 2020   6:00 PM  

You may attend the meeting in person or view the meeting through the Town’s YouTube livestream at: 
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. 
 

If you are unable to attend, you may provide comments no later than noon on Monday, October 19, 2020 by 
email (public.hearing@apexnc.org, 350-word limit) or voicemail (919-362-7300, 3-minute limit) according to 
the Remote Participation Policy at: http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/. You must 
provide your name and address for the record. These comments will be read during the Town Council meeting. 
 
If the Council meeting is held with at least one member attending virtually, written comments on the subject 
of the public hearing may be submitted between publication of any required notice and 24 hours after the 
public hearing and the Council’s vote will occur at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 
Vicinity Map:  

 
Property owners within 300 feet of the proposed conditional zoning have been sent this notice via first class mail. All interested 
parties may appear at the public hearing and be heard with respect to the application. Maps showing the location for the above 
site(s) to be considered in addition to a copy of the 2045 Land Use Map can be inspected at the Apex Town Hall or call 919-
249-3426, Department of Planning and Community Development, for further information. To view the petition and related 
documents on-line: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/33401. 
 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Director of Planning and Community Development 

- Page 190 -

mailto:bonnie.brock@apexnc.org
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/Remote-Participation-Policy-for-Public-Participation-at-Council-Meetings?bidId=
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/Remote-Participation-Policy-for-Public-Participation-at-Council-Meetings?bidId=
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/Home/View/478
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/33401/20CZ10?bidId=


- Page 191 -



- Page 192 -



- Page 193 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  OLD BU S I NE SS  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  20 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Co l leen  Mer ay s ,  D o w nt own  an d S ma l l  Bu s i nes s  De ve lo p men t  C o ord i n at o r  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Ec on o mi c  D e ve l op me nt  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Po s s i b le  m o t i on  t o  e x t ende d  c u r ren t  P ark i ng - t o -D i n i ng  P r o gra m l ay ou t  a do p ted  b y  To wn Counc i l  

on  S ep te mb er  15 ,  2020  un t i l  No ve mb er  1 ,  2 020  to  a l lo w fo r  e x ten de d ou t do or  d i n i ng a nd a lc o ho l  

c onsu mp t i on  as  pe r m i t te d b y  AB C L a w or  regu l a t i on s ,  an d to  ex ten d t he  o r d i nanc e t e mpor ar i l y  

mo di f y i n g Town Co d e Sec t i on s  14 -14  a nd  18 -11  as  th ey  re l a t e  to  s i de w alk  d i n i ng a nd a lc oho l  

c onsu mp t i on  on  pu b l i c  s t r ee t s  an d s i de wa l k s  th rou gh  N o ve mb er  1 ,  2020 .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

Th i s  p os s i b le  mo t i on  i s  i n  c onnec t i on  to  N C Exec u t i ve  Or der  16 9  t ha t  ex te nd s  i nd o or  oc c upanc y  

rat es  t o  50%  perc e nt  o r  12  p eo p le  pe r  1 ,0 0 0  sq .  f t .  th rou gh  Oc to ber  2 3 ,  2020 .  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Mo di f i c at i on  o f  Ord i n anc es  fo r  s i de w alk  d i n i ng du r i ng CO VI D  19  –  Ame n de d  

  Ne w Par k i ng- t o -D i n i ng P ro j ec t  Ar e a  L ay ou t  d at ed  8 -1 0 -2 0 2 0  

 

- Page 194 -



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-1020-33 

 

AN ORDINANCE TEMPORARILY MODIFYING TOWN CODE SECTION 14-14 AND 

SECTION 18-11 AS TO A TEMPORARILY CLOSED PORTION OF SALEM STREET  

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex as follows: 

 

Section 1. Under the authority of N.C.G.S Section 18B-300(c), Section 18-11 of the Apex 

Town Code of Ordinances is temporarily modified beginning June 3, 2020 and continuing 

through November 1, 2020 as follows: 

 

During the temporary closure of the parking portions of Salem Street in downtown Apex, 

Section 18-11(b) of the Apex Town code is amended as follows: 

 

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of Town Code subsection 18-11(a) and section 18-

12, downtown sidewalk food service tables may be placed and used on the sidewalks and 

closed parking spaces in the Central Business District of the Town of Apex as provided in 

this subsection 18-11(b) except when the street is temporarily closed to regular traffic for 

special events. A "downtown sidewalk food service table" is a table used for food service 

by a food service provider and located on a public sidewalk or closed parking space directly 

in front of the food service provider's place of business in the Central Business District. 

Downtown sidewalk food service tables are subject to the following requirements: 

 

(1) No downtown sidewalk food service table nor any chairs or other items used 

in connection with one shall reduce the clear accessible travel path of the sidewalk 

to a width of less than 36 inches. The width of the clear accessible travel path shall 

be measured from the street-side edge of the concrete sidewalk perpendicularly 

toward the building-side edge of the concrete sidewalk. 

 

(2) Downtown sidewalk food service tables and all chairs and other items used 

in connection with them shall be situated, outfitted and used in a manner that does 

not constitute a hazard to persons using the sidewalks. 

 

(3) No person shall place, use or operate a downtown sidewalk food service 

table except as authorized by a site specific development plan approved by the Apex 

Planning Department. 

 

Section 2. Under the authority of N.C.G.S Section 18B-300(c), Section 14-14(d) of the Apex 

Town Code of Ordinances is temporarily modified beginning June 3, 2020 and continuing 

through November 1, 2020 as follows: 

 

(d) Exemption for downtown sidewalk food service tables. The consumption of malt 

beverage and unfortified wine and the possession of an open container of the same, at a 

"downtown sidewalk food service table," as defined in Town Code section 18-11, shall 

be exempt from subsections 14-14(b) and (c) if the service of such malt beverage or 

unfortified wine is pursuant to a valid ABC permit and in conformity with the ABC laws. 

- Page 195 -



The Town of Apex grants control over the area of public sidewalk and closed parking 

space upon which a downtown sidewalk food service table is located to the adjacent food 

service provider to the least extent necessary for the area to qualify as part of the 

premises of the adjacent food service provider for the purposes of the applicable ABC 

permit. 

 

The ordinance shall be effective upon enactment. 

 

Introduced by Councilmember          

 

Seconded by Councilmember          

 

 

 

Attest:                           TOWN OF APEX 

 

 

______________________________  _________________________________ 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC   Jacques K. Gilbert  

Town Clerk      Mayor 

 

 

 

Approved As To Form:     

 

 

______________________________   

Laurie L. Hohe 

Town Attorney                        

 
 

 

 

 

 

\TOA\COVID 19 Response\Modification of Ordinances for sidewalk dining during COVID 19 

 

- Page 196 -



Apex Parking-to-Dining Layout

- Page 197 -



Anna's Pizzeria

La R
ancherita

The R
usty Bucket

W
oom

er Insurance & Financial Services

Sophie & M
ollies Boutique

Sixpence Accents

The Beer D
ispensary

Antiques O
n Salem

 Street

The D
oodling Bug

621 Productions

Stylish Living

D
ow

nTow
n Knits

The Peak on Salem

E C
H

ATH
AM

 ST

N SALEM ST

W
 C

H
ATH

AM
 ST

SAU
N

D
ER

S ST

A taste O
f Brooklyn

Peak C
ity Fam

ily D
entistry

Fresh. Local Ice C
ream

Edw
ard Jones Investm

ents

Salem
 Street Pub

The Provincial

W
ake R

em
odeling

C
arolina C

ustom
 Kitchen

& Bath, LLC

The Apex G
allery &

C
ustom

 Fram
ing

N
ina Parker R

ealty

Southern H
om

e C
rafts

R
ed C

anvas

Salem
 Street Pub

W
erking D

esign and D
ecor

M
ission M

arket

N
O

R
T H  CA RO L

I N
A

APEX
1873

TOWN OF APEX
PUBLIC WORKS & TRANSPORTATION

ENGINEERING DIVISION
73 HUNTER STREET

APEX, NC 27502
919-249-3417

PROJECT REFERENCE NO. SHEET NO.

PRELIMINARY
DO NOT USE

FOR
CONSTRUCTION

Se
pt

em
be

r 8
, 2

02
0

Feet
0 20 40

2 of 2

PROPOSED CONDITION

- Page 198 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
27917



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  UN F I N I SHED BU S I NE S S  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  20 ,  2 0 2 0  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  M i ke  Dea t on ,  Wa t e r  R esou rc e s  D i rec to r  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Wa t e r  R e sou rc es  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Po s s i b le  mo t i on  t o  re duc e th e  C i v i l  Pe na l t y  th a t  w as  a s s es se d to  the  Cen te r  S t r ee t  Ph ar mac y  

p ro per ty  o wner  on  M arc h  19 ,  2020 ,  f ro m $4 ,700  t o  $ 2 ,000 .   

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

 

 

As  d i sc u s s ed  a t  the  S ep te mber  1 ,  2020  me et i ng ,  the  To wn Coun c i l  aske d s ta f f  t o  e va l ua te  the  

as ses se d c i v i l  pen a l t y  o f  $4 ,700  an d c o me  bac k  w i t h  c r i te r i a  t o  c ons i d e r  i n  an  e f fo r t  t o  a s s i s t  i n  

reduc i ng  t he  a moun t .    

 

The  Tow n’ s  So i l  E r os i o n  an d Se d i men t a t i on  Con t ro l  Ord i n anc e c o ns i de r s  the  f o l l o w i ng c r i te r i a  

when  i s su i ng  c i v i l  pen a l t i e s :   t he  de gree  an d e x t en t  o f  har m c aus ed by  t he  v i o l a t i on ,  t he  c o s t  o f  

rec t i f y i ng  t he  da ma g e,  t he  a moun t  o f  mon ey  the  v i o la t o r  s a ve d by  non -c o mp l i anc e ,  whe the r  

the  v i o la t i on  w as  c o m mi t te d w i l l f u l l y ,  an d t he  p r i o r  rec or d o f  th e  v i o la t o r  i n  c o mp ly i n g  o r  fa i l i n g  

to  c o mp ly  w i th  re qu i re men t s .   S ta f f  be l i eve s  the  ab o ve  c r i t e r i a  i s  ap p l i c a b l e  to  s to r mw at e r  

c ont r o l  mea su re  c o mpl i anc e .   No  har m w a s  c au se d by  th e  v i o l a t i on .   The  To wn ha s  s p ent  

c ons i d e ra b le  t i me to  rec t i f y  the  p r ob le m.   The  v i o l a to r  d i d  no t  s a ve  any  mone y as  c o mp l i anc e  

wa s  e ve ntu a l l y  ac h i eve d .   N o  w i l l f u l  ac t i on  w as  c o mmi t t ed .   A l o ng h i s t o ry  o f  n on -c o m pl i anc e  

has  bee n  doc u men te d at  t h i s  p r op er t y .  

 

Af t e r  c ons i d e r i ng the  ab o ve  c r i te r i a ,  S t a f f  h as  de te r mi ne d tha t  th e  a moun t  o f  t i me  an d  mo ney  

spen t  t o  en su re  c o mp l i anc e  at  t he  p ro per ty  i s  an  e s sen t i a l  c r i te r i a  to  c on s i de r .   A s  suc h ,  an  

eva lu a t i on  o f  s t a f f  t i me  w as  c o mp le ted  w h i c h  de te r mi ne d th a t  s t o r mw a te r  s ta f f  sp en t  

ap pro x i mat e l y  40  to  5 0  hou r s  o f  t i me  o ve r  t he  p as t  11  ye ar s  on  t h i s  p ar t i c u l a r  p ro per t y .   Af t e r  

ta k i ng i n to  ac c ou nt  s t a f f  a ve ra ge s a l a ry  an d benef i t s  du r i ng th a t  t i me ,  a n  a p prox i ma t e  a moun t  

o f  $2 ,000  c an  b e  c a lc u la te d .    

 

To wn s t a f f  rec o mme n ds  reduc i n g the  c u r r e n t  c i v i l  pen a l t y  as se s s men t  a moun t  o f  $4 ,70 0  t o  

$2 ,000 .   

- Page 199 -



 

To  a ddre s s  th i s  i s su e  i n  th e  fu tu re ,  Wa t e r  R esou rc e s  s t a f f  w i l l  w or k  w i th  t he  P l ann i n g D epar t men t  

to  d eve l op UD O a me nd men ts  t ha t  w i l l  be  s pec i f i c  to  Sec t i on  6 .1  v i o l a t i on s  (suc h  a s  f a i l i ng  to  

sub mi t  annu a l  i n spec t i o n  rep or t s )  an d u se  s i mi l a r  c r i te r i a  a s  ou t l i ned a bo ve  t o  de ve lo p ne w 

en fo rc e men t  p roc e du res  th at  w i l l  su bs t i tu t e  fo r  the  c u r ren t  $100 / da y/ v i o la t i on  c r i te r i a .  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  No t i c e  o f  C i v i l  P ena l t y  As s es s men t_ 3 -1 9 -20 20 .p df  

 

- Page 200 -



- Page 201 -



- Page 202 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  N E W BU S I NE SS  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  20 ,202 0  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  N i c o le  Do z i e r ,  M ay or  P ro  Te m  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  To wn C ounc i l  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

D i sc us s i on  a nd  p o ss i b le  mo t i on  to  a d op t  t h e  Town  o f  Ap e x  L i v i n g Wa g e  re so lu t i o n  an d a ppr o ve 

an  a men d me nt  t o  the  Pe r son ne l  P o l i c i e s  M anua l  to  i nc lud e  a  L i v i ng Wa g e po l i c y .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

Du r i ng the  F Y2021  bu d ge t  p r oc e ss ,  To wn C ounc i l  a p pro ve d a d j u s t i n g e mp l oyee  s a l a r y  ran ge s  to  

es ta b l i sh  a  L i v i ng Wa ge of  $15 .00  pe r  h ou r ,  e f fec t i ve  Oc t ob er  5 ,  2020 .   To wn s ta f f  a sk s  th at  the  

at t ac he d L i v i ng Wa g e  R eso lu t i on  be  ad op t ed ,  an d the  To wn Pe r sonn e l  P o l i c i e s  be  a m ende d t o  

i nc lude  the  f o l lo w i n g :  

L iv ing  Wag e  

Par t - t i me  an d fu l l - t i me  e mp lo yee s  wh o w or k  a  mi n i mu m of  1040  hou r s  p e r  ye ar  sh a l l  b e  pa i d  

no  le s s  th an  an  es t ab l i she d L i v i n g Wa g e .  The  L i v i n g Wa g e  c a lc u la t i on  sh a l l  be  ba se d upo n  

the  Un i ve r s a l  L i v i n g Wa ge C alc u la t i on  an d  rev i ew ed  ann ua l l y  fo r  need ed a d j u s t men ts .  The  

L i v i ng  Wa g e sh a l l  be  sub j ec t  t o  To wn  M an a ger  rec o mme n da t i o n  a nd  C ounc i l  a ppr o va l  a s  

par t  o f  the  annu a l  bu d ge t  ap pro va l  p r oc es s .   

 

 

At t ac h men t s  

  TO A L i v i ng Wa g e  R es o lu t i on  

 

- Page 203 -



RESOLUTION NO. 20-1020-09 

RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH A LIVING WAGE FOR TOWN EMPLOYEES 

WHEREAS, many North Carolinians perform important, essential work within an 

economy where wages can be stagnant and public, community resources can be insufficient;  

WHEREAS, market forces along with sound public policy, can ensure community 

members have what they need to care for themselves and their families;  

WHEREAS, the cost of food, transportation, housing, health care, childcare and other 

living expenses make it increasingly difficult for workers who earn low wages to meet the most 

basic needs; and 

WHEREAS, the cost of living may cause individual workers, if available, to take on second 

and third jobs in order to support themselves and their families; and 

WHEREAS, a Living Wage is defined as the minimum amount of income a worker needs 

to meet their most basic needs including housing, clothing and food; and 

WHEREAS, a Living Wage will assure social and economic benefits and for the 

community as a whole as well as increase consumer spending and help strengthen the local 

economy; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Apex is committed to providing compensation to employees 

resulting in excellent level of service to the community; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Apex desires to pay Town employees a Living Wage to promote 

well-being and ensure that workers are able to meet their basic needs; and 

WHEREAS, a Living Wage will contribute to lower turnover rates that will reduce the 

costs of recruitment, hiring, and training and increase the quality and continuity of job performance 

and aid in retention; and 

WHEREAS, Town Council approved salary range adjustments in the FY2021 budget to 

allow for the implementation of a Living Wage rate for Town employees;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town Council of the Town of Apex 

does hereby approve a Living Wage Pay Policy for Town of Apex employees, subject to the 

following: 

1. Part-time and full-time employees who work a minimum of 1040 hours per year shall be 

paid no less than an established Living Wage. 

2. The Living Wage calculation shall be based upon the Universal Living Wage Calculation, 

a widely used and nationally accepted method for determining the Living Wage in a 

specific area. 

- Page 204 -



3. The Town shall annually review changes in Living Wage calculations and establish the 

Town’s Living Wage. The Living Wage shall be subject to Town Manager 

recommendation and Council approval as part of the annual budget approval process.  

4. A Living Wage of $15.00 an hour is effective October 5, 2020 for eligible Town 

employees. 

 

 

Adopted this the 20th day of October 2020. 

 

 

By:  _________________________________ 

        Jacques K. Gilbert 

        Mayor 

 

Attest:  ____________________________________ 

               Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 

               Town Clerk 

 

 

- Page 205 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  N E W BU S I NE SS  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  2 0 ,  2 0 2 0  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Sh anno n  C ox ,  Lon g R an ge P l ann i n g M an a g er  w i t h  S ha wn Pu r v i s ,  As s i s ta n t  

To wn M an a ger  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  P l ann i n g and  C o mmu n i ty  D e ve l op men t  an d Ad mi n i s t ra t i on  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Po s s i b le  mo t i on  t o  ap pro ve  i mp le men ta t i o n  o f  the  p ro po se d Ap ex  C ares  H ous i n g R eh ab i l i t a t i on  

P ro gr a m wi th  an  annu a l  fun d i n g a l l oc at i on  f ro m th e  Af fo r d ab le  H ous i n g Fun d .   

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

The  Tow n o f  Ap e x ’ s  a do p te d bu d ge t  i nc lu d es  the  c re a t i o n  o f  a n  Af f o r d ab le  Hou s i ng  Fu nd ,  wh i c h  

w i l l  rec e i ve  annu a l  re venue  equ i va len t  t o  o ne -c en t  o n  the  t ax  r a te ,  a ppr ox i ma te l y  $1  mi l l i on  i n  

F Y20 -2 1 .  The  pu rp ose  o f  th i s  i te m i s  t o  d i sc u s s  a  p ro po sa l  to  a l l oc at e  $250 ,000  f r o m t ha t  fun d t o  

be g i n  th e  p r op os ed  Apex  Car es  Hou s i ng  R e hab i l i ta t i on  Pr o gra m (“P ro gr a m” ) .  Th e  pu r p ose  o f  the  

P ro gr a m i s  to  a s s i s t  re s i den t  h o meo wner s  o f  s i ng le - f a mi l y ,  de t ac h ed d we l l i ng s ;  c on do m i n i ums ;  

an d to wnh o mes  w i t h  neede d r ep a i r s  to  p re se r ve  sa fe  an d sa n i t a ry  hou s i n g ,  c or rec t  ha zar dou s  

s t ruc tu r a l  c on d i t i on s ,  he lp  re s i d en ts  a ge  i n  p l ac e ,  an d i mpro ve  a c c ess i b i l i t y  f o r  pe r s on s  w i th  

d i sa b i l i t i e s .  Th e  P r o gr a m wi l l  a l s o  h e l p  p re s e rve  na tu r a l l y -oc c u r r i ng  af fo r d ab le  h ous i n g i n  Ap e x .  

Th rou gh  the  P r o gra m,  as s i s ta nc e  to  c o mp le te  e l i g i b le  h ous i n g re pa i r s  w i l l  be  g i ven  t o  e l i g i b l e ,  

lo w- i nc o me ,  o wner - o c c up i ed h o meo wner s  w i th i n  To wn o f  Ap e x  c orp ora te  l i mi t s .  The  

rec o mmen de d gu i de l i nes  f o r  th i s  ne w pro gr a m are  p r o v i de d as  a n  a t tac h me nt .  I f  Counc i l  

ap pro ve s  the  p r o gra m an d fun d i ng ,  s t a f f  has  a l rea d y  i de nt i f i ed  a  par tne r  t o  c ar r y  ou t  the  

p ro gr a m.  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Ap e x  Care s  –  Hou s i ng  R eha b i l i ta t i on  P r o gra m Gu i de l i nes   

 

- Page 206 -



Apex Cares – Housing Rehabilitation Program Guidelines 
 

 
DRAFT – October 9, 2020  Page 1 

TOWN OF APEX 
APEX CARES – HOUSING REHABILITATION PROGRAM GUIDELINES 
 
I. OVERVIEW OF PROGRAM 

 
a. Purpose of the Program 

The purpose of the Apex Cares - Housing Rehabilitation Program (“Program”) is to assist 
resident homeowners of single-family, detached dwellings; condominiums; and townhomes 
with needed repairs to preserve safe and sanitary housing, correct hazardous structural 
conditions, help residents age in place, and improve accessibility for persons with 
disabilities. This program will also help preserve naturally-occurring affordable housing in 
Apex. Through the Program, assistance to complete eligible housing repairs will be given to 
eligible, low-income, owner-occupied homeowners of single-family homes, condominiums, 
and townhomes within Town of Apex corporate limits. The Program’s eligibility criteria are 
further outlined under Section II of these Housing Rehabilitation Program Guidelines 
(“Guidelines”).  

 
b. Source of Funds and Relationship with Non-Profit Agencies  

Funding for Program is provided through the Town of Apex Affordable Housing Fund. Apex 
will contract with non-profit agencies (“Agencies”) to provide administrative services and to 
organize, oversee, and ensure performance of housing repair activities contemplated by 
these Guidelines.  Apex shall market the Program, develop Program guidelines, and process 
funds to the Agencies. Apex shall not serve as a general contractor or otherwise oversee any 
housing repair activities provided through the Program. 
 

c. Amount of Assistance Available  
Funding per eligible household shall be based on household need, level of home repair 
need, and overall funding availability, but in no case shall exceed $15,000 per household 
within a 5-year period. 
 

II. PROGRAM SERVICES PROVIDED BY AGENCIES 
 

a. Agencies participating in Program shall provide the following services in compliance with 
Guidelines: 

i. Screen applicants and properties for eligibility pursuant to the requirements set out 
in these Guidelines; 

ii. Enter into contracts with each applicant who will receive Program Funding; 
iii. Find licensed subcontractors to perform work, when applicable; 
iv. Require applicants and contractors working on their behalf to submit 

documentation as work progresses; 
v. Confirm improvements have been made in accordance with the contract with 

applicant and in compliance with applicable laws or regulations; 
vi. Collect and have the ability to provide all documentation set out in these Guidelines;  

vii. Comply with all other requirements set out in these Guidelines; and, 

- Page 207 -



Apex Cares – Housing Rehabilitation Program Guidelines 
 

 
DRAFT – October 9, 2020  Page 2 

viii. Prepare and submit semiannual reports to the Town regarding progress, including: 
applications received, homeowners assisted, requests denied or delayed, funds 
expended, and successes and issues of concern. 
 

III. APPLICANT ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 
 
a. Income Eligibility Standards Based on Total Persons in Household 

Agencies shall ensure that participation in Program is limited to applicants whose annual 
household income does not exceed 65 percent of the area median income, adjusted for 
household size and reported for the Raleigh Metropolitan Statistical Area, as determined for 
each fiscal year by the Department of Housing and Urban Development. Agencies shall 
require applicants to submit documentation necessary to determine applicant eligibility. 
 

b. Property Ownership 
To be eligible to receive assistance through Program, applicant(s) shall be the current 
owner(s) of the property to be rehabilitated (“Property”), live on the Property as their 
principal place of residence and have owned and lived on the property for a minimum of 
three years.  Property owner(s) are any person(s) or legal entity that holds title to the 
Property. In instances of multiple ownership, the signature of each owner is required on all 
appropriate documents.  Agencies shall verify Property ownership and require all current 
owners to give written consent to all work proposed to be done on the Property prior to 
contracting for or initiating such work.  
 

c. Required Documentation  
Applicants shall submit an Apex Cares Housing Rehabilitation Program Inquiry Form to 
Agencies.  Agencies shall require applicant(s) to submit the documents necessary to 
determine eligibility, which may include: 

i. Copy of Federal Income Tax forms for the previous year (2 years if applicant is self-
employed);  

ii. Copy of the instrument by which the applicant(s) obtained title to the property and 
any uncancelled Deeds of Trust;  

iii. Proof of residency for three years prior to the date of application; 
iv. Copy of recent payroll check stubs, Social Security checks, Social Security SSI checks, 

AFDC checks or pension and retirement checks, bank statement (six months), or 
other appropriate and acceptable income and asset verifications;  

v. Copy of any insurance policies covering the property;  
vi. Proof of mortgage and utility payments;  

vii. Copy of identification with photograph, such as, but not limited to driver’s license, 
passport, etc.; and, 

viii. Copy of covenants for any homeowner or condominium association, if applicable.  
 

d. Re-Application Period  
In order to give as many persons the opportunity to participate in the Program as possible, 
applicants may apply for a maximum of $15,000 through the Program in any 5-year period. 

- Page 208 -



Apex Cares – Housing Rehabilitation Program Guidelines 
 

 
DRAFT – October 9, 2020  Page 3 

Applicants may apply for funding multiple times within a 5-year period; however, no 
applicant(s) who has received $15,000 in assistance within a 5-year period may receive 
additional funding, unless no other applicants are awaiting assistance under the Program. 
 

IV. PROPERTY ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS  
 
a. Areas Eligible Under Program  

Properties that are rehabilitated as part of Program must be zoned and used for residential 
purposes and located within the corporate limits of the Town of Apex.  
 

b. Minimum Property Rehabilitation Standards  
All work performed shall meet all applicable standards contained in Town ordinances, local 
building and safety codes, and the State Building Code, as well as any other applicable 
federal, state, or local laws or regulations.  
 

c. Eligible Structures  
Only owner-occupied, single-family detached dwellings, condominiums, or townhomes are 
eligible for rehabilitation through Program.  
 

d. Rehabilitation Needs which Warrant Priority Repair 
Applicants in need of the following health and safety items shall be given priority, in the 
order listed below, when Agencies select recipients of Program funds:  

i. Roof 
ii. Foundation;  

iii. Electrical wiring;  
iv. Plumbing;  
v. Heating/Cooling System;  

vi. The elimination of specific conditions detrimental to public health and safety, which 
have been identified by the Town.  
 

e. Eligible Improvements and Repairs 
Improvements and repairs that may be eligible through the Program are:  

i. Correction of code violations;  
ii. Correction of current or emerging violations of the applicable Building Code;  

iii. Testing and treatment/removal of lead-based paint/asbestos hazards;  
iv. Removal of barriers to persons with disabilities;  
v. Repair/replace roofing;  

vi. Repair/replace HVAC systems;  
vii. Repair/replace plumbing/sewer pipes/fixtures;  

viii. Repair/replace screens;  
ix. Install new smoke alarms;  
x. Install new insulation;  

xi. Repair/replace kitchen and bath flooring;  
xii. Repair/replace water heaters;  

- Page 209 -



Apex Cares – Housing Rehabilitation Program Guidelines 
 

 
DRAFT – October 9, 2020  Page 4 

xiii. Repair/replace bath fixtures;  
xiv. Repair/replace countertops;  
xv. Repair/replace electrical system;  

xvi. Installation of ground-fault circuit interrupters;  
xvii. Repair/replace windows;  

xviii. Repair/replace plaster, siding and stucco;  
xix. Painting (inside and outside);  
xx. Install new deadbolt locks;  

xxi. Interior accessibility improvements for persons with disabilities;  
xxii. Repairs or improvements to allow residents to age in place, such as, but not limited 

to: installation of grab bars in hallways and showers, stair lifts, and walk-in tubs; 
xxiii. Repair/replace carpet;  
xxiv. Structural repairs/modifications (only to correct existing structural code deficiencies 

or to provide accessibility to persons with disabilities);  
xxv. Entry repairs; 

xxvi. Cost effective energy conservation measures, including solar heating, cooling, and 
water systems permanently affixed to dwelling;  

xxvii. Any items determined eligible by the Town; and  
xxviii. The elimination of specific conditions detrimental to public health and safety, which 

have been identified by the Town.  
 

f. Ineligible Improvements and Repairs  
The following repairs and improvements are not eligible for funding through the Program:  

i. All improvements covered by a homeowners’ association or condominium-owners’ 
association.  

ii. New construction;  
iii. Reimbursement for an owner’s personal labor; 
iv. Appliances (except built-in stove, cook top, or garbage disposal);  
v. Purchase, installation, or repair of furniture;  

vi. Demolition that does not improve the existing structure;  
vii. Repairs that are interim in nature;  

viii. Wrought iron security devices;  
ix. Recreational equipment, facilities, or repairs;  
x. Kennels;  

xi. Bath houses, swimming pools, saunas, hot tubs, or Jacuzzis;  
xii. Photomurals, stands, television antennas, valances, or cornice boards;  

xiii. Burglar alarms or security systems;  
xiv. Greenhouses;  
xv. Drapes;  

xvi. Barbecue pits;  
xvii. Repair/replace fencing; and 

xviii.  Luxury Items.  
 

- Page 210 -



Apex Cares – Housing Rehabilitation Program Guidelines 
 

 
DRAFT – October 9, 2020  Page 5 

g. Other Improvements and Repairs 
If a proposed improvement or repair is not present on the above lists, or is listed as an 
ineligible improvement or repair but would accomplish the goals of Program, Agencies may 
seek an eligibility determination from the Town. The Town, upon receiving such a request 
and at its sole discretion, shall determine whether the requested improvement or repair will 
be eligible to receive Program funds. Any appeals to the Town’s determination of eligibility 
will be considered in a public hearing by the Town of Apex Board of Adjustment. 

 
V. PROGRAM FUNDS 

a. Contracts 
Each Agency shall enter into a contract with the Town before administering Program 
services.  The contract will specify a maximum amount of funding to be disbursed to the 
Agency to provide Program services.    
 

b. Disbursements 
A disbursement equal to 33.3% of the maximum contract amount shall be disbursed to an 
Agency within thirty (30) days of Town of execution of the contract. A second disbursement 
of an additional 33.3% shall be made to an Agency upon certification made by the Agency 
that 90% of the previously disbursed funds have been expended on eligible projects. A final 
disbursement of the remaining 33.3% shall be made to an Agency upon certifications made 
by the Agency that 90% of previously disbursed funds have been expended on eligible 
projects. 
 

c. Accounts 
Agencies shall cause disbursed funds to be held in interest-bearing accounts at financial 
institutions insured by an agency of the federal government.  
 

d. Income 
Interest accrued by Program funds shall be credited to the account that creates it. Any such 
interest shall be used solely for the administration of the account itself or be included in 
Program funds for expenditure on eligible projects. 
 

e. Unspent Funds 
Any funds that remain unspent by an Agency at the end of a contract term shall: 

i. be retained by the Agency and included in the Program funds available to Agency 
for the next Program year, if Town and Agency enter into a new contract for another 
Program year, or 

ii. be returned to the Town of Apex by the Agency 
 
f. Accounting 

i. Agencies shall utilize an accounting system that complies with current generally 
accepted accounting principles and: 

1. Provides effective internal control over and accountability for all Program 
funds disbursed to Agency; 

- Page 211 -



Apex Cares – Housing Rehabilitation Program Guidelines 
 

 
DRAFT – October 9, 2020  Page 6 

2. Ensures that accounting records are supported by source documentation 
(e.g., invoice, receipts or contracts); and 

3. Accounts Program funds received by Agency separately from funds received 
from all other sources. 

 
VI. OVERSIGHT 

a. Record Retention 
Agencies must maintain all records pertinent to their participation in Program, including all 
accounting records and records pertinent to each Property that receives Program funds, for 
five years from the termination date of the Agency’s contract with Town of Apex or upon 
the completion date of any project undertaken under that contract, whichever is later. All 
records must be sufficient to determine compliance with the requirements and objectives of 
the Program. 
 

b. Required Project Documentation 
In addition to accounting documentation, Agencies shall collect and maintain, at a 
minimum, the following documentation related to each project undertaken with Program 
funds: 

i. Original application submitted by applicant; 
ii. Documentation used to determine applicant and household eligibility, including but 

not limited to: 
1. Proof of home ownership submitted by Applicant; 
2. Proof of current taxes, mortgage, and utility payments to the Town of Apex 

submitted by applicant; and 
3. Proof of income eligibility. 

iii. Original agreement between applicant and Agency; 
iv. Scope of work / work write up for the project; 
v. Documentation showing compliance with of all regulatory requirements applicable 

to a specific project, including but not limited to: 
1. Proof of inspections; and 
2. Evidence of adherence to lead-based paint regulations. 

 
c. Production and Survival 

Agencies shall, at any time within the five-year retention period described above, be able to 
produce any and all documentation detailed above upon request of the Town of Apex. This 
obligation shall extend beyond the termination date of any contract between the Agency 
and the Town of Apex. 
 

d. Audits 
During the contract term, the Town of Apex shall be permitted to conduct on-site audits of 
Agencies upon reasonable notice. The Town intends to conduct such audits on an annual 
basis, but may conduct an audit at any time upon the giving of reasonable notice.  

 

- Page 212 -



Apex Cares – Housing Rehabilitation Program Guidelines 
 

 
DRAFT – October 9, 2020  Page 7 

VII. OTHER PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS  
 
a. Bonus, Commission, or Fee  

Applicants shall not be permitted to pay any bonus, commission, or fee for the purposes of 
obtaining approval related to Program, and Agencies, their employees, subcontractors, or 
other agents shall not accept any such bonus, commission, or fee should it be offered.   
 

b. Conflict of Interest  
No Program funding will be provided to any member of the governing body or employee of 
the Town of Apex who is involved in making or administering the Program or this 
Agreement. No member of Agencies shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in Program 
funding or in any contract entered into by an applicant for the performance of work, 
financed, in whole or in part, with Program funds. 
 

c. Disclosure of Information  
The Town of Apex is a public agency and information or records submitted, whether to the 
Town or to Agencies, by applicants are public records and subject to disclosure under 
Section § 132-6 of the North Carolina Public Records Law unless such information or records 
is protected from disclosure.  
 

- Page 213 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  N E W BU S I NE SS  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  20 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Au d ra  K i l l i ng sw or th ,  C ounc i l  Me mb er  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Go vern i ng Bo d y  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

D i sc us s i on  an d p os s i b l e  mo t i on  to  a men d Se c t i on  4 .3  o f  the  To wn o f  Ap ex  Co de of  Ord i nanc e s  t o  

a l lo w the  k eep i n g o f  d war f / p yg my  go a ts  w i th i n  the  t o wn l i mi t s .   

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

N/ A 

I tem De ta i l s  

Counc i l  rec e i ve d a  re ques t ,  f r o m a re s i den t ,  t o  c o ns i de r  pe r mi t t i ng  the  kee p i ng o f  dw ar f /p y g my 

go a ts ,  i n  a  ma nner  s i mi la r  t o  the  a l lo w anc e t o  kee p mi n i atu re  p i gs ,  w i th i n  t own  l i mi t s .   

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Pres en ta t i on  f r o m R e s i dent  

  Draf t  Or d i na nc e Ch a nge  

 

- Page 214 -



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-1020-34 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 4-3 OF APEX TOWN CODE  

  

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF APEX AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 Section 1.  Subsection (b) of 4-3 of the Town of Apex Code of Ordinances is hereby 

amended to read as follows with additions shown as bold underlined text and deletions 

shown as struck-through text: 

Sec. 4-3. – Prohibition of certain animals. 

(b)  [Exemptions.] The following animals are exempt from this section:  

(1)  Horses;  

(2)  Ponies;  

(3)  Rabbits; and  

(4)  Fowl except male chickens.  

(5)  Miniature pigs—provided that no more than two are kept per dwelling, that all pigs 
over the age of eight weeks are neutered, that they be no more than 20 inches in height at 
the shoulders when full grown, and that they are kept within the dwelling house of the owner 
or possessor unless outside in a fenced area for exercise or controlled by a leash in the 
same manner as required for dogs.  

(6) Dwarf/Pygmy goats - provided that no more than two are kept per dwelling, 
that all dwarf/pygmy goats over the age of eight weeks are neutered, that they be no 
more than 24 inches in height at the shoulders when full grown, and that they are 
kept within the dwelling house of the owner or possessor, outside in a fenced area 
that is a minimum of 135 square feet per animal with a shelter that is a minimum of 
20 square feet per animal, or controlled by a leash in the same manner as required 
for dogs. 

 

Section 2.  It is the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained that 

the provisions of this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of 

Ordinances and the sections of this ordinance may be renumbered to accomplish such 

intention. 

 Section 3.  Severability, Conflict of Laws.  If this ordinance or application thereof to 

any person or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions 

or applications of the ordinance which can be given separate effect and to the end the 

provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable.  All ordinances or parts of 

ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

Section 4.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective upon adoption. 

  

- Page 215 -



Introduced by Council Member: _____________________________________ 

 Seconded by Council Member:   _____________________________________ 

 This the 20th day of October 2020. 

 

        ____________________________ 

        Jacques K. Gilbert 

        Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 

Town Clerk 

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

____________________________ 

Laurie L. Hohe 

Town Attorney 

- Page 216 -



Goat Request

By Nadia Howard

- Page 217 -



Town of Apex
Code of Ordinances
Sec. 4-3. 
Prohibition of 
Certain Animals

“The keeping of livestock and male chickens is prohibited 
within the corporate limits of the town. Livestock includes, 
but is not limited to, cows, goats, sheep, swine and other 
similar animals.

The following animals are exempt from this section:

(1) Horses
(2) Ponies 
(3) Rabbits; and
(4) Fowl except male chickens.
(5) Miniature pigs- provided that no more than 2 are 

kept per dwelling, that all pigs over the age of eight 
weeks are neutered, that they be no more than 20 
inches in height at the shoulders when full grown, 
and they are kept within the dwelling house of the 
owner or possessor unless outside in a fenced area 
for exercise or controlled by a leash in the same 
manner as required for dogs.”

- Page 218 -



Woodridge HOA 
Covenants 

7. “No animals, livestock, or poultry of any kind shall 
be kept or maintained on any Lot or in any dwelling, 
except that dogs, cats, or other household pets may 
be kept or maintained, provided that they are not 
maintained for commercial purposes.”

- Page 219 -



I would argue...
Goats are small, cuddly, relational animals, that would be a part of our 
household just like our dog and cat. 

They will be housed in a well maintained, professionally built, enclosed 
shelter, to protect them from predators at night, which is more than 
our indoor/outdoor cat gets.

The Nigerian Dwarf goat breed is approximately the same height as 
the allowable pigs, per town ordinance, when they are full grown.

It seems as though they have more in common with the allowed 
animals than differences

- Page 220 -



What you Need to 
Know
Nigerian Dwarf 
Goats

Much 
smaller      

than your  
average 

goat

Fully grown 
they are an 
average of 

22.5 inches 
tall- Page 221 -



What our Neighbors Think

We had an overwhelming amount of 
positive feedback from the people on 
Starita ct. …

“Of course!” -Jackie & Mark Coats (next 
door)

“We love idea of little tiny goats as pets!” 
-Kirk & Lisa Krauza

“Yes! We want to visit them!” -John & Sandy 
Swick

“Sounds awesome!!” -Amy & Paul Levering

“Go for it!” -Jen Swick

“I would love it!!” -David McCall

“I have no issues with it!” -Kristy Isaacs

“We are 100% in support and would love to 
meet them!” -Rachel & Reese Miller

(We did have mixed results, however most of 
the feedback was positive. Additionally, it 
started a discussion on whether or not our 
20 ‘year old’ neighborhood covenants need to 
be updated)- Page 222 -



Fun Facts
● Especially friendly and cuddly (more so than other goats)
● Most often used as therapy animals 
● Makes them the ideal goat yoga goats
● Eat poison ivy and briars

“The entertaining nature of goats is among the qualities that make them excellent therapy animals. 
Their playfulness can bring people out of their shell, lift their spirits, and even lower blood pressure. … 
They’re also funny and happy animals, so they make you laugh as well.”

https://backyardgoats.iamcountryside.com/ownership/therapy-goats-from-hoof-to-the-heart/

- Page 223 -

https://backyardgoats.iamcountryside.com/ownership/therapy-goats-from-hoof-to-the-heart/


What They Need

● Two nigerian dwarf goats need a 4x5 
shelter space

● We already have a space we could convert 
into a shelter that extends well beyond 
that limit (8x10)

● Snuggles and human interaction

- Page 224 -



Why Should Goats 
be Allowed now?

Its 2020      ... 

Traditional ideas about what makes a neighborhood 
desirable are changing. Smith Farms is a new 
neighborhood that has replaced a conventional  
neighborhood pool with garden plots for the people to 
grow their own food to make for a healthier 
environment.

Goats can do the same thing, they can bring joy and 
happiness to our homes and neighborhoods in these 
trying times, because they are such silly and loveable 
creatures.

Apex is an inclusive community. I would like to include 
Nigerian Dwarf goats as one of my household pets.

- Page 225 -



Thank you for Your Time!

- Page 226 -



Sec. 4-3. - Prohibition of certain animals.  

(a)  Livestock and male chickens. The keeping of livestock or male chickens is prohibited within the 
corporate limits of the town. Livestock includes, but is not limited to, cows, goats, sheep, swine and 
other similar animals.  

(b)  [Exemptions.] The following animals are exempt from this section:  

(1)  Horses;  

(2)  Ponies;  

(3)  Rabbits; and  

(4)  Fowl except male chickens.  

(5)  Miniature pigs—provided that no more than two are kept per dwelling, that all pigs over the age 
of eight weeks are neutered, that they be no more than 20 inches in height at the shoulders 
when full grown, and that they are kept within the dwelling house of the owner or possessor 
unless outside in a fenced area for exercise or controlled by a leash in the same manner as 
required for dogs.  

(6) Dwarf/Pygmy goats - provided that no more than two are kept per dwelling, that all 
dwarf/pygmy goats over the age of eight weeks are neutered, that they be no more than 
24 inches in height at the shoulders when full grown, and that they are kept within the 
dwelling house of the owner or possessor, outside in a fenced area that is a minimum of 
135 square feet per animal with a shelter that is a minimum of 20 square feet per animal, 
or controlled by a leash in the same manner as required for dogs. 

(Ord. No. 2007-0403-05, § 1, 4-3-07; Ord. No. 2007-0515-07, § 1, 5-15-07; Ord. No. 2018-

0417-18, § 1, 4-17-2018)  

- Page 227 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  N E W BU S I NE SS  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  20 ,202 0  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Chery l  S ta l l i n gs ,  Cou n c i l  Me mber  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  To wn C ounc i l  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

D i sc us s i on  re g ar d i ng rec ent  a men d me nt s  t o  the  T ran sp or ta t i on  P l an  M ap an d p os s i b l e  d i rec t i on  

to  s t a f f  to  be g i n  t he  p roc e ss  t o  re - ex a mi n e  t wo  c ha ng es  t o  a l l o w fo r  a d d i t i on a l  pu b l i c  i nput .   

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

N/ A 

I tem De ta i l s  

At  t he  Oc to ber  6 ,  202 0  To wn Counc i l  mee t i ng ,  t w o a men d men t s  to  t he  T r an sp or t a t i on  P l an  Ma p 

were  ma d e a b sen t  s t a f f  rec o m men d a t i on  an d af te r  a ppr o va l ,  me mber (s )  o f  C ounc i l  a re  

sug ge s t i ng  a  new  no t i c e  an d he ar i n g p r oc e ss  be  s ta r te d t o  re -e x a mi ne  u p da te s  re la t e d to  N ew  

H i l l  O l i ve  C ha pe l  R o a d (u pd a t i ng  t o  a  4  la ne  ro ad  w i th  a  me di a n) ,  an d N or th  Sa le m b et ween 64  

an d the  Pe ak wa y (u p da t i n g to  a  4  l ane  r oa d w i th  a  me di an ) .  O w i ng t o  c onc ern s  a b ou t  the  

po ten t i a l  i mpac t  o f  t hese  a men d men ts  t o  bus i nes se s ,  f a i th  c o mmun i t i e s ,  a nd  ho me s  ( so me 

h i s to r i c )  a l on g the se  r oa d s ,  the re  i s  a  de s i re  t o  h a ve  c i t i zen s  to  ha ve  mor e  o f  an  o pp or tu n i ty  t o  

p ro v i de  c o m men ts .  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  [ L i s t  a t t ac h men ts  o r  N / A]  

 

- Page 228 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CLO SE D SE S S I ON  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  2 0 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Jac ques  K .  G i lbe r t ,  M ay or  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  To wn C ounc i l  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Po s s i b le  m o t i on  t o  g o  i n to  C l ose d Se s s i on  t o  d i sc us s  a  pe r s onne l  ma t te r  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

N/ A 

At t ac h men t s  

  N/ A 

 

- Page 229 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  WO R K SE S S I ON  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Oc t ob er  2 0 ,202 0  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Sh anno n  C ox ,  R u s se l l  Da l t on ,  Va nc e H o l l o m an ,  Sh a wn Pu r v i s  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  P l ann i n g ,  P W- T r ans por ta t i on ,  F i nanc e ,  Bu d g et  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

R ec e i ve  i n fo r ma t i on  reg ard i n g c o s t  an d t i mi n g o f  t ra ns por t at i on  p ro j ec ts  an d ex i s t i n g  deb t  

c ap ac i t y  i n  o r de r  t o  c ons i d e r  p os s i b l e  f i nan c i ng o p t i ons  t o  fun d t rans por t a t i on  p ro j ec ts .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

N/ A 

I tem De ta i l s  

The  c u r ren t  C I P  i nc lud es  $47 .7M  fo r  t r ans por ta t i on  p r o j ec t s  o ve r  t he  nex t  f ou r  year s  an d $27 .5M  

fo r  p r o j ec t s  bey on d 2 025 .  S t a f f  i s  p r ep ar i ng  up da te d C I P  reques t s  a nd  ha s  i de nt i f i ed a d di t i on a l  

need s  bey on d the  c u r ren t  p l an .  Wh i le  so me  of  the  s ma l le r  p ro j ec t s  a re  ex pec te d to  be  c o vere d 

th r oug h  a nnua l  re ven ue  sou rc es ,  th e  l a r ge r  p ro j ec t s  w i l l  re qu i re  a  f i nanc i n g mec h an i s m i n  o r de r  

to  mo ve  f o rw ar d .  P l a nn i ng an d T r ans p or t a t i on  s ta f f  w i l l  p r o v i de  an  u pd a te  on  e xpec t ed 

t i me l i nes  an d c o s t  e s t i ma tes  fo r  la r ge  t r an s por t at i o n  p r o j ec t s  an d F i nanc e s ta f f  w i l l  p r o v i de  an  

upd a te  on  e xpec te d de bt  c a pac i ty  an d l i mi t s .  Bu d ge t  s ta f f  w i l l  as s i s t  C ounc i l  i n  c on s i de r i ng  an d 

pr i o r i t i z i ng  t r ans por t a t i on  p ro j ec ts  w i th i n  th e  l i mi t s  o f  t he  e xpec t ed de b t  mo de l s  i n  o r de r  f o r  

Counc i l  to  c on s i de r  t he  fea s i b i l i t y  o f  a  bo n d re fe re ndu m.  

At t ac h men t s  

  N/ A 

 

- Page 230 -


	Top
	PR1	Arbor Day Proclamation
	Arbor Day Proclamation October 2020-cover
	REV Proclamation - Arbor Day

	PR2	Proclamation - Breast Cancer Awareness
	CS-Breast Cancer Awareness Month Proclamation
	PR-Breast Cancer Awareness October 2020 (1)

	CN1	Council Minutes
	CS - Minutes
	2020.09.15 Meeting

	CN2	Sept-Oct UDO Amendments Statement
	Cover Sept-Oct UDO Amendments-Statement
	Sept-Oct UDO Amendments Statement-various

	CN3	19CZ21 Heelan PUD Statement
	19CZ21 Heelan PUD Cover-CN
	19CZ21 Heelan PUD Statement

	CN4	20CZ04 Kobra Tracts PUD Cover-CN
	20CZ04 Kobra Tracts PUD Cover-CN
	20CZ04 Kobra Tracts PUD Statement
	20CZ04 Kobra Tracts PUD Ordinance
	20CZ04 Kobra Tracts PUD Attchment A-Legal Description
	20CZ04 Kobra Tracts PUD Attachment B-PUD text-plan

	CN5	20CZ07 2309 Old US 1 Highway CN-S&O
	20CZ07 2309 Old US 1 Highway Cover- CN
	20CZ07 2309 Old US 1 Highway Statement
	20CZ07 2309 Old US 1 Highway Ordinance
	20CZ07 2309 Old US 1 Highway Attachment A- Legal Description

	CN6	20CZ08 Apex Friendship Elementary School Statement & Ordinance
	20CZ08 Apex Friendship Elementary School Cover-CN
	20CZ08 Apex Friendship Elementary School Statement
	20CZ08 Apex Friendship Elementary School Ordinance
	20CZ08 Apex Friendship Elementary School Attachment A - Legal Description

	CN7	Annexation #693 Kings Grant
	AnnexCN-SPHAnnex693
	Annexation #693
	PetitionLegalMaps

	CN8	Chanukah Festival
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet - Chanukah Festival
	Special Event Application Event Detail Sheet - Chanukah Festival
	Chanukah Festival Map Setup

	CN9	Am Legion Car Show
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet - American Legion Fall Cars & Coffee
	Special Event Application Event Detail Sheet - American Legion Fall 2020 Cars &amp; Coffee Show

	CN10	Amend Easement - Holleman
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet - Conservation Easement Amendment
	Amendment to Conservation Easement
	Conservation Easement Plat

	CN11	Encroachment Agreemt - Klatt
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet 104 Gullane Court - Klatt Encroachment Agreement
	Signed 104 Gullane Court - Klatt Encroachment Agreement
	Exhibit A 104 Gullane Court

	CN12	CCS Medical Contract
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet
	CCS_Town of Apex Contract

	CN13	Adding Salem Park to Ordinance
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet Adding Salem Pond Park and Setting Hours of Operation 102020
	Ordinance Amendment to Add Salem Pond Park Hours

	CN14	Extend Park Hours
	Cover Sheet Extending Park Operating Hours through February 2021
	Temporary Ordinance Park Hours COVID 102020

	PH1	Annexation #698 The Upchurch
	AnnexPHAnnex698
	Ordinance #2020-1020-32
	PetitionLegalMaps

	PH2	20CZ10 109 Holleman Street PH
	20CZ10 109 Holleman St Cover-PH
	20CZ10 109 Holleman St TC Report-attachments

	OB1	Parking to Dining Program
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet - Downtown Parking-to-Dining Project Layout Modification
	Modification of Ordinances for sidewalk dining during COVID 19 - Amended
	Apex Parking-to-Dining Layout - 09-15-2020
	parking to dining-Layout2

	UB1	Waiver of Civil Penalty
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet_Waiver of CPA
	Notice of Civil Penalty Assessment_3-19-2020

	NB1	Living Wage Resolution
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet - Living Wage
	TOA Living Wage Resolution-dh edit

	NB2	Apex Cares Housing Rehabilitation Program
	NB_Cover_Apex Cares
	Recommended Apex Cares Housing Rehabilitation Program Guidelines

	NB3	Keeping Goats
	NB - Keeping Goats
	Ordinance Amendment - Allow Dwarf Goats
	Goat Request (4)
	Sec._4_3.___Prohibition_of_certain_animals. - Goat Amendment

	NB4	Transportation Plan Amendment
	NB - Transporation Plan Amendment re-examination

	CS1	Closed Session - Personnel
	CS - Closed Session

	WS1	Transportation Work Session
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet - Transportation Work Session

	Bottom

